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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Hou Song (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 30 March 2016)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
(appointed on 30 March 2017)
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt
(resigned on 30 March 2017 as Chairman but remains as a Director)

Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Tang Jun (resigned on 30 March 2017)

Ms. Liu Xuezi (appointed on 30 March 2016)

Ms. Tao Fang Fang (resigned on 30 March 2016)

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca (resigned on 30 March 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Jin Yi

Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca (resigned on 30 March 2016)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt

Mr. Lee Jin Yi

Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Bang Min

Mr. Hou Song (appointed on 30 March 2016)

Ms. Liu Xuezi (appointed on 16 December 2016)

Ms. Tao Fang Fang (appointed on 16 December 2016)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Hou Song

Mr. Leung Tsz Chun

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca (resigned on 30 March 2016)
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Tsz Chun

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
Room 109, Building 14

No. 818, Qiming Road

Yinzhou District

Ningbo

Zhejiang Province 315100

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 1203-4

12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers

189 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR
BDO Limited

LEGAL ADVISORS
Stephenson Harwood (Hong Kong)
Jincheng Tongda & Neal (China)
Estera Trust (Cayman Islands)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Agricultural Bank of China
Bank of China

China Construction Bank
SPD Bank

Industrial Bank

Fubon Bank

Standard Chartered Bank
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Estera Trust (Cayman) Ltd.

P.O. Box 1350

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
503

WEBSITE

www.lansen.com.cn

CORPORATE CONTACT INFORMATION FOR

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
Hong Kong

Please contact our Company Secretary at:
Telephone: (852) 2828 9285

The PRC
Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:
Telephone: (86) 574 8804 6316
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Five-Year Financial Summary

BE+t-HA=+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

ZECF ZE=F ZFNF ZF 8% ZEB-RF
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
FET FET FET FET FEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
E RESULTS
A Revenue 93,844 95,074 116,817 93,349 94,824
E A Gross profit 54,424 52,238 62,471 47,963 53,776
b BT 15 7 B & A Profit before income tax 16,566 15,081 18,068 4,331 7,026
Frig B Income tax expense (2,568) (3,390) (4,088) (2,260) (3,190)
&F 955 Fll Profit for the year 13,998 11,691 13,980 2,071 3,836
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —T-—=F —FT-0NF —T-—hF ZB-AF
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
FET FET FET FET FEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
WEE Total assets 168,862 192,382 232,275 218,286 222,762
BeE Total liabilities (63,459) (81,732) (117,670) (116,839)  (132,386)
B EFE Net assets 105,403 110,650 114,605 101,447 90,376

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 5 )
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Financial Highlights

—E-RE ZE—hF 2 E
2016 2015 Change
XE(FxER): Results (US$'000):
WA Revenue 94,824 93,349 +1.6%
EH Gross profit 53,776 47,963 +12.1%
£ F Profit from operations 9,185 13,824 -33.6%
B BT 15 7 B A Profit before income tax 7,026 4,331 +62.2%
PN/NEIE DN Profit attributable to owners of
J& 15 4 A the Company 3,836 2,071 +85.2%
BRIGEN: Profitability:
E A = Gross profit margin 56.7% 51.4% +5.3%
A = Net profit margin 4.0% 2.2% +1.8%
FREXZR Basic earnings per share
(=AU (US cents) 0.9 0.5 +0.4
BEMRR(FET) : Financial Position (US$°000):
BEE Total assets 222,762 218,286 +2.1%
PIN/NEIE FEDN Equity attributable to owners of
JE 15 # &= the Company 90,376 101,447 -10.9%
warE Total liabilities 132,386 116,839 +13.3%
e RIRITHEH Cash and bank balances 37,197 42,808 -13.1%
REBEEMRR: Liquidity:
B X () Current ratio (times) 0.9 1.0 -0.1
FBERE SR Net debt-to-equity ratio* 75.1% 46.5% +28.6%
* FRBERZLER=-(EE - BaRBA&ER) Net debt-to-equity ratio = (Borrowings — cash and bank balances)/Total equity
mrEs
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Financial Highlights

A

Revenue

[ JoN o WA EFA1E%

Revenue

(EE=) o Revenue increased by 1.6%

2015 2016

2 RUA

Segment Revenue

| R W BRXAER W REER
Pharmaceuticals Medical cosmetics products Healthcare products
(BE=1T) (B&%T) (B&%T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016

2 BB R
Segment Profits
W B B BRERER B eEEs
Pharmaceuticals Medical cosmetics products Healthcare products
(B8xT) (&%) (BE#ET)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)
10.3%

882.4%
N
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Financial Highlights

F R R AR

Profit for the year and Net profit margin

maH O mAEE e 2016F 45| FF485.2%
R g 47 3 48 11.8%
(US$ million)

o Net profit increased by 85.2% in 2016
Net profit margin increased by 1.8%

2015 2016
BREE
Dividend per share (DPS)
W PESEEE W ANSEEE . FHIR B A E R4.0278 1L
Gl > gg"ﬁ*’f B3R HA AR B A S AR3.6675 1L

o Interim dividend of HK4.02 cents per share
Proposed final dividend of HK3.66 cents per share

2015 2016
HEERTFEE
Total assets and Net assets
W HrnEE W rnEE B FEE s MBAELET21%
FEE T 14109%
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

o Total assets increased by 2.1%
Net assets decreased by 10.9%

2015 2016
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Chairman’s Statement

AANERERAEBERRERAR(EARF D)
EEWMBFAR(BREIRAEENDESES
(BEF2)MANEZERREZAKEEE
E-RF+_A=t - HAHLHRFENFE

HE -

—E—-X¥FOkE

BT —RNTF AEBWRABERS494.8
BEEL BREFLH16% KB -_F—FH
FrRMmKBN—F BAAEEEEL - MER
PlanEEzE  REZEHAB - HERESILE
EHEBEREARR  UERRZZ—RFUWE#H
ERERAE(XRD(FIR A RIERE
RAGDKRE  HRNUZRAEFEBERERE
W HEBRERETHAE BEHEFERK K
SEZLOEBR RS EERE S A EP XM
RBAE—FNRFBECEERRERZE -

TE-ARFRTPHEBETRRCRENEE
HECF R =ZRBRREIRARBZEF -
Bk BREAZ BEXRREREEE
BRBEAMPIBERTZEREER  — %
HRE BRABEBEEENIZEXERIEEE
B MRTTEEB SR HBL BB RE &
MERBEEIAAZTERIGRER: RABR
ERERME  TERBMEEE - EBEEX
REENHES T AEEZEXNERER
FrH AREGRFREBRRBRER &
(KR ARFEIBBEOFT  BREEER
MEZERREDAE TEXBHRAKER
R NRBATAIFEES  BERABASTE
2 SBAREEEREETTHEER -

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“Lansen” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016 of the
Group to all shareholders of the Company.

Review of 2016

Looking back to 2016, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately US$94.8 million, an increase of 1.6% over last year.
Following a challenging 2015, Lansen’s transformation continued.
The new products, such as Fillderm, Bio-Rad diagnostic reagent and
Sicorten Plus cream, were still in the input period. Also in 2016, the
Group acquired the equity interest of Natural Dailyhealth Holdings
Limited (“Natural Dailyhealth”) (formerly known as Haotian Holdings
Limited) to jointly develop healthcare business via the platform of
Natural Dailyhealth and make adjustments to its structure as well as
capacity. At the same time, the Group'’s core product Pafulin used in the
rheumatology and autoimmune market maintained a steady growth and
development over the past year.

The year 2016 was also highlighted by the comprehensive development
of in-depth reform of the pharmaceutical industry in China. It was also
the beginning year of the “13th Five-year Plan of Medical Reform”.
Various policies and regulations were issued successively by the State
Council, National Health and Family Planning Commission and China
Food and Drug Administration. In terms of quality control, consistency
assessment, clinical data self-inspection and process verification were
conducted to facilitate the survival of the fittest in the industry; further
adjustments to health insurance by unifying the two separate systems
for urban and rural residents and medicare directory expedited the
progress of “Medical Insurance for Everyone”; the circulation inspection
was launched in order to accelerate the reconstruction of the industry
structure. Thanks to the medical policy reform, the development of
the pharmaceutical industry in China continues to grow in a steady
manner. The Group also followed on a timely basis the national
policies and regulations. Under the “All-round Autoimmune and
Healthcare” strategy, the Group laid a solid foundation for its long-term
development by further exploration in the advantageous rheumatology
and autoimmune segment, refinement of business layout and product
structure, enhancement of scientific and research innovation and
optimisation of the management of its internal talent.

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 9 )
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Chairman’s Statement

AEBERIZEBARR LR B ER Z
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EEEER BEMEITR NEBEEM
i MBE— EBEAE-FHE UK
EmATIEHENR FEFITHERANE
BERE - MAHOE - ISREBERIIELNG
tE - REBEBUFERSTFE  FAEEERM
PARBE - IR XM SR - B R E R K #
FEXITTHEEER -

The traditional core business of the Group is specialty pharmaceuticals
used in rheumatology and autoimmune market segments. In 2016,
the Group still maintained a leading position in the rheumatology and
autoimmune segment. The major product Pafulin sustained steady
growth. In addition, the Group will increase medical research on Pafulin
and carry out a series of mid- and long-term special studies. With the
development of the chronic rheumatism segment, Pafulin will gain
traction at more levels. With the deepening of medical reform, the
pharmaceutical consistency assessment will be a critical factor of market
access in the future. Mycophenolate mofetil capsules and leflunomide
tablets are presently playing the leading role in consistency assessment
projects, laying a solid foundation for the development of these two
products in the future.

The Group has successfully expanded its business from the rheumatology
and autoimmune sectors to dermatology in recent years. In the
dermatology segment, thanks to the emerging sales models of
e-commerce platforms, the cosmeceutical products sustained rapid
growth. Sicorten Plus cream showed significant growth this year. It is
expected that the rapid growth will continue in the coming three years.
With the steady development of medical cosmetic products, a series
of new products will be launched on the medical cosmetic platform
to refine the industry chain and to ensure the long-term and steady
development and revenue for this platform.

In addition, in order to strengthen the growth of the healthcare business,
after rectification and direction adjustment during the year, the Group
will carry out restructuring of internal resources, set up a Natural
Dailyhealth healthcare platform, develop plans for productivity and
products, maintain strict control over quality, specify market orientation
and solve problems such as product complexity, single market and single
business model. With major products as the main sales direction and
customised products as the source of profit growth, the Group will
increase exports and strengthen cooperation with domestic and foreign
pharmaceutical enterprises. With the Natural Dailyhealth platform, the
Group will make use of its capacity and cost advantages to expedite
technology transformation and lay a solid foundation for its future in the
healthcare segment.

1 O Annual Report 2016 F#f
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Lansen’s associate, Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Company Limited,
("Starry”), was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in March 2016.
This investment has generated potentially significant capital appreciation
for Lansen from the original book value; however, as Starry is equity
accounted in Lansen, such potential gains are not reflected in the
accounts. Subsequent to the reporting date, on 15 March 2017, Lansen
announced the disposal of 4,175,000 shares in Starry, and its holding in
Starry was reduced from 16.1% to 12.6%. The gross disposal proceeds to
Lansen were approximately US$26.04 million and the net gain (pre-tax)
on this disposal attributable to the Group were approximately US$19.08
million.

Outlook for 2017

Although the pharmaceutical industry faces various challenges from the
in-depth industrial reform in the short term, the Group believes that
with higher industry entry criteria, the competitive structure is sure to
be further optimised. In the medium and long run, the pharmaceutical
industry is still a sunrise industry and the pharmaceutical market size can
be further expanded. The Group will maintain its strategy of “All-round
Autoimmune and Healthcare”. Despite the challenging environment,
the Group will strive to obtain a favourable position in the market and
achieve sustainable and steady growth.

The Group will continue to focus on the pharmaceutical platform,
and is committed to specialty pharmaceuticals for the rheumatology
and dermatology and autoimmune market segments. The Group is
committed to maintaining its leading market position by optimising
sales and marketing to increase brand awareness of its products. By
utilising traditional business resources and social network marketing,
in combination with digital technology, the Group will vertically and
horizontally exert influence on doctors, patients and consumers,
comprehensively extend and strengthen the relationship among
hospitals, doctors and patients. Meanwhile, it will closely follow the
national strategic orientation and explore new industrial development
models.

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 1 )
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Stephen Burnau Hunt

TE

HE —F—tF=A=1H

The Group will strategically develop the medical cosmetic platform into
another growth driver in order to broaden its income source. It will
concentrate itself on improving the quality of two products, namely
Comfy Collagen Dressing (Kefumei) and Fillderm medical collagen filler,
as well as the service of the medical cosmetic segment and enhance
cooperation with hospitals and institutions in large and medium cities
to achieve a win-win situation. With regard to the introduction of new
products, the Group will seek special products of high quality that match
with its development strategy to ensure the development of a vertical
chain with the existing products.

Looking forward into the future, the Group will proactively seize the
opportunities ushered in by China’s national strategy — “Healthy China”
and strive to provide quality products and services to doctors and patients
in China, create an ideal employment environment and quality life for
employees, acquire superior investments for partners and shareholders
while fulfilling its social responsibility.

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately US$94.8 million (2015:
US$93.3 million) for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing an
increase of 1.6% over last year. The annual profit reached US$3.8 million
(2015: US$2.1 million), increased by 85.2% over last year.

The revenue of the pharmaceuticals segment increased by 8.9% over
last year, while the segment profit increased by 10.3%. The three major
specialty products of Lansen recorded a total revenue of US$51.2 million
(2015: US$51.1 million), increased by 6.6% over last year, after deducting
the impact of RMB depreciation.

The revenue of Pafulin, the core pharmaceutical product of Lansen,
reached US$43.8 million (2015: US$43.4 million), increased by 7.6% over
last year, after deducting the impact of RMB depreciation. Sicorten Plus
cream was launched into the market in the name of Lansen this year and
the revenue reached US$4.7 million.

The revenue from medical cosmetics products increased by 109.3% over
last year while the segment profit increased by 882.4%. The significant
growth was due to the sales of the new product Fillderm medical
collagen filler during the year. At the same time, revenue from the Comfy
Collagen Dressing (Kefumei) and Yuze skincare products also increased
significantly as compared to the corresponding period last year.

The Group acquired shares from Natural Dailyhealth to jointly develop
the healthcare business. Due to structural and capacity adjustments, the
revenue from the healthcare products segment dropped by 51.8% over
last year. In order to clear inventories, some stocks were sold below cost.
The segment profit recorded a loss of US$1.1 million.

Traditional medicine segment

A series of development policies regarding traditional Chinese medicine
including the Outline of Traditional Chinese Medicine Development
Strategy (2016—2030) and Outline of “Healthy China 2030" were issued
in 2016, which placed emphasis on the revitalisation and development
of traditional Chinese medicine. Besides, the White Paper: Traditional
Chinese Medicine in China was published by the State Council on
6 December 2016, which indicated that the country attached great
importance to traditional Chinese medicine as a national strategy
and showed the determination of boosting the revitalisation and
development of traditional Chinese medicine. At present, the National
People’s Congress is actively promoting the review of Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Traditional Chinese Medicine for further regulation
and development of traditional Chinese medicine in the future. So far,
the promotion of traditional Chinese medicine has been set as a national
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strategy and a long-term development plan has been formulated, which
indicates that the country has attached great importance to traditional
Chinese medicine and is determined to develop traditional Chinese
medicine. Therefore, the traditional Chinese medicine industry has a
promising future.

To keep pace with the country’s policy of developing traditional
Chinese medicine, the Group and Sinopharm Group reached strategic
cooperation and the new product compound Xuelian capsule was
introduced in 2016. The product is Chinese patent medicine made from a
classic traditional prescription with Saussurea (Xuelian) added to enhance
the detoxifying effects. It is mainly applicable to rheumatic arthritis,
ankylosing spondylitis and different types of degenerative osteoarthritis.
Management believes that with the Group’s leading position in the
rheumatology and autoimmune markets and the cooperation with
Sinopharm Group, Xuelian is sure to be one of the Group’s next drivers
of business growth.

Meanwhile, the Group maintained its leading position in the
rheumatology and autoimmune segment while the core product
Pafulin sustained steady growth. With the development in the chronic
rheumatism segment, Pafulin will gain traction at more levels. Input
to medical research on Pafulin was expanded and different research
projects were carried out to identify more treatment indications. Besides,
with the deepening of medical reform, the pharmaceutical consistency
assessment will be a critical factor of market access in the future.
Mycophenolate mofetil capsules and leflunomide tablets have a solid
foundation for development. These two products are presently playing
the leading role in consistency assessment projects. In addition, the
Group achieved breakthroughs in the dermatology segment. The sales of
Sicorten Plus cream started in the name of Lansen this year and the sales
growth is promising.

Medical cosmetics segment

In 2016, the Group focused on expediting the development of the
medical cosmetics segment, attached great importance to medical
cosmetics product lines and actively diversified these product lines so
as to ensure the long-term steady development and revenue for this
segment.
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The sales model of Comfy Collagen Dressing (Kefumei) integrated such
sales channels as hospitals and the Internet. Despite market competition,
the product was recognised, recommended and used by medical
experts. In combination with the regulation of the online sales price, the
market share of the product kept enlarging while the brand and product
gained a better reputation.

Fillderm medical collagen filler is well poised for growth. Fillderm
Academy Training Bases were successively established in Shanghai,
Beijing, Chengdu and Guangzhou. The team building and training
of injection experts are increasingly mature while more research and
exploration of injection technology are being carried out. The brand and
product awareness have been raised through We Media. The products
have shown great strength in skin restoration, whitening and smoothing,
filling creases and lightening dark circles to achieve the facial rejuvenation
effects by tackling the basic skin problems. The positioning of our natural
collagen product for facial rejuvenation and healthiness is sharp and
clear.

The development of medical cosmetics industry is based on the biological
cosmetics segment. The medical cosmetics industry and the biological
cosmetics segment have influence on each other. The medical cosmetics
industry serves the biological beauty segment while the latter brings
customers to the former and supports the business development of
the industry. Fully aware of these facts, in 2016, the Group not only
focused on medical cosmetics products during introduction of product
lines, but also actively sought biological cosmetics products. Apart from
local manufacturers and R&D enterprises, it also proactively reached
and communicated with other manufacturers in Japan, South Korea,
Taiwan, Europe and America so as to find and introduce new brands and
products in line with the Group’s development plan and strategy in the
coming three years to diversify the sources of revenue.

In 2017, the operation of medical cosmetics in China shows five
characteristics and trends. Firstly, an embryonic form will be developed
with quick expansion of large institutions and capital intervention in large
and medium cities, resulting in operating pressure for medical cosmetics
institutions to be in full swing. Secondly, the fierce pricing competition
will continue and low profit is an irresistible trend. Thirdly, the industry
will show an increasingly strong demand for quality medical equipment.
Fourthly, special institutions in micro-segments will start to manifest their
charms. Fifthly, there will be no fundamental change in illegal medical
practice.
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Looking ahead, the Group will concentrate itself on improving the quality
of its two products, namely the Comfy Collagen Dressing (Kefumei) and
Fillderm medical collagen filler, as well as service of the medical cosmetics
segment and enhance cooperation with hospitals and institutions in
large and medium cities to achieve a win-win situation. With regard to
the introduction of new products, the Group will seek special products
of high quality that match with its development strategy to ensure the
development of a vertical chain with its existing products.

All-round healthcare business

With people’s increasing healthcare awareness, their concerns on
disease shift from treatment to prevention. Under the influence of this
new medical mode, functional or active plant extract products are
highly favoured. At present, the plant extract industry is under rapid
development, which even has outperformed the development of drugs.
The industry has gained wide recognition around the world. After several
industrial reforms and enhancement of GMP regulations, the plant
extract industry in China has realised comprehensive improvement in
both size and quality.

The Group will carry out restructuring of internal resources, make
adjustments to orientation, enhance the development and regulation
of its healthcare product business, adopt Natural Dailyhealth as the
healthcare platform, develop plans for productivity and products
and maintain strict control over quality. In 2017, customised products
will be another source of profit growth. With major products as the
sales direction, the Group will strengthen stable cooperation with
local and foreign pharmaceutical enterprises, increase exports and
solve such problems as product complexity, single market and single
business model. The Group will make further investment and continue
the reconstruction of Natural Dailyhealth in order to accelerate the
technological transformation, give full play to its strengths in productivity
and cost control and lay a solid foundation for its healthcare segment.

Listing of Starry

On 9 March 2016, Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Starry”), an associate of the Group, was successfully listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with the stock code of 603520 at an offering
price of RMB12.15. On 30 March 2017, the market value per share was
RMB41.02.

Starry is a leading enterprise in China for the production of active
ingredient used in X-CT non-ionic contrast agent, and its production
and sales volume of active ingredient used in iohexol ranks first in China.
Upon listing of Starry, 16.1% of the total issued share capital of Starry
was indirectly held by the Group. The Group guaranteed that it would
not sell any of Starry’s shares within one year from the date of its listing.
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On 15 March 2017, the Group has disposed of a total of 4,175,000
shares in Starry via on-market block trade sales on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The total consideration for the disposal to Lansen was
approximately US$26.04 million. The net gain (pre-tax) on the disposal
attributable to the Group is approximately US$19.08 million. As a result
of the disposal, the Group’s holding in Starry has reduced from 16.1%
to 12.6%. According to a share reduction plan announced on 9 March
2017, Lansen may, subject to the on-market block trading price of Starry,
dispose of further shares in Starry up to approximately 8.05% in Starry
and reduce its holding in Starry by half to 8.05% within six months from
15 March 2017.

Financial Review

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of US$94.8 million (2015: US$93.3 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing an increase of 1.6%
over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from pharmaceuticals
amounted to US$64.5 million (31 December 2015: US$59.2 million),
representing an increase of 8.9% over the corresponding period last
year. Revenue from medical cosmetics products amounted to US$18.0
million (31 December 2015: US$8.6 million), representing an increase
of 109.3% over the corresponding period last year. Revenue from
healthcare products amounted to US$12.3 million (31 December 2015:
US$25.5 million), representing a decrease of 51.8% over last year.

Pafulin, the core specialty pharmaceutical product, recorded a revenue
of US$43.8 million (2015: US$43.4 million), if the factor of RMB
depreciation is excluded, the revenue increased by 7.6%. The sales of
Sicorten Plus cream in the name of Lansen has been commenced during
this year, a revenue of US$4.7 million was recorded. The revenue of the
medical cosmetics products also increased substantially. Fillderm medical
collagen filler, a new product, was sold during the year, while Kefumei
and Yuze both experienced a greater growth over the corresponding
period last year.

Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a gross profit
of US$53.8 million (2015: US$48.0 million), representing an increase of
12.1% over the corresponding period last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the overall gross profit margin
was 56.7% (2015: 51.4%), representing an increase of 5.3% over the
corresponding period last year.
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The increase in overall gross profit margin as compared to last year
was mainly attributable to the changes in product sales mix. The sales
proportion of healthcare products, which have lower gross profit
margins, to the total revenue decreased from 27.3% in 2015 to 13.0% in
2016.

Other Income

Other income amounted to US$2.1 million (2015: US$5.3 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2016, representing an decrease of 59.7%
over last year, which was mainly because there was no transition income
in 2016. Transition income represented the transfer of profit generated
from the sales of pharmaceutical product of Novartis. Other income also
included the government grants, which primarily came from the local
government and were partly used as recognition of the Group’s efforts in
developing high-technology pharmaceutical products.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the selling and distribution
expenses of the Group increased by 7.7% to US$29.3 million from
US$27.2 million in the corresponding period last year. The proportion of
the selling and distribution expenses of the Group to the total revenue
of the Group increased by 1.8%. It was 30.9% for the year ended 31
December 2016 as compared to 29.1% in the corresponding period last
year.

Management believed that the marketing model and academic
promotional advantages of pharmaceuticals and medical cosmetics
products are the key factors in maintaining its leading market
position. The Group endeavoured to enhance market recognition of
pharmaceutical and medical cosmetics products and actively launched
patient education activities. By organising academic conferences across
China, doctors and users were able to have a better understanding of the
pharmacology, efficacy and benefits of these products.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to US$17.4 million (2015: US$12.2 million), representing an
increase of 42.6% over last year. The proportion of the administrative
expenses of the Group to the total revenue of the Group increased by
5.3% to 18.4% for the year ended 31 December 2016 from 13.1% in the
corresponding period last year. The increase was mainly due to inflation,
expansion of the Group’s scale of operation, commencement of sales
of Sicorten Plus cream and establishment of new companies and offices
in Shanghai and Beijing. Other reasons included write off of intangible
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assets of US$1.5 million (2015: US$0.1 million), loss on deemed disposal
of an associate of US$0.3 million (2015: nil) and exchange loss of US$0.1
million (2015: exchange gain of US$0.1 million).

Administrative penalty and other related expenses of ginkgo
products

In 2015, according to the investigation of the China Food and Drug
Administration and relevant regulatory authorities in China, the
production and sales of sub-standard ginkgo tablets by Ningbo Liwah
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo Liwah") were determined to
be in breach of relevant rules and regulations in China. An administrative
penalty of RMB18.29 million (equivalent to approximately US$2.9 million)
was imposed on Ningbo Liwah.

In 2016, the other related expenses arising from the ginkgo incident
amounted to RMB9.14 million (equivalent to approximately US$1.4
million) (2015: RMB6.38 million (equivalent to approximately US$1.0
million)), mainly attributable to the compensation to the customers of
ginkgo tablets.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2016, finance costs of the Group
basically remained flat, mainly due to there was no material change in
average bank borrowings.

Share of post-tax profit of associates
Share of post-tax profit of associates for the year ended 31 December
2016 amounted to US$1.5 million (2015: US$2.2 million).

Income tax expense

Ningbo Liwah and Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction Technology Limited
(“Liwah Zhiti”) obtained the certification as high technology enterprises
and enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “EIT Law”) and the implementation rules of the income tax
law, except for Ningbo Liwah and Liwah Zhiti, the enterprise income tax
rate for other subsidiaries in the PRC was 25%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to US$3.8 million, representing an increase
by 85.2% or US$1.8 million from US$2.0 million in the corresponding
period last year.
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Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group primarily finances its working capital and other capital
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and resorts
to external financing including bank borrowings from time to time when
the operating cash flow is insufficient to meet capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2016, net current liabilities and current ratio of
the Group were approximately US$13.5 million (31 December 2015:
net current assets of US$2.6 million) and 0.9 (31 December 2015: 1.0)
respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to US$10.1 million (31 December 2015: US$19.0 million). As
at 31 December 2016, the Group had pledged bank deposits of US$27.1
million (31 December 2015: US$23.8million) to secure bank borrowings.

The Group's borrowings as at 31 December 2016 amounted to US$105.1
million (31 December 2015: US$89.9 million).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s net debt-to-equity ratio was
75.1% (31 December 2015: 46.5%), calculated by net debt (borrowings
minus cash and bank balances) at the end of the year over total equity.

The exposure of the Group’s transactional currency to foreign currency
risk was minimal as most of the financial assets and liabilities held by the
subsidiaries of the Group are denominated in the respective functional
currency of the subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have any
foreign currency hedging policy. However, management would closely
monitor foreign exchange exposure and consider hedging foreign
currency exposure when necessary.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2016, certain bank deposits and bills receivables in
an aggregate carrying amount of US$31.1 million (31 December 2015:
US$29.1 million) and Starry’s listed shares with market value amounting
to US$100.1 million (31 December 2015: Nil) were pledged to secure
banking facilities and banking borrowings of the Group and bank
borrowings of a fellow subsidiary.
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Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the financial statements amounted to US$0.7 million
(31 December 2015: US$11.9 million).

Contingent liabilities

Litigation

On 6 July 2015, the Company announced that according to an
announcement published by the holding company of Shenzhen
Neptunus Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Claimant”), the
Claimant, as the Plaintiff, has initiated legal proceedings (the “Litigation”)
against Ningbo Liwah, the Company’s subsidiary. On 24 August 2015,
Ningbo Liwah received the writ in relation to the Litigation. On 15
October 2015, Ningbo Liwah and the Claimant exchanged evidences
in the preliminary stage. In the Litigation, the Claimant alleged that it
had suffered certain losses due to the use of ginkgo extract supplied by
Ningbo Liwah in Claimant’s products. The Claimant is therefore seeking
damages of approximately RMB70 million (approximately US$10.1 million
as at 31 December 2016) from Ningbo Liwah, as well as relevant legal
fees. The Group has sought preliminary opinion on the Litigation from
its legal counsel in the PRC, who, based on the information available as
of the date of the consolidated financial statements, is of the opinion
that the amount claimed by the Claimant is highly disputable. However,
as the Group is not able to reliably assess the amount of provision, the
Group has not made any provision against this Litigation. The Company
will, in accordance with the applicable laws, make every effort to protect
its interests and its shareholders’ interests, actively respond to the case
and defend its position vigorously. The Company will closely monitor
the development of this matter and make further announcements if and
when there are any significant developments in relation to it.

Financial guarantee issued

The Group has issued the guarantee to a bank in respect of borrowings
made by Jilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology Company Limited
(“Jilin Haizi"), a fellow subsidiary of the Group. Under the guarantee,
the Group is liable for a maximum of RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to
US$18,740,000) borrowings drawn by Jilin Haizi from the bank. As at
31 December 2016, the Directors did not consider it is probable that
a claim will be made against the Group under any of the guarantees,
the likelihood of Jilin Haizi defaulting on repayments of its borrowing
is remote. There has been no default or non-repayment since the
utilisation of the banking facilities. The maximum liability of the Group
at 31 December 2016 under the guarantee issued represents the
amount drawn down by Jilin Haizi of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to
US$14,415,000) (31 December 2015: Nil).
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Material acquisitions and disposals

On 15 March 2017, the Group has disposed of a total of 4,175,000
shares in Starry via on-market block trade sales on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The total consideration for the disposal to Lansen was
approximately US$26.04 million. The net gain (pre-tax) on the disposal
attributable to the Group is approximately US$19.08 million. As a result
of the disposal, the Group’s holding in Starry has reduced from 16.1%
to 12.6%. According to a share reduction plan announced on 9 March
2017, Lansen may, subject to the on-market block trading price of Starry,
dispose of further shares in Starry up to approximately 8.05% in Starry
and reduce its holding in Starry by half to 8.05% within six months from
15 March 2017.

Human resources

The Group had over 830 employees as at 31 December 2016 with the
employee costs of US$14.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. Staff remuneration of the Group, including salary, allowances,
medical insurance and provident fund, is determined with reference to
individual performance, professional qualifications, experience in the
industry and relevant market trends.

Salaries of employees of the Group have been maintained at a
competitive level and are reviewed annually, with reference to the
relevant labour market and economic conditions. The Group provides
career advancement training in the form of internal courses and
workshops for the staff and encourages them to participate in training
programmes related to the Group’s business.
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Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Bang Min, age 46, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of our Company. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall
business strategy and corporate development of our Group. Mr. Liu
joined our Group in September 2012 and has over 20 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liu
worked with GlaxoSmithKline China, Wyeth Pharmaceutical China
and Abbott China. He is experienced in the field of rheumatology and
the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
medical imaging from Zhejiang University School of Medicine (formerly
Zhejiang Medical University) in 1993 and a master’s degree in business
administration from China Europe International Business School in
November 2016.

Mr. HOU Song, age 41, is an executive Director and the chief financial
officer of the Company. Mr. Hou joined the Group in September
2015. Mr. Hou has over 15 years of experience in finance, accounting
and corporate management in Hong Kong and mainland China. Mr.
Hou has many years of experience in financial management in large
pharmaceutical companies. He had worked as deputy finance officer of
the Company from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Hou graduated from Sun Yat-sen
University with a bachelor of economics degree in accounting in 2000
and, in 2015, obtained a MBA degree in the MBA Program in Finance
offered by The Chinese University of Hong Kong in collaboration with
Tsinghua University. Mr. Hou is a qualified accountant in the People’s
Republic of China.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, age 63, is a non-executive Director and chairman
of our Company. He is also executive Chairman and is the Chairman of
the Executive and Remuneration Committees of Cathay International
Holdings Limited (“Cathay”), a company listed on the London Stock
Exchange and founder of the Cathay Group, which has over 20 years’
history of business and investment focused on the PRC. He was born
and educated in Beijing. He graduated from the Beijing University of
Technology in 1982. He also has a degree in Business Administration.
Mr. Wu acted as a senior executive in government scientific institutes
in the PRC from 1982 to 1985 and as managing director of two newly
established state owned financial institutions in the PRC from 1986
to 1989. Since 1988 Mr. Wu has, through companies, invested in and
developed the Landmark Hotel (now called Crowne Plaza Hotel &
Suites Landmark Shenzhen) in Shenzhen and established the Cathay
International Water Limited group of companies, which made substantial
investments in public utility and infrastructure in the PRC. Strategic
shareholders were JP Morgan, Singapore Technologies, UBS, Banco
Santander and Nomura JAFCO, and this business was once the largest
foreign investor in water and waste water treatment projects in the PRC
with net assets of over US$1 billion.

Mr. Stephen Burnau HUNT, age 77, is a non-executive Director
and former chairman of our Company. Mr. Hunt joined the Cathay
International Group in 1992. He is the deputy chairman and a non-
executive director of Cathay International Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Hunt was formerly the
managing director of Aliant Capital, an investment company in Hong
Kong. Mr. Hunt, a US citizen, spent 24 years with Bank of America in
international management and lending positions. Mr. Hunt was senior
vice president and area general manager for Bank of America located
in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt was president of the American Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong in 1989. In 1990, Mr. Hunt was appointed to
the Hong Kong Government’s International Business Committee, and
from 1989 to 1991 was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s
Advisory Committee on Free Trade. Mr. Hunt is currently a trustee of
the American Chamber of Commerce’s Charitable Foundation. Mr. Hunt
also served as a member of the Main Board and GEM Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange from November 2004 to June 2011. From 2012
to 2015, Mr. Hunt was a director and Chief Executive Officer of Solar
Plus (HK) Limited, a private investment company incorporated in Hong
Kong. Mr. Hunt obtained a bachelor of arts degree from Duke University
in 1961 and a master’s degree in international affairs from Columbia
University in 1963.
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Mr. LEE Jin Yi, age 59, is a non-executive Director and deputy chairman
of our Company. Mr. Lee joined the CIH Group in January 2010 and is
the chief executive officer of CIH. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in
the banking industry and held various senior management positions
with major financial institutions over the past 20 years. Mr. Lee has been
a director of Xiamen City Commercial Bank. Prior to joining the CIH
Group, Mr. Lee was the managing director and chief executive officer of
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited for five and a half years and a director
of Fubon Financial Holding Company Limited. Prior to that, Mr. Lee was
the managing director and China senior country officer of J.P. Morgan
Chase & Co. and chairman of the Hong Kong Management Committee
of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. Mr. Lee was appointed as an independent
director of Taichung Bank on 22 June 2011. Taichung Bank is listed on
Taiwan Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Harvard University in 1984.

Mr. TANG Jun, age 57, is a former non-executive Director of our
Company. Mr. Tang joined the CIH Group in 1994 and has been working
in the business development department, responsible for exploring
investment opportunities in the pharmaceutical industries. Currently,
Mr. Tang is the vice president and head of business development of the
CIH Group. Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor of philosophy degree from
Hangzhou University in 1982, a master of philosophy degree from Beijing
Normal University in 1986 and a licentiate degree in law from Lapland
University, Finland in 1993.

Ms. LIU Xue Zi, age 40, is a non-executive Director of our Company.
Ms. Liu joined Cathay International Holdings Limited in 2002 and has
been working in the corporate development department and asset
management department. She is currently vice president and co-head of
asset management of Cathay. Ms. Liu have over 14 years of experience
in mergers and acquisitions and asset management. Before joining
Cathay, Ms. Liu was head of the Asia-Pacific region of a US network
infrastructure company, responsible for the start-up and expansion of
the company’s business in Asia. Ms. Liu graduated from the School
of Economics of University of San Francisco, majoring in business
administration, in 1999.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael, age 65, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group on 9
April 2010. He has over 33 years’ experience in external audit, IT audit,
training, accounting and finance, company secretarial and corporate
administration, MIS management, internal audit, information security,
risk management and compliance. Mr. Chan is a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants; and a fellow and specialist in
information technology of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is also associate or
member of the following professional bodies: The Hong Kong Computer
Society and the Life Management Institute. He is also a certified
information systems auditor with the Information Systems Audit and
Control Association and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Chan is the chief executive of C&C Advisory Services Limited, senior
advisor of New Frontier Computer Systems Limited and was an adjunct
professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University from 1 September 2010 to 31 August 2014. On
19 February 2016, Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of K.H. Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1557).
He was also being appointed as an independent non-executive Director
and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Huarong Investment Stock
Corporation Ltd. (formerly Chun Sing Engineering Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 2277) on 10 June 2016. Mr. Chan has worked at CMG Life
Assurance Limited (formerly Jardine CMG Life Assurance Limited) from
1991 to 1996 and his last position was general manager, compliance. He
was the head of internal audit of Dao Heng Bank/Guoco Group Limited
from 1996 to 2000, the head of compliance in Greater China, managing
director of DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from 2001 to 2003, the group
financial controller of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to
2005, the director of Quality Assurance of HKICPA in 2006 and the head
of group compliance of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Limited from December 2006 to April 2009. Mr. Chan graduated with a
higher diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1976.
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Mr. TANG Chiu Ping, Raymond, age 68, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Tang joined our Group on 9
April 2010. He has been in the executive search field since 1985 when
he joined the Hong Kong office of Russell Reynolds Associates. Mr. Tang
was formerly chairman, Greater China at Russell Reynolds Associates
until late 2008 when he retired from the industry. Mr. Tang was educated
in the United States at Tufts University in Boston, Massachusetts where
he obtained a bachelor of arts degree in 1972; and he graduated with
a master’s degree in public health from the Yale University School of
Medicine in New Haven, Connecticut in 1975. Mr. Tang has served as
a member of non-governmental organisations such as the Hong Kong
Council of Academic Accreditation and Vocational Qualifications.

Mr. Fritz Heinrich HORLACHER, age 67, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Horlacher joined our Group
on 10 February 2011. He has over 30 years’' experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Horlacher started his pharmaceutical
career with Roche Australia in 1974. Mr. Horlacher worked at Zuellig
Pharma Asia Pacific (“Zuellig Pharma”) from 1981 to 2008 and was the
chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma from 1995 to 2008. He was
responsible for its operations servicing more than 125 international
research-based pharmaceutical manufacturers in the Asia Pacific region.
Mr. Horlacher retired as chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma in 2008.
From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Horlacher was an alternate director of Invida
Group Pte Ltd. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive director of Australian
Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (a company listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange) from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Horlacher was the Asia
representative on the board of directors of the International Federation
of Pharmaceutical Wholesalers from 2002 to 2008. He was regional
director of Asia for the Pharmaceutical Wholesale Division of Alliance
Boots and was also a director and chairman of the Board of Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Corporation from 2011 to 2013. Mr. Horlacher was a
non-executive member of the Advisory Board of BSN Medical, a global
medical device company based in Hamburg, Germany, from January
2013 to August 2015. Mr. Horlacher graduated in 1969 from Montana
Institute in Switzerland and from Union College in South Africa in 1972.
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Senior Management

Mr. DU Du, age 39, is the business development director of the Group.
Mr. Du joined the Group in June 2015 and has 17 years of working
experience in pharmaceutical distribution. He had worked for ten years
(seven years and three years in Pfizer and Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma
Co., Ltd. respectively) in pharmaceutical commerce. He had worked in
Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma as manager of national commerce. Mr.
Du graduated from Southwest Jiaotong University with a post-graduate
MBA degree in 2014.

Mr. ZHAO Yu, age 44, is the Group human resources director who
has over 19 years' human resources management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining the Lansen Group, he worked at
Pfizer, Roche and Merck in senior human resources positions. Mr. Zhao
obtained a bachelor’s degree in business management from Renmin
University of China in 1996.

Mr. TANG Taibin, age 46, is the general manager of Ningbo Lansen.
Mr. Tang joined the Group in August, 2015 and has over 18 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in GlaxoSmithKline (China) as general manager of anti-allergy
department. Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in geography from
Nanjing University in 1992 and an EMBA from the Lingnan College of
Sun Yat-sen University in 2014.

Mr. HONG Zhou, age 48, is the general manager of Ningbo Liwah.
Mr. Hong joined our Group in November 2015 and has over 25 years’
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Hong previously worked
for Jiangxi Food and Drug Administration, Novartis, Bayer and Abbott.
Mr. Hong obtained his bachelor’s degree in analytical chemistry from
Jiangxi University (now Nanchang University) in 1989.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associate are set out in Notes 18 and 30 to the
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 89.

An interim dividend of HK4.02 cents (approximately US0.52 cents) per
share amounting to HK$16,683,000 (approximately US$2,150,000) in
aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK3.66 cents (approximately US0.47 cents) per share to the shareholders
on the register of members of the Company on 22 June 2017, amounting
to HK$15,189,000 (approximately US$1,959,000) in aggregate, subject
to approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 24 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to US$13,748,000. Details of the movements
in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in Note 23 to
the financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 24.4% of the Group's
total sales and sales from the largest customer included therein
amounted to 8.6% (2015: 4.6%).

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 38.0% (2015: 43.2%) of the Group’s
total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 14.6% (2015: 10.2%).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate of a Director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has an
interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hou Song (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
(appointed on 30 March 2017)
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt
(resigned on 30 March 2017 as Chairman but remains as a Director)

Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Tang Jun (resigned on 30 March 2017)

Ms. Liu Xuezi

Ms. Tao Fang Fang (resigned on 30 March 2016)

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca (resigned on 30 March 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt, Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and Mr. Fritz Heinrich
Horlacher will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM") has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

BECRT LEXQRDHBT

EEME g5 ZERHAE BARZED L

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of Director Capacity shares held Company

FEMRESE EmEAA 500,000 0.12%
Mr. Lee Jin Yi Beneficial owner (7 7E)
(Long position)

Stephen Burnau Hunt %t & Em#EBA 100,000 0.02%
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt Beneficial owner (57 8)

BEXAEEEN RE—RF+_A=+
—B BEEE ESTBRAEBREBEA
RA R A EAL A E A B 2 A B - 48
MEkhERETHREREZSLATED
FEI2ERATURBEZEAREIORR - R
BEITETABEZTETESFRINERETR
BAAMEARF MR M ZERNERIRR -

(Long position)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief Executive nor
their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2016 which was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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Directors’ Share Options in Cathay International

Holdings Limited

Cathay International Holdings Limited (“CIH"), the Company’s ultimate
holding company, operates share option plan for the purpose of aligning
the interests of executives and employees with those of shareholders of
CIH and to enable the development of CIH and its subsidiaries’ business
by attracting, retaining and motivating personnel with appropriate skills.
Mr. Lee Jin Yi, Mr. Tang Jun, Ms. Liu Xuezi, Ms. Yip Pui Ling Rebecca and
Ms. Tao Fang Fang, the directors of the Company, were granted share
options in the capacity as employees of CIH. The share option plan of
CIH was adopted on 3 June 2010 and unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

Details of the share options granted to the Company’s directors to
subscribe for shares in CIH were as follows:

BREHE
Number of share options
R=ZZ—XF R-ZTB—XF BRE iR
ESnA —A—H FRA¥ +t=A=+—-0 RHEBEH BRETESD TRE
At Lapsed At Date of Exercise price
1 January during the 31 December grant of Exercise period of of share
Name of Director 2016 year 2016 share options share options options
(Bt ZEa) (E+)
(Note a) (pence)
TEEEE 2,300,000 — 2,300,000 —E—=—FMmMWAHA=H —E-hFMA=HZE 29.88
Mr. Lee Jin Yi —T—tFMAZH
3 April 2012 3 April 2015 to 2 April 2017
2,000,000 (2,000,000) — ZE—=F=ZA=++tH ZE-R"F=-A=+tHZE
—T-N\F=A=+H
27 March 2013 27 March 2016 to 26 March 2018 32.55
4,142,353 — 4,142,353 —ZE—MFEMA—H —E—tEFEWMA-HAE
—E-AF=A=t—8
1 April 2014 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019 37.275
2,250,000 — 2,250,000 —F—RAF=A=+—H ZE-N\F=ZA=+—H=%
—T-TF=A=+H
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020 20.00
10,692,353 (2,000,000) 8,692,353
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BRERE
Number of share options
RZT—XF REZZB—XF BRE B AR
EEpnE —H—8 FRE¥ t=HA=+—B RHHEH BRETESRE THEE
At Lapsed At Date of Exercise price
1 January during the 31 December grant of Exercise period of of share
Name of Director 2016 year 2016 share options share options options
(Fff zEa) (E+)
(Note a) (pence)
mEEAE 200,000 — 200,000 —E—=—FMWA=H —E-RAFEWMA=HZE 29.88
Mr. Tang Jun —ZE—+tEWAZH
3 April 2012 3 April 2015 to 2 April 2017
160,000 (160,000) — —E—=FZA=-t++tB ZE—XR"E=ZA=-++tH= 32.55
—T-N\F=A=+RH
27 March 2013 27 March 2016 to 26 March 2018
320,000 — 320,000 —=—WFW@A—H —E-tFMA—HZE 37.275
—T-hF=A=+—H
1 April 2014 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019
200,000 — 200,000 —E—HF=A=+—H ZZE—\F=A=+—H=Z 20.00
—E-TF=A=+H
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
880,000 (160,000) 720,000
BEEx+ 360,000 — 360,000 —E——FMA=H S Sy = 29.88
Ms. Liu Xuezi —E—-tEFMA=H
3 April 2012 3 April 2015 to 2 April 2017
240,000 (240,000) — ZE—=F=ZA=t++tH ZE—R"FZA=t+tAH=ZE 32.55
T N\F=ZAR=+AH
27 March 2013 27 March 2016 to 26 March 2018
500,000 — 500,000 —ZT—MFMA—H —E-tFMA—HZE 37.275
—ZT—-hF=RA=+—H
1 April 2014 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019
330,000 — 330,000 —E—AF=A=+—H ZZT—N\F=A=+—H=F 20.00
—EZZFE=ZA=+H
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
1,430,000 (240,000) 1,190,000
B Lt 80,000 — 80,000 —T——FMWA=H —T-hAFWEA=AE 29.88
Ms. Yip Pui Ling —T—tHFMAZH
Rebecca 3 April 2012 3 April 2015 to 2 April 2017
40,000 (40,000) — ZZ2—=%=ZA=++R ZZE—R"F=ZA=Z+tHZE 32.55
—ZE-)\F=ZA=+X<H
27 March 2013 27 March 2016 to 26 March 2018
230,000 — 230,000 —ZT—MFMA—H —T-tFWHA-BE 37.275
—T-AF=RA=+—H
1 April 2014 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019
120,000 — 120,000 —ZE—HF=A=+—H Z=2—)/\F=ZA=+—H= 20.00
—E_TFE=ZA=+H
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
470,000 (40,000) 430,000
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BREHE
Number of share options
R-ZZ—XF R-ZB—XRE BRE B BR e
EEpnE —RA—H FRE¥ t=HA=+—B RHEH BRESTESRE TEE
At Lapsed At Date of Exercise price
1 January during the 31 December grant of Exercise period of of share
Name of Director 2016 year 2016 share options share options options
(Fff ZEa) (E+)
(Note a) (pence)
b5 5+ 100,000 — 100,000 —ZE—=—FPMA=H —E-RAFEWMA=HZE 29.88
Ms. Tao Fang Fang —ZE—+tEWAZH
3 April 2012 3 April 2015 to 2 April 2017
60,000 (60,000) — —E—=ZFZA=-t++B ZE—R"E=ZA=-++tH= 32.55
—T-\F=A=+AH
27 March 2013 27 March 2016 to 26 March 2018
130,000 — 130,000 —ZE—WF M A—H —E-tFMA—HZE 37.275
—ET-hF=A=+—H
1 April 2014 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019
100,000 — 100,000 —E—HF=ZA=+—H —Z—N\F=ZA=+—H=Z 20.00
—E-TF=A=+H
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
390,000 (60,000) 330,000
Bt 5 Note:
(@) WBREZSBEHDEREAHE=FHMER " (@) The vesting date of share options is at the expiry of the three year period from

MBS E MR

R Bt oh - RERERIERE - ARF] - HER
XA 3 B AT ] B B 2 Bl Bk (R AR Y A B B AR
RRERZHEZETXNT - BEARBTESAE
BEAARRR S EMEMAR 2 B HERE
HELZHAMESHNE -

EEREXGNh 2R

REBEE R-_T—LF=_A=1THEZ{E
RIFNTESREIR  FHHAHDE174% L E
B AR - RAREFEERS | —8 &
CHEBZ R BB ESN BIEARRE - HiZ
BArE - REMBRRSMBRRAERTNT
FEENHEEZEHENERERAI[ER
EEHEARBGZEARS  HEAH R
FRIFANERMBEREIDABR

EEEYN

RAFER - & AR 2 B A
AEBNERLTEFEABNA DT IR
B -

the date of grant, subject to satisfaction of performance conditions.

Except for the above, at no time during the year was the Company, any
of its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, appointed as a non-executive Director and chairman
of our Company on 30 March 2017, holds approximately 61.74%
of Common and A Shares interests in CIH. Save as disclosed in the
transactions in relation to CIH under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” of this Annual Report, no transaction, arrangement and
contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding company,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors, the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.

RECRT (LHELQASHT

RREB Mz S14 ZRERYE BREZzED L
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held Company
HZEEREZLEENEE(PR)BRAA 1 ey £ 209,820,000 50.56%
(B 2= [ e 58 2 (R ) ]) Beneficial interest (57 R)
Cathay International Pharma Manufacture (Long position)
and Distribution (China) Limited
("Cl Pharma China")
HEEREEEEYRMEEXAR AT 1 HEEEER 209,820,000 50.56%
((HEREEE] Interest of a controlled (7 &)
Cathay International Changchun corporation (Long position)
Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical Limited
("cicn)
BB AR KR 5% (RE) AR A 1 REEE#ER 209,820,000 50.56%
(20 2= B % A ) 3 9 e 28 25 (P D)D) Interest of a controlled (45 2)
Cathay International Biotechnology and corporation (Long position)
Pharmaceutical (China) Limited
("Cl Biotech & Pharma China"”)
BREREEAR AR ((HREREL]) 1 RELEER 209,820,000 50.56%
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited Interest of a controlled (7 8)
("CIP") corporation (Long position)
BHEEREMRMER AR (TEZEEK 1 RELEER 209,820,000 50.56%
AT D) Interest of a controlled (7 8)
Cathay International Biotech Company corporation (Long position)
Limited (“CIB")
Cathay International Holdings Limited 1 I EE RS 209,820,000 50.56%
("CIH") Interest of a controlled (7 8)
corporation (Long position)
Cathay International Enterprises Limited 2 I EE RS 209,820,000 50.56%
("CIE") Interest of a controlled (7 8)
corporation (Long position)
REE 3 E2REERAMARERT 209,820,000 50.56%
Wu Zhen Tao 2@ A (7 8)

Founder of discretionary
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust

(Long position)
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Notes:

(1) These shares are held by ClI Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to
18% by CIC and 82% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned
as to 100% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in
turn wholly owned by CIP. CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly
owned by CIH. Therefore, CIC, Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH
are deemed to be interested in these shares.

(2) CIH is held as to approximately 61.74% of Common and A Shares by CIE.
Therefore, CIE is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Cl Pharma China.

(3) The entire issued share capital of CIE is held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen
Tao for the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his family (“Wu Family
Trust”). Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by CIE.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors and Chief
Executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” above, had registered an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Connected Transactions

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and the connected person(s) (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company constitute connected transactions of
the Company. The Company regulates and manages such transactions in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On 3 September 2013, Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction Technology
Limited (“Liwah Zhiti”) entered into an entrusted manufacturing
framework agreement (the “Entrusted Manufacturing Framework
Agreement”) with Yangling Dailyhealth Bio-engineering Technology
Company Limited (“Yangling Dailyhealth”) and Xian Haotian Bio-
engineering Technology Company Limited (“Xian Haotian"”) (collectively
referred as “Suppliers”). According to the Entrusted Manufacturing
Framework Agreement, Liwah Zhiti agreed to buy and the Suppliers
agreed to produce and sell the plant extract products to Liwah Zhiti. It is
contemplated that the plant extract products will be used by the Group
for the production of key ingredients for healthcare products to be sold
in the market by the Group.

On 17 December 2014, Liwah Zhiti and the Suppliers entered into a
renewed entrusted manufacturing framework agreement (the “Renewed
Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement”) for a further term of
three years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 (subject to any
early termination or extension by mutual consent) to renew the supply
arrangements.

On 15 June 2015, Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Ningbo Lansen”) entered into the exclusive distribution agreement with
Changchun Botai Medicine & Biological Technology Company Limited
("Botai”) pursuant to which, Botai agrees to sell and appoint Ningbo
Lansen as the exclusive distributor of the Collagen Injectable Fillers in the
PRC. The term of the exclusive distribution agreement runs from 15 June
2015 to 31 December 2016 (subject to any early termination or extension
which may be agreed by the Parties).

On 20 September 2016, Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
("Lansen (BVI)”) entered into an entrusted processing framework
agreement (the “Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement”) with
Natural Dailyhealth Holdings Limited (formerly known as Haotian
Holdings Limited) (“Natural Dailyhealth”). According to the Entrusted
Processing Framework Agreement, Lansen (BVI) agreed to assist or
procure its subsidiaries to assist Natural Dailyhealth to process the plant
extract products.

On 24 June 2016, Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("Ningbo Liwah"), Jilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology Company
Limited (“Jilin Haizi”) and Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(“Lansen (BVI)") entered into the cross guarantee agreement, pursuant
to which the parties may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide
certain guarantees to banks in relation to the bank facilities of each other
during the effective period.
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Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement and
Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement

Date
3 September 2013 (Renewed on 17 December 2014)

Parties
(@  Liwah Zhiti, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

(b)  Yangling Dailyhealth (formerly known as Yangling Haotian), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a controlling shareholder
of the Company; and

(¢ Xian Haotian, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement and the
Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement, Liwah Zhiti
may, during the Term (as defined below), acquire from the Suppliers, the
plant extract products on an order-by-order basis. There is no minimum
purchase amount under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework
Agreement and the Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework
Agreement, and Liwah Zhiti has no obligation to acquire the plant extract
products from the Suppliers nor are the Suppliers required to provide
them to Liwah Zhiti.

Pricing basis

For the plant extract products to be purchased by Liwah Zhiti from the
Suppliers under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
and the Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement, the
selling price per unit of the plant extract products shall be determined
by reference to the prevailing prices of the products in the market on
an order-by-order basis. Liwah Zhiti will follow its existing standard
purchasing procedures with third party suppliers in negotiating and
determining the purchase price with the Suppliers, which will involve
obtaining fee quotations from other independent third party suppliers in
the market and comparing them with those from the Suppliers.
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The supply of the plant extract products by the Suppliers shall be:

(@  on normal commercial terms and upon terms which are not less
favourable to Liwah Zhiti than terms available to Liwah Zhiti from
independent third parties supplying similar plant extract products
specified by Liwah Zhiti; and

(b) at a competitive pricing determined on arm’s length basis by
reference to the prevailing market price of the plant extract
products.

Term

The term of the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
commenced on 3 September 2013 and expired on 31 December
2014. The Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
commenced on 1 January 2015 and will expire on 31 December 2017
(subject to any early termination or extension by mutual consent),
unless terminated by either party by giving the other written notice
of termination at least one month prior to the effective date of such
termination.

Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the approved annual caps and
the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
are set out below:

HE-_ZT—"F+_A=1T—BLEFENFELR =
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2016

A E #29,000,0007T
(#94,700,000% 7T)
RMB29,000,000
(approximately US$4.70 million)

ECE-RFETZA=T—HALEENEBRRIEE
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2016
A K #10,177,0007T
(#71,530,000% 7T.)
RMB10,177,000
(approximately US$1.53 million)

ER#FEREHE N IFEAER S

HA
—hFXNATHEA

W#EE7

@ ZARAEEZENBRARERBAE &
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R

The execution of an exclusive distribution agreement

Date
15 June 2015

Parties
(@ Ningbo Lansen, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and

(b)  Botai, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the exclusive distribution agreement, Ningbo Lansen will act
as the exclusive distributor of Botai in respect of the Collagen Injectable
Fillers during the Term (as defined below) and it may, during the Term,
acquire from Botai, the Collagen Injectable Fillers on an order-by-order
basis.

Pricing Basis

The unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers to be purchased
by Ningbo Lansen under the exclusive distribution agreement is agreed
at a fixed price throughout the Term and is arrived at after arm'’s length
negotiation between the Parties. Such unit purchase price is determined
with reference to:

(i)  the prices of two comparable collagen injectable fillers products in
the PRC market;

(i) the product feature and competitive advantage of the Collagen
Injectable Fillers; and

(i) the procurement benefits given by Botai to Ningbo Lansen in
promoting and marketing the Collagen Injectable Fillers during its
product launch cycle.

Further, to ensure that the unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable
Fillers is no less favourable than those comparable products available
from independent third parties, the marketing department of Ningbo
Lansen has followed its standard market research procedures by
conducting the relevant research on factors, such as the market demand
within the non-surgical cosmetic market and the trend of the sales
volume of comparable products. It has also taken reference of the prices
and specifications of comparable collagen injectable fillers products from
other independent third parties in the market.

The final unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers is mutually
agreed by the Parties after arm'’s length negotiation, but in any event, the
unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers is no less favourable
than those of the comparable collagen injectable fillers products in the
market, and the purchase of the Collagen Injectable Fillers by Ningbo
Lansen under the Exclusive Distribution Agreement is on terms which are
no less favourable to Ningbo Lansen than those under a typical exclusive
distribution agreement of similar products.
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Term

The term of the exclusive distribution agreement commenced on 15 June
2015 and will expire on 31 December 2016 (subject to any extension
which may be agreed by the Parties), unless terminated by either Party
giving the other written notice of termination.

Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the approved annual caps and
the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions under the Exclusive Distribution Agreement are set out
below:

A K #35,750,0007T
(#95,750,000% 7t)
RMB35,750,000
(approximately US$5.750 million)

BE_Z-—R"FT_A=+—"BLFENFELR| #HZE
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2016

CE-RET AT -HLEFENERRZSE
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2016
A R %16,176,0007T
(#92,432,000% 7T)
RMB16,176,000
(approximately US$2.432 million)
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Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement

Date
20 September 2016

Parties
(@  Lansen (BVI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and

(b) Natural Dailyhealth, a company which is 70% owned by Cl
Biotechnology and 30% owned by Lansen (BVI).

Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement, Natural
Dailyhealth may, during the Term entrusted Lansen (BVI) with the
processing of the plant extract products on an order-by-order basis.

Pricing basis

The process fee will be charged on a cost-plus basis, representing all
costs incurred by Lansen (BVI) in relation to the processing of the product
plus a mark-up rate of 10% of such costs (the “Processing Fee").

The Processing Fee was arrived after taking into consideration that (1)
the cost-plus basis is one of the common pricing standards adopted in
plant extract markets; and (2) the Lansen (BVI) Group does not need to
incur marketing expenses in the transactions contemplated under the
Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement.
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Term

The term of the Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement will
commence on 20 September 2016 and will expire on 31 December
2018 (subject to any extension which may be agreed by the Parties),
unless terminated by either Party by giving the other written notice
of termination at least one month prior to the effective date of such
termination.

Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the approved annual caps and
the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions under the Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement are
set out below:

HE—

A R #20,000,0007T
(493,000,000 7T)
RMB20,000,000
(approximately US$3.0 million)

E-RFT_A=+—BLEFENFE LR

Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE_Z-—R"FT_A=T—"BLEENEBRXSEHE
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2016
A R #513,243,0007T
(#91,991,000% 71)

RMB13,243,000
(approximately US$2.0 million)
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Cross Guarantee Agreement

Date
24 June 2016

Parties
(@)  Jilin Haizi, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH;

(b) Ningbo Liwah, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and

(

n
~

Lansen (BVI), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

42

Annual Report 2016 F#f



FERWE
Report of the Directors

XE4HE

REBEBEERBZE SHEECRAERNEX
HOEE R T AR E KL EE R R CR K
HORTRERBER(EMEEERD - R
BHEEERGZ  DRYFRAUNEE - AL
BVIERERABMBARELR RS E BN
BAR ST MEERRKHIGHIRITRE R H
ERIAEGBVDERDE M EEERIAE
(BVDHERATTEHER])

iz B

FEMEER05% 52 EERIRE Mt K
BNERNREMSEER(NREF 2% MEE
EBEE  UEZEENEEERBZAIERRE
@M ZEEE -

B X H
HEERBENERPER-_F—RFLA
—HRAK  UHER_T-AFASA=THER
(B -

Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the Cross Guarantee Agreement, Jilin Haizi has agreed,
during the Effective Period (as defined below), to provide guarantees
for the obligations under the bank facilities obtained or to be obtained
by Ningbo Liwah (the “Jilin Haizi Guarantees”). Pursuant to the Cross
Guarantee Agreement, on a reciprocal basis, Lansen (BVI) has agreed,
during the Effective Period, to procure its subsidiary, as appropriate,
to provide guarantees for the obligation under the bank facilities to
be obtained by Jilin Haizi (the “Lansen (BVI) Guarantees”) (the Jilin
Haizi Guarantees and the Lansen (BVI) Guarantees, collectively, the
"Guarantees”).

Guarantee Commission

The annual guarantee commission rate of 0.5% is determined and
agreed with reference to the prevailing market rate of the commission
charged by guarantee service providers, which is around 2% per annum,
after taking into account of the factors such as reasons for, and benefits
of the Cross Guarantee Agreement.

Effective Period
The effective period of the Cross Guarantee Agreement will commence
on 1 July 2016 and will expire on 30 June 2019 (the "“Effective Period”).
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FE LR Annual Caps
HE2-_Z—XE+_-_A=1+—HILFE B4  For the year ended 31 December 2016, the approved annual caps and
HEERBEETOTERREERHERLS  the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing connected

M EFE LR ERBEEZISEEHINNT transactions under the Cross Guarantee Agreement are set out below:
BHE_Z-—REFT_A=+T—BHLFENFE LR BHE_Z-—RET_A=T—HLFENERXZEE
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2016 | Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2016
" MEEER EMEERER
Jilin Haizi Guarantee Jilin Haizi Guarantee
A R %130,000,0007T =
(#918,740,0003 7T.) Nil
RMB130,000,000
(approximately US$18.7 million)
ERVERSEMNES ERIERMAS
The maximum commission fee payable by The commission fee payable by
Ningbo Liwah Ningbo Liwah
A R #325,0007T z
(#949,000% 7T) Nil
RMB325,000
(approximately US$49,000)
BA A (BVI) #& 1R BA A& (BVI) £ 1R
Lansen (BVI) Guarantee Lansen (BVI) Guarantee
A R %130,000,0007T A R #100,000,0007T
(#918,740,0003 7T.) (#914,415,000% Jt)
RMB130,000,000 RMB100,000,000
(approximately US$18.7 million) (approximately US$14.4 million)
EMEERRENEE TMBERMNAR
The maximum commission fee payable by Jilin Haizi The commission fee payable by Jilin Haizi
A R #325,0007TC A R #168,0007T
(#949,000% 7T) (#925,000% 71)
RMB325,000 RMB168,000
(approximately US$49,000) (approximately US$25,000)

BiE EmRAIE14A381% - EFEEEHEF AL Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
AR AEE BB ELSHEITET  auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed-upon procedures
BB EZRF - ZHEMEMESSERZZE  in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group. The
BF2EEHER - BIFEHNTESZENF  auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures to the
BREXIRZHAME  WERZERXSH Board. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
DARRBN —MEBEEBHBIZELB —ME  continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor and
XBRAEHEZERSH 2MaEIEHREIY - M have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into by the
FHEBGRBATEENFTAEARARFMRE 2T Company in the ordinary and usual course of its business on normal
A - commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

44 Annual Report 2016 F#f



FERWE
Report of the Directors

ARBZHREMERAEFTEH LR R

() BEESE=gHE:

(i) BEEBRAEEEERREE:

(i) DEREARZERZZEBHHETL: K

vy TEBUSEZFE LRRE -

BREXPEEEIN  BE_FT—RFT-_A=
T—BLEFE MBHBRRMEIZAREZH
BARGATERRE LHRANFBVAZTZH
BRXGRITFEMERS - RERE LETRA
FUAENRERBACMBEXNEZEAR R Z
MEXZFIAFEEERS - ARFACETR
BETHRANFUVAETHBERTE -

i BOR
AEEREZHFMIEBREZLRR  BXE
B TxREREEEDTSEEMEE -

ARBEFZHFMIAFHEE SR F AT
ZEE BEARBREALET SR BIED
RIE °

BEBERE
ARRERAANKNFAERE AT EHAE
KARBMBRBERRRILOIRZ2H SR
ZBRBEREMGRX

REHZABREKERE

RAREEH - RBEARFAIESZAFER
R ARREZMAM  ARB DR LR
FBOBIEMMEZ RRIFHE »

TFEMBERE
AEBEXEHREELRAERNBEREAMERE
B2 REHNFSA °

The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board confirming
that the above continuing connected transactions:

() have received the approval of the Board,;

(i) have been priced in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(iii)  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2016, the
related party transactions disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements
either did not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, or only constituted
fully exempted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions by virtue of the de minimis exemption under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has compiled with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are determined
with reference to individual performance, professional qualifications,
experience in the industry and relevant market trends.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
require the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float as
required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 5.
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Stephen Burnau Hunt

55
—E—+tF=A=+H

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
liabilities of the Directors and executive officers in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

A permitted indemnity provision (within the meaning in Section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)) that provides for indemnity against liability incurred by Directors
and executive officers of the Group is currently in force when the Report
of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and was in
force throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 for the benefit of
the Directors.

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2017
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company and the Board are devoted to achieving and maintaining
the highest standards of corporate governance as the Board believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding interests of the shareholders and
other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound
corporate governance principles that emphasise a quality Board, effective
internal controls, stringent disclosure practices and transparency and
accountability to all stakeholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has also complied
with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, except with a deviation from paragraph A.5 of the
Code. Under paragraph A.5 of the Code, the Company should establish
a Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. Currently, the Company had
not established a Nomination Committee and had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee has
been delegated the functions of a Nomination Committee since its listing
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2010. As such, the Board is
of the view that the members of the Remuneration Committee possess
the necessary experience and knowledge to discharge the functions of
a Nomination Committee. The Board shall review the composition and
operation of the Board Committees from time to time and shall consider
establishing a Nomination Committee if such need arises.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions adopted by the Company.
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The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees
the operations and monitors the financial performance of the Group.
Management manages the businesses of the Group, including the
decision making of daily operation within the delegated power and
authority given by the Board. Management is accountable to the Board
for the Company’s overall operation.

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.

The Company Secretary or his assistant is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and Board Committees meetings. Draft minutes and written
resolutions will be circulated to all Board members or Board Committees
members for review and comment within a reasonable period of time.
Final version of the minutes and written resolutions will be provided for
record within a reasonable period of time and the signed copies are kept
in the Company’s minutes book maintained by the Company Secretary
for Directors’ inspection.

As at 31 December 2016 and at the date of this report, the Board was
comprised of two executive Directors, four non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. A description of the
Directors is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section from pages 23 to 28 and on the Company’s
website.
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As at 31 December 2016 and at the date of this report, the Board was
comprised of the following members:

BEREZME RE-REBER
AESERENEH REEMWAY
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election

B Directors to the Board as Director

HITESE: Executive Directors:

BIEREE(TTHEF) Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer) —E-=FNANE ZE—R"E~AZ+—H

9 April 2013 21 June 2016

B E (G HAE Mr. Hou Song (Chief Financial Officer) —E-RNE=ZA=+tH ZZE—A"FE~AZt—H

30 March 2016 21 June 2016

FHITEE: Non-executive Directors:

REBEREFE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) —Z—+H#=ZA=+H —
(RZZ—+F (appointed on 30 March 2017) 30 March 2017
ZA=THEZE)

Stephen Burnau Hunt %t & Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt —ZT-ZFMANA —ET-AF~H=H
(R=ZE—+F (resigned on 30 March 2017 as Chairman 9 April 2010 3 June 2015
“RA=1THEEITEE" but remains as a Director)

BHEERES)
TEBEEEFRE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) “E-TFEWNANH ZE—XR"EXRA=-t-—H
9 April 2010 21 June 2016

BERE(RZZE—LF Mr. Tang Jun (resigned on —ZT-ZTFEMANA —E-=FHRATHA
=A=tH#E) 30 March 2017) 9 April 2010 15 May 2013

PSS L (R=F—/"F  Ms. Tao Fang Fang (resigned on —E-TF-ANH ZE-RERHA=H
=RA=1tH&T) 30 March 2016) 8 January 2010 3 June 2015

EMBH 2L (R=F—7"F Ms. Yip PuiLing, Rebecca (resigned on —ZEEAFEAATH —E-RERHA=H
ZRA=+H#MT) 30 March 2016) 10 September 2009 3 June 2015

AELELL Ms. Liu Xue Zi ZE-RF=ZA=tH ZE-A"FAAZ+—H
30 March 2016 21 June 2016

BYFHTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
BBk E Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael —T-TFMPAAA —FT—RF~A-t+—H
9 April 2010 21 June 2016
iR e Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond “E-TEWPANA ZE-RERAZ+—H
9 April 2010 21 June 2016
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 564 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher ZE——%ZA+HA ZE-NFAAZTAA

10 February 2011

29 May 2014
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The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to time,
taking into account the requirements under the Listing Rules and the
scope and nature of operations of the Company, to ensure that the size
of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views and facilitate
effective decision making. The Directors come from diverse background
with varied expertise in finance, human resources and pharmaceutical
business fields. The Company has maintained on the Company’s website
and on the website of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors
identifying their roles and functions.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills
and business experience to the Group. They also bring independent
judgement on issues of strategy, performance and risk through their
contribution to the Board meetings and to the Board Committees’
meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the
Board. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
Listing Rules. With reference to such confirmations, the Company, to
its best knowledge, considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors fulfill the guidelines on independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and all to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The chairman is responsible for managing the Board, steering the
Board to formulate overall strategies and business development plans,
ensuring the receipt of sufficient, complete and reliable information by
each Director and the receipt of reasonable explanations for the issues
raised at the Board meetings. The chief executive officer is responsible
for managing the business of the Company and implementing
policies, business objectives and plans formulated by the Board, and
is accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation. The
senior management team is responsible for the day-to-day operations
of the Group under the leadership of the chief executive officer of the
Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The executive Directors Mr. Liu Bang Min and Mr. Hou Song have entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing 9 April 2016 and 30 March 2016 respectively. Each of the
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing 9 April 2016 except for Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, Mr.
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher and Ms. Liu Xue Zi whose commencement date
were 30 March 2017, 10 February 2017 and 30 March 2016 respectively.
All Directors appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as
addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at
the first general meeting after appointment.

At each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt, Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and Mr. Fritz
Heinrich Horlacher will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election in the forthcoming AGM.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had not
established a Nomination Committee but had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
members from time to time identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships or
senior management. In considering the nomination of new Directors
or senior management, the Remuneration Committee will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates as well as the independence
requirement in the case of an independent non-executive Director.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted procedures for nomination
of a new Director or senior management, pursuant to which (1) an
interview will be conducted with the prospective candidates; and (2) the
Remuneration Committee will consider and, if thought fit, make suitable
recommendations to the Board.
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Changes of Directors and Senior Management
The Remuneration and Executive Committees have approved:

- the resignation of Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca as a non-executive
Director, effective from 30 March 2016;

- the resignation of Ms. Tao Fang Fang as a non-executive Director,
effective from 30 March 2016;

- the appointment of Ms. Liu Xue Zi as a non-executive Director,
effective from 30 March 2016;

- the resignation of Mr. Tang Jun as a non-executive Director,
effective from 30 March 2017;

- the resignation of Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt as the chairman of the
Board, effective from 30 March 2017;

- the appointment of Mr. Hou Song as an executive Director,
effective from 30 March 2016; and

- the appointment of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as a non-executive Director
and Chairman, effective from 30 March 2017.

Continuing professional development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company from time to time updates and provides training
to the Directors, and organises seminars on the latest development of the
Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to Directors’
duties and responsibilities.

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors will be provided with a
comprehensive briefing of the Group’s businesses by senior executives.
Continuing education and information are provided to the Directors
regularly to ensure that the Directors are apprised of the latest changes
in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its businesses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has organised a
training session covering the topic of environment, social and governance
report. All Directors attended the training. In addition, individual
directors also participated in other courses relating to the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director or further enhancement of their
professional development by way of attending training courses or via
online aids or reading relevant materials.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the year, the Board formalised the inclusion of
the following corporate governance duties into the terms of reference of
the Board:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s employees
and the Directors; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report.

Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity policy
in accordance with the requirement set out in the Code. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board'’s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, and professional experience. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.
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Board Meetings

EETeEHTHEE  SFxP MK - NE  The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a year.
gzl AEENSREEESTH  Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of the Group
MAEENER T NERMESRMEER o provides information to Directors on a regular basis regarding the
EEERBEVER  ZEAMEREERASL  activities and development in the businesses of the Group. The

EHWENMBIEESR -

Directors have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the

Directors.
ﬁﬁ:g—/_\i‘f‘iﬂ E‘I— HIEFE - E% The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016
SRTITHAREHE EEMHFEB R with the attendance of each Director as follows:
T
HESERE
BHITERRHY HE=E
No. of meetings
attended/No. of
2= Directors meetings held  Attendance rate
BITES: Executive Directors:
[NERGCEGFTHAE) Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 100%
EMFTE (I EAEE) Mr. Hou Song (Chief Financial Officer) 3/3 100%
(RZE—RF (appointed on 30 March 2016)
—“A=t+HEZF)
FHITES: Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Huntst 4 (/&) Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) 5/5 100%
FEBEEEFEE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) 5/5 100%
mELAE Mr. Tang Jun 5/5 100%
lEFLLE(RZTE—RF Ms. Tao Fang Fang 2/2 100%
Z A=+H8E1T) (resigned on 30 March 2016)
EMBLZLE(RZE—XF Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 2/2 100%
=BA=+8ET (resigned on 30 March 2016)
FELZRT(R_FT—RF Ms. Liu Xuezi 3/3 100%

=A=tTHEZE)

BYFHITES:

PR 508 5 A4

BE AR S o A&

Fritz Heinrich Horlacher %t 4

(appointed on 30 March 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 5/5 100%
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 5/5 100%
Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 5/5 100%
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With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days prior to
the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as much notice
as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the articles of association of the Company,
a Director who has a material interest in any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other kind of proposal put forward to the Board for
consideration, will abstain from voting on the relevant resolution and
such Director is not counted as quorum.

The Board has devised its specific written terms of reference setting
out its duties, responsibilities, powers and functions which include the
following:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board,;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to take responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
prevailing accounting standards and laws, approving the financial
statements and appointing and liaising with the Group’s external
auditors;

- to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report;

- to liaise with all regulatory authorities and organisations on all
matters relating to the Group, and monitor changes in their policies
relating to and affecting the Group; and

- to ensure accountability towards and sufficient communication
with the Group’s shareholders.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of the executive director and senior management was held to
discuss the performance of the executive director.

The Board also discussed the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company and duties performed by the Board and the Board Committees
(see below).
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Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee. Please see below for the
composition and responsibilities of the committees. Each committee shall
provide their recommendations to the Board based on their respective
terms of reference. The decisions of the Board on such recommendations
shall be final, unless otherwise stated in the terms of reference of these
committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors and one non-executive Directors. Mr. Chan
Kee Huen, Michael, an independent non-executive Director, currently
serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
expected to meet regularly at least three times per year.

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The major duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the
following:

- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor, including:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor and address any questions of resignation or dismissal
of such auditor;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; and

o to develop and implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

- to review and monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements, annual reports and half-year reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained therein; and

- to review the effectiveness of the financial reporting, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
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HE-_T-—RFT+A=+T—RBLFE" %T? The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
ZESRTTHUASE MEKEMNHFE) December 2016 with the attendance of each member as follows:
U

HESBEXIH

HITEBAXRHY HE =R

No. of meetings

attended/No. of
EREEERERSR Name of Audit Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
BRACIE L& (F ) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman) 4/4 100%
FEBEEE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 4/4 100%
EMBLZLE(RZE—XF Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 2/2 100%

=A=+HET (resigned on 30 March 2016)

B AR T 5 A& Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 4/4 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher %t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 4/4 100%
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee had:

- reviewed with management and external auditor on the interim
results and annual results and related announcements including
the related disclosures, integrity of financial reporting and the
accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to submission to
the Board for approval;

- discussed with management on significant judgements affecting
the Group'’s consolidated financial statements;

- reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and recommended the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor;

- reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports including the
status of implementing recommendations from the previous
reports; and

- reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors. Mr.
Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond, an independent non-executive Director, currently
serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee is expected to meet regularly at least once per year.
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The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and
authorities delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy and
placing such recommendations before the Board concerning the
total remuneration and/or benefits granted to the Directors and
senior management from time to time;

- to assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management;

- to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

- to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or any
applicable law;

- to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

- to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors and senior
management;

- to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and senior
management; and

- to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
and professional experience) of the Board at least annually; and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’ s corporate strategy.
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Name of Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2016 with the attendance of each member as
follows:

HEERRE

BITEBNRE
No. of meetings
attended/No. of

HE R

FMEEamERR Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
BR PR S A (£ ) Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond (Chairman) 3/3 100%
Stephen Burnau Hunt 5t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 3/3 100%
FEBRLEE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 2/3 67%
PR ECIE A& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 3/3 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher %t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3/3 100%
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee:

- assessed the performance of the executive Director and the senior
management;

- pursuant to provision B.1.2 (c)(ii) of the Code, reviewed the
remuneration structure/ package of the Directors and the senior
management, and made recommendation to the Board on their
remuneration;

- determined policy for the nomination of Directors,
- discussed the implementation of the Board diversity policy; and
- made recommendation to the Board on the proposed re-election

of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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HE_Z—XRXF+-A=+—HILFEEEZEH The following table shows the breakdown of Directors’ remuneration for
THMAWT the year ended 31 December 2016:

H 5

Other emoluments

F&2EW RIREAR
ik ENEF R E @
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  benefit plans

Fees inkind contributions Total
TEx TER Fxr TER
uss$'000 Uss$'000 uss$'000 Uss$'000
HITES: Executive Directors:
ER Liu Bang Min - 413 13 426
N Hou Song N 181 3 183
(RZE—R"FZAZ+HEZT) (appointed on 30 March 2016)
FRTES: Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - - 39
= Lee Jin Yi - - - -
% E Tang Jun - - - -
(RZE—+E=F=1THEM (resigned on 30 March 2017)
AEZ Liu Xuezi - - - -
(RZZE—-A"E=ZA=THEZT) (appointed on 30 March 2016)
WE R Tao Fang Fang - - - -
(M- E=ZA=+HET) (resigned on 30 March 2016)
Efw Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca - - - -
(R-ZB-REZA=THEL) (resigned on 30 March 2016)
BUFMITES: Independent non-executive Directors:
BiE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 - - 35
R Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 35 - - 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 32 - - 32
141 594 15 750
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2016:

—E-REF
2016
AE

No of individuals

=L %129,0003 7T
129,0013€ JT £193,500% 7T

Nil-US$129,000 -
US$129,001-US$193,500 4

BITEES
ARRMATZECHMBRITES - MAFE
HWTEER —BHEFAEAN FATEFEF

EELERARUTZEEER -
EERCRYHATRERUF EEMBER

B JRESERTORG  BENED - #
TZEENEITERHELRBECSERENTH R
MBEHEBEEER BB FERFRARAR
g BRHEE BRI NELSTHIEREE -

HWITZEEKERRES H TEH T

AEESHFNRKEBRMEERR  UARE
RUEREEEETESFEMILNT AR
[B%o

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Company consists of two executive
directors, two non-executive Directors and one non-director. Mr. Lee
Jin Yi, a non-executive Director, currently serves as the chairman of the
Executive Committee.

The Board has established the Executive Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Executive Committee include reviewing the financials and financial-
related matters, assisting in developing annual and medium- to long-
term corporate strategies, reviewing and approving new business
development plans, and reviewing and approving research and
development projects.

Executive Committee members normally meet every month to keep
abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group and to
monitor and ensure that management carries out the directions and
strategies set by the Board.
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Name of Executive
Committee members

HEERRE
BITEBNRE
No. of meetings
attended/No. of
meetings held

The Executive Committee held eight meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016 with the attendance of each member as follows:

HE R

Attendance rate

T E S ()

2R R 5

B SRR — R
SASTEREM)

BBE LT (RB—XF
+ZATABEED

G
(R=B—XF=A=1H
BERRZE—<F
+oA+AREEED)

ERBR LT (R AE
=A=TABE)

Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Bang Min

Mr. Hou Song

(appointed on 30 March 2016)
Ms. Liu Xuezi

(appointed on 16 December 2016)
Ms. Tao Fang Fang

(resigned on 30 March 2016 and

appointed on 16 December 2016)

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca
(resigned on 30 March 2016)

8/8
8/8
6/6

2/2

2/2

100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements for the Group
are published in a timely manner.

BDO Limited acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
83 to 88 in this report.

Management has provided to all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance and position in detail.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the Group's auditor until
the conclusion of next AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees paid/payable to BDO
Limited in respect of audit and non-audit services were as follows:

et ERE A

PR 7% 1% & Services rendered Fee paid/payable
FEn

Us$'000

% B R 5 Audit services 210
FZERD Non-audit services 48

HEBREIEEREHBEIINTHE
B e E At B X AR 75 -

DNEWE
RAMERTAREEEHESTENELHE
BERER HREFTANENABIERB K
RREEFTTHRNIERF -

The non-audit services mainly consisted of interim review and other
professional services in relation to the connected transactions.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Mr. Leung Tsz Chun, plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
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All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company Secretary has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control and Risk Assessment

The Board is responsible for monitoring the internal control system of
the Group and on an ongoing basis has the responsibility for reviewing
its effectiveness including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management. The Board is committed to implementing an
effective and sound internal control system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets.

To further strengthen the internal control of the Group, an internal audit
department was established on 1 January 2016. Several department
heads of the Company met with the internal audit department regularly
to ensure a sound internal control system is in place and maintained. To
enhance the knowledge of relevant staff of the Group, training will be
provided to them in the matter of relevant rules and applicable laws as
and when appropriate.

The risk management and internal control system of the Group are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against all risk issues. We have employed a bottom-up
approach for the identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all
business unit levels and across all functional areas.

During the process of risk assessment, the Board together with
management is responsible for identifying the risks of the Group and
deciding on the risk levels. An external consultant was engaged to
provide advice and support to the risk assessment process in 2016. The
Board is also responsible for assessing and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that are acceptable to the Group when achieving its
strategic objectives. After discussing and taking into consideration the
risk responses, the relevant departments and business units have been
assigned to implement the risk management solutions in accordance
with their respective roles and responsibilities. The identified risks
together with the risk responses have been recorded in the risk register
and the updating and maintenance of which is subject to the supervision
of the Board.
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The key elements of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company include the establishment of a risk register to keep track of
and document identified risks, the assessment and evaluation of risks, the
development and continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

The internal audit department has performed annual internal control
reviews on certain important areas of monitoring including the functions
of finance, operations, compliance and risk management respectively
covering the period of 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016 in
compliance with the requirements under Code Provision C.2 of the CG
Code, according to the scope of review agreed and approved by the
Audit Committee.

Also, management has analysed the control environment and risk
assessment, assessed the various controls implemented and agreed
with the Board on the scope of review over the system of internal
controls. The approach of the review includes discussing with relevant
management and staff members, reviewing relevant documentation
of the internal control system, evaluating findings on any deficiencies
in the design of internal controls and developing recommendations for
improvement, where appropriate.

Management has reported the results of the reviews to the Audit
Committee for its evaluation on the effectiveness of the system.
Meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss the findings
and the results of the reviews which were endorsed for reporting to the
Board. The Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, the present internal control and risk management processes
are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business. The Board will continue to ensure that appropriate review of
the systems and procedures is being carried out by management from
time to time to maintain a high standard of internal controls and will
make appropriate changes to the internal control system, if necessary.

Inside information
With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company

- is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO and
the overriding principle that information which is expected to be
inside information should be announced once it is the subject of a
decision;

- has set up an inside information control team to supervise inside
information matters and report to the Board in a timely manner;
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- has implemented its own policy and reporting system based
on Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission; and

- has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs.

Directors’ and officers’ liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance
for all the Directors and senior management of the Company for the year
2016/2017. The insurance covers them against costs, charges, expenses
and liabilities incurred arising out of corporate activities.

Communications with Shareholders

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from
the shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects the
shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates their
suggestions to the Company.

Our investor relations activities include:

- regular meetings (one-to-one/group meetings, roadshows or site
visits) with analysts and investors;

- conferences with analysts and the press to announce the
Company's results;

- the holding of an AGM which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board;

- the publication of announcements, interim reports, annual reports
and/or circulars on a timely basis via the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites; and

- the availability of the latest information of the Group on the
Company's website.

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Shareholder’s Rights
The AGM provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and raise
questions to our Directors, management and the external auditor.

The Company will arrange for the Chairman of the Board and the
respective chairman of each of the Board Committees to attend the AGM
to exchange views with shareholders and answer their questions.

Any shareholder is encouraged and entitled to attend the AGM, provided
that their shares have been recorded in the register of members of the
Company. The notice of AGM will be given to all shareholders at least
20 clear business days or 21 clear days (whichever is longer) before the
meeting.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2016 annual
general meeting (2016 AGM"), held on 21 June 2016 at Admiralty
Conference Centre (ACC), 1804A, 18/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18
Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. All Directors and the external
auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, attended the 2016 AGM.

At the 2016 AGM, separate resolutions including declaration of final
dividend, the re-election of Directors, the re-appointment of auditor,
the authorisation to grant the general mandate to issue and repurchase
of shares were proposed. The Company adopted poll voting for all
resolutions.

All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2016 AGM were passed. The
Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
was appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast
at that meeting. The results of the voting by poll were declared at the
meeting and published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The way by which shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM")

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Company’s articles of
association shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an EGM.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li
Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the EGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of two months from the
said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Suites 1203—4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
To put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM, the shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company'’s Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration of the
proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at an AGM or EGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

o At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include 10 business
days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of
the Company in an EGM.

. At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20 business
days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of
the Company in an EGM or any resolution of the Company in an
AGM.

Investor Relations Contacts

The Company values feedbacks from shareholders, investors and the
public. Enquiries and proposals are welcome and can be put to the
Company via the following means:

Hong Kong
Please contact our Company Secretary at:

By phone : (852) 2828 9285

By post . Suite 1203—4, 12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

By e-mail . ir@lansen.com.cn

The PRC

Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:

By phone : (86) 574 8804 6316

By post . 228 Xinfeng Road, Gaogiao Industrial Park,
Haishu District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, PRC
(Post code 315174)

By e-mail . ir@lansen.com.cn

The latest investor relations information is available on the Company’s
website at www.lansen.com.cn.
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Environment

The Group pays attention to the issue of pollutants emissions in the
course of production on an ongoing basis. It strictly observes the
laws and regulations of the country and has formulated the following
measures in an effort to combat the emission of various pollutants:

1. Liwah actively promotes energy restructuring. Since 2013, it has
substituted oil with natural gas as the fuel for its boilers used for
production two years earlier than required by the local policy to
reduce carbon dioxide emissions.

2. Liwah has added residual heat recovery units to reduce natural gas
usage and carbon dioxide emissions.

3. Compulsory categorisation of domestic, industrial and hazardous
wastes is introduced and staff is encouraged to categorise wastes
autonomously and scientifically.

4. The Group stresses the importance of hazardous wastes
management and puts in place a series of management procedures
for production, temporary storage, transfer, warehousing,
handling and filing as well as a dedicated warehouse for hazardous
wastes.

5. As for sewage treatment, Liwah has installed a dedicated sewage
treatment facility. Its sewage emission meets local requirements
and a sewage emission permit has been obtained. Moreover,
Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited Zhenhai Branch
(“Liwah Zhenhai Branch”) has implemented the open pipes and
ditches reform for rain and sewage pipes network and phase one
of capacity upgrade of sewage units, which effectively prevent the
increase in emission volume due to the leakage of underground
sewage into rain pipes.

6. Regarding waste gas treatment, raw materials storage and
transmission segments, Liwah Zhenhai Branch reduce the
production of organic waste gas in the storage and transmission
segments through centralised storage and pipe transmission.
Furthermore, in the exhaust gas and sewage treatment segments,
various devices have been installed to mitigate the impacts
of waste gas produced on the environment. In addition, by
engaging collaborative manufacturers, work plan is developed
every year, conducting regular examination and timely repair,
thereby effectively reducing the emission of organic waste gas
and monitoring the effectiveness of VOCs emission reduction
measures.
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7. In connection with management, Liwah Zhenhai Branch has
complied with the requirements of local environmental bureaus
to continue to enhance enterprise VOCs emission reduction
measures. Meanwhile, ISO14001 internal and external audits are
conducted annually to improve the effectiveness of organic waste
gas recovery equipment and exhaust gas absorption devices from
different perspectives based on the annual performance targets.

8.  Regarding solid wastes, Liwah Zhenhai Branch has strengthened
the cooperation between recycling enterprises to alleviate the
pressure of general solid wastes disposal on the environment and
recycle more resources by adopting diversified disposal methods
such as organic fertilisers and biomass fuel granules production.

9.  Specially sets up an environmental protection and energy
management office to constantly monitor the Company’s daily
energy consumption and environmental protection.

The Group monitors its emission indicators stringently according to the

requirements of emission volume and standard under relevant laws and

regulations, which primarily include:

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

. Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

o Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes
of the PRC

. Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

° Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards (Ningbo local
standards)

. Air Pollutant Emission Standards for Boilers (Ningbo local
standards)

° Contingency Plans for Environmental Emergencies (filed to Ningbo
Environmental Protection Bureau)
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Raw materials used by the Group for production primarily include various
extracts and Chinese herbal medicines, and the production of which
may have very minor impacts on the environment and natural resources.
The Group actively fulfills its social responsibilities and always follows
the philosophy of maintaining the balance between development and
environment protection by employing various resources reasonably to
protect the environment. The Company abides by the Cleaner Production
Promotion Law of the PRC stringently and has established relevant
systems to further the goals of energy saving, consumption reduction,
pollution mitigation and effectiveness enhancement with the aim of
minimising the impacts of its production and operation on the ecological
system. The Group also deepens its collaboration with recycling
enterprises to increase the recycling value of solid dreg wastes.

The Group advocates green production with the goals of energy saving,
consumption reduction and pollution mitigation in mind. The Group
reduces the use of resources by optimising its production process and
improving its technologies, together with the use of LED lighting,
installation of steam timers, recovery of purified and concentrated
water, adoption of variable frequency control for large equipment and
implementation of residual heat recovery for boiler water. In addition,
the Group also encourages its staff to participate in the design of energy
saving solutions and continues to raise their awareness of environmental
protection. Waste water, waste gas from boilers and noise produced by
the Group are all tested against relevant standards and requirements.

The Group also supports green objectives by merging low carbon
operation into its production process and aims at low carbonization,
paperless and energy saving by reducing the use of natural resources and
energy such as fossil fuels, water, electricity and timbers.
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Corporate Culture

The Company aims to continue its business in prescription drugs for
autoimmune rheumatic diseases and become the number one brand for
basic medication in such field. It also has active presence in the areas of
medical cosmetics, healthcare products and precision medical care and
strives to become an outstanding and diversified major health industry
group. The Company promotes team cooperation, and has defined
clear individual responsibilities and established values of responsibility,
pragmatism, open-mindedness and sharing. It aims to provide its
customers with high-quality products, to create high-quality life for its
employees, to obtain high-quality investments for its shareholders and to
diligently perform its corporate responsibilities for the society. It inherits
and introduces innovations on traditional medicine theory in order to
develop and lead the future healthcare business.

Employee Guidelines

The Company follows the principle of fairness and equality in providing
employment opportunities, remuneration, training, performance
assessment and promotion, and has never discriminated on the grounds
of gender, age, ethnicity, religion, culture and educational background.
It is committed to providing all employees with an equal development
platform and protecting their lawful interests, and strives to create a
healthy and harmonious working environment.

The Company’s standards for staff recruitment and deployment are in
strict compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations of the

PRC.

The Company is mainly subject to the following laws and regulations
relating to prohibition against the employment of child and forced labour:

. Labour Law of the PRC
° Labour Contract Law of the PRC
. Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors

° Provisions on the Prohibition against the Use of Child Labour (State
Council Order No. 364)

o Special Provisions on Labour Protection of Female Workers in
Zhejiang Province

° Standards for Distribution of High-temperature Subsidies in
Zhejiang Province

In 2016, the Company did not violate any of the above laws and
regulations.
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Employment Policy

It is the principle of the Company to hire the right people to take the
right job. In order to maintain a reasonable staff composition, the
Company has developed qualifications and standards for different
positions as the guidelines for staff recruitment. The Company’s
recruitment channels include campus recruitment, social recruitment
and internal recommendation. Each candidate must have their academic
qualifications and professional skills verified and pass the relevant
interviews. The Company practices the principle of equal pay for equal
work and sticks to the philosophy of equality, willingness and mutual
agreement. It has signed a written labour contract with each employee,
regardless of their ethnicity, religion and gender. In order to protect the
interests of its employees as a whole, a collective agreement is entered
into by the Company and the labour union.

In addition, the Company also has a clear dismissal procedure in
place in accordance with the Labour Contract Law. In case of serious
dereliction of duty or serious violation of national laws and regulations
or serious violation of relevant rules and regulations of the Company
by any employee, the Company may terminate his/her labour contract
and handle the relevant matters according to the Company’s Employee
Handbook.

The Company not only can maintain a suitable size of workforce to meet
the needs of its current and future development, but can also provide
its employees with challenging and motivational career development
opportunities. It has established an assessment and evaluation system
and promotion mechanism integrating training, use and assessment
of talents, and has built a strong career development platform for its
employees, which has realised a virtuous cycle for the cultivation, use
and selection of talents and in turn laid a solid foundation and provided
strong impetus for the sustainable development of the Company.

The remuneration of the employees of the Company is determined with
reference to market survey and in view of the development needs of
the Company to match their capability, contribution and competence.
Annual discretionary bonuses will also be provided based on individual
performance as an incentive for their contribution. The Company also
makes contributions to pension, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and
housing fund for its employees in accordance with national regulations.
The Company constantly reforms and improves its employee
remuneration policy and system in order to ensure that employee
remuneration increases with corporate performance and that employees
can receive values fairly based on their contributions.

74

Annual Report 2016 F#f



RIE - @ NERRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

THEBE

REPETESIEMEENTE RAE
TZTHEERTE(REARKMBESEHE)
MPEARKMBESHERE)THERE
Ko REIWAEBTEITE AN TIER
WOHE EEETETHI - WIKSIE - 3
EABRBETTERIES - EFEETHERT
ERARERRERBELE LR ERNE
BRE  METXNHEENITIERM - 8TH
KEBREAEMHABRBERKEEEHRTE 2 -

ABHER
BRPZBMEEZ T - ARBEAEES -
Fhe R HEES  TELKRLEME
EWNBT UEBREAZEBMEE-

ETERERER

NRAAERECELENANRAROREBRE
VHESTHZ  REEINHNTERNGE
ERBEAETINEER  EREENRERES -

REMOER L TEHEB MR TRRAREHE
SEREE2RBEIMNEAESEERZ  RETR
HTHBRBEUNBERRE - R AFBE
BEEH AT E (OAMAFA]) - XA -
WEHT - E8HM BEREFHAREE
RANEFBEERARE—UBET XEE
PREIMERERS HHBETMIER
=R R R R BGE R RIEE
RETHME -

RABTIHEZTHFREB  BREAEFIMKTE
BOEEERAS - BETH8RS - RBL - MR R
NERBERLRRREEHNEEN - RAKRTR
BTHMERBRRRI  ERETIRHE
SRR RBRAEERR  BEABERESR
ERBERMBE - AR - REE WG
MBTIRH-TELOHNBEERERRE - AR
HETEE -RBEHMA - AFESEHEBRE
MEBERARET  YURMBE  BEREYRFLA
MYTEBOEEY -

Working Hours

In order to help its employees strike a balance between work and life, the
working hours of the employees of the Company are in compliance with
the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC and the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC. Under the working system of the Company, office staff
work 40 hours per week and production staff work in shifts and take
turns to have holidays. Sales staff work irregular hours. If any employee is
required to work overtime, he/she will be compensated correspondingly
by the Company in accordance with the relevant PRC labour laws
and regulations. The employees’ days off and statuary holidays are in
compliance with the requirements of the national labour laws.

Staff Structure

We encourage and respect diversity. A company should have employees
of different genders, ages, skills, educational background, industry
experience and other qualities to achieve an optimum structure and
balance.

Rights and Benefits of Employees

While creating economic benefits, the Company also actively protects
and safeguards the interests of its employees and improves the welfare
of its employees. It attaches great importance to improving the sense of
belonging of its employees and increasing its cohesion.

The Company has established a labour union and a workers’
representative assembly in accordance with the law, aiming to protect
the lawful interests of all of its employees and provide free-flowing
communication channels for its employees. In addition, the Company
keeps every employee informed of its latest development and actively
listens to their opinions and suggestions through its office automation
platform (the “OA Platform”), corporate emails, internal periodicals,
bulletin boards and questionnaires, and takes relevant remedial measures
to tackle problems that are of concerns to its employees in order to
protect their interests.

All employees of the Company are entitled to paid leaves. In addition to
the statutory holidays, its employees also receive bonuses, allowances,
subsidies and benefits provided by the Company in accordance with
the relevant systems of the PRC and the Company. In addition to basic
medical insurance contributions, the Company also makes commercial
accident insurance and supplementary pension contributions for its
employees to complement the basic medical and pension insurance
contributions. Furthermore, the Company reimburses those employees
who meet specified conditions for a certain proportion of their medical
expenses to reduce their burden. During the reporting period, the
Company visited its sick and retired employees and provided them with
care and assistance in the form of money and supplies.
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In order to enrich the leisure activities of its employees, the Company
has established a badminton association, a football association and a
basketball association, providing its employees with sports venues and
entertainment facilities including basketball courts and badminton halls
for weekly activities, and holds competitions with Group companies,
business partners and communities from time to time. Moreover, it
publishes the “New Liwah” ({FT3Z%) ) internal monthly magazine, and
operates a Wechat public account named “Gather at Lansen” ({[&
BB )) to enrich the cultural life of its employees. During the reporting
period, the Company had organised over 30 activities including football
games, badminton games, hiking, little Liwah painters and rewalking
Liwah’s road, with approximately 1,000 participants, which have
built a platform for its employees to exhibit themselves and conduct
communication while relieving their pressure.

Staff Health and Safety

Employees are the most important assets and resources of the Company.
As such, the Company always puts the health and safety of its employees
in the first place. It protects the production safety of its staff, and is
committed to providing its employees with healthcare as well as a safe,
healthy and protected working environment.

The Company’s production workshops are all installed with equipment
for dust, noise and poison protection. Signs of dangerous goods are
set up, and the use and storage of combustible and explosive goods is
regulated. Its production staff members are provided with appliances
for labour protection including protection equipment to minimise the
damages to the health of its employees. Besides, the Company holds
annual drills for fire evacuation, self-help and escape on a regular basis
to enhance the awareness of safety and self-protection of its employees
and prevent accidents at work. The Company also conducts regular
monitoring and review of occupational disease hazard factors for its
production facilities. During the year, the occupational hazard factors
(including microwave and dust) of certain plants of the Company were
inspected by third parties to prevent, control and eliminate occupational
hazards and improve the working environment of its employees.
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The Company has formulated the Employee Health Management
Procedures ({1t 38 T EE 2 HF2)) and the Hygiene and Personal
Health Condition Management Procedures ({4 A B2 ER R E
B2 )), and organises all staff to receive regular health examinations
each year. For its employees at positions with occupational hazards, the
Company strictly implements the requirements of the Law of the PRC
on Prevention of Occupational Diseases and relevant labour protection
regulations, and strives to lower the incidence of occupational diseases
through regular health examinations and resting. The Company made
every effort to improve its employees working environment and facilities
and had been dedicated to providing a warm and comfortable working
environment for all of its employees. In addition, the Company has
canteens at different workplaces, providing more than 20 types of
healthy food with rich nutrients every day.

Staff Training and Development

The Company values talents and provides a platform for their
development by recruiting talents using a regulated and sound system
and stimulating their development potential. The Company adopts the
principle of unified management and training by grade in staff education
and training and has established a multi-level training system with
various forms.

Since the date of joining the Company, new employees will receive
training on corporate culture, rules and regulations, production safety
and necessary pre-job skills.

The Company also arranges various training for all employees each year,
covering many areas including management, quality standards, skills
and development. It has arranged a series of training for senior and
middle management on leadership and team building, and reviewed
the results of training to improve the relevance and effectiveness of
the training, which has produced positive results by improving the skills
and professionalism of its employees. During the reporting period, the
Company arranged over 100 training sessions to meet different needs,
with more than 2,400 participants and over 20 hours of training per
person.
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Based on the nature and features of positions, the Company has
created four career paths for staff holding positions in operation and
management, marketing, specialised technique and skilled operations
respectively. It encourages and organises qualified employees to
participate in professional technical training and examinations, issues
certificates to certified staff in the field of specialised technique, and
provides them with grade allowances accordingly. The Company
also encourages its employees to participate in various occupational
qualification examinations and provides sufficient free time for its
technicians and staff with occupational qualifications to receive training
or continuing education, in the hope that its employees can realise their
self-value and achieve their career development goals.

The Company has established a dual-channel career development system
in view of the rules and needs of its development. The dual-channel
development system stipulates assessment standards for staff promotion
and is closely related to the remuneration, learning and development of
its employees. It has built a fair, healthy and broad development platform
for all employees and encourages them to constantly improve their own
job skills.

Supply Chain Management

Supply chain management is an important element of the Group's
quality control system. The Group conducts its pharmaceuticals, devices
and cosmetics operations according to the business scope approved by
the drug administration authorities and has obtained all relevant and
valid business licences. Qualifications of suppliers and customers will be
scrutinised rigorously during our procurement and sales processes to
ensure they all operate within their business scope.

To ensure the quality of all raw materials, auxiliary materials,
packaging materials and products of the Group on the supply side,
the Group strictly follows relevant regulatory requirements of the Drug
Administration Law of the PRC, Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical
Products, Regulation on the Supervision and Administration of
Medical Devices, Good Supply Practice for Medical Devices, GMP and
Pharmacopoeia of the PRC, and has developed and will continue to
optimise its supply management system, suppliers management system,
operating procedures for suppliers selection and assessment system.

The Company is very selective about its suppliers and products. After
the eligibility of suppliers is ensured, our production and quality control
departments will assess their capacity and quality and conduct on-site
audits, in addition to applicability and stability of product quality tests.
Only those suppliers and products which have gone through our audit
and assessment processes may be listed on the Qualified Suppliers
Directory and Qualified Products Directory, respectively.
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The Company will also conduct long-term quality supervision and
regular appraisal on all suppliers. If material changes to the eligibility
of suppliers or serious quality issues are identified, the Company will
suspend the supplier’s product provisions immediately and revoke its
supplier qualification when necessary to ensure the quality and safety of
the Company’s pharmaceuticals.

In 2016, the Company procured raw materials, auxiliary materials and
packaging material from 131 suppliers with geographical distribution
as follows: 90 in east China; 6 in south China, 11 in north China; 11 in
central China; 7 in south-west, 2 in north-west; and 4 in north-east.
Furthermore, there were 10 product cooperative suppliers, among
which 6, 3 and 1 were pharmaceuticals, devices and cosmetics suppliers
respectively, with geographical distribution as follows: 6 in east China; 1
in central China; 2 in north-east; and 1 in north-west. The 10 suppliers
all successfully went through the supplier and product qualification
assessment and supplier quality management system.

Product Liability

The Group is committed to ensuring product quality and safety, especially
when most of the Group's products are pharmaceuticals, ensuring product
quality and safety is of utmost importance to the Company. It is the policy
of the Group to “quality first, adhere to standards, improve continuously,
and serve customers to their satisfaction”. The Group strictly observes
relevant requirements of pharmaceutical GMP, develops product quality
management system and documents of operating procedures according
to relevant laws and regulations of the country, provides training to and
regularly assesses related personnel. In the course of production, the Group
has always placed emphasis on quality control.

The Group established various quality examination and management
standards for Chinese herbal medicines, auxiliary materials, packaging
materials, semi-finished and finished products, detailing the test
subjects, test methods and test items. The Group examines its products
primarily by random sampling during the production process according
to criteria equal to or more stringent than national standards.

The Group implements a comprehensive GMP management model from
start to finish. A strict inspection system is in place for the whole process
from raw materials procurement, purchase to warehousing. Goods will
be returned immediately once sub-standard quality is found. If non-
conforming products are discovered in the course of production, quality
control personnel would have the power of veto to ensure complete
satisfaction of quality requirements for our ex-factory products. The Group
has laid down relevant product recall procedures to recall products with
potential quality defects that would be hazardous or harmful to health in a
timely manner to make sure the drugs are safe and effective to consume.
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The Company acts strictly in accordance with the laws and regulations of
the PRC regarding product safety, which primarily include:

o Drug Administration Law of the PRC
o Rules for Implementation of Drug Administration Law of the PRC
° Law of the PRC on Product Quality

. Good Manufacture Practice of Medical Products (China Food and
Drug Administration)

° Measures for the Reporting and Monitoring of Adverse Drug
Reactions (Ministry of Health Order 81)

o Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices

° Good Supply Practice for Medical Devices
° Regulations on the Hygiene Supervision over Cosmetics

Our quality management department is responsible for enquiries
and complaints handling regarding product quality. Consumers or
downstream customers may give feedback and make complaints
through the Company’s sales personnel or customer service department.
The quality management department will inspect and verify the causes
based on the feedback before making a reply. As for production issues,
the quality management department will forward the issues to suppliers
or manufacturing enterprises for their inspection and reply. Preventive
and follow-up measures will be formulated for repetitive issues.

For the products of the Group, pharmaceuticals and medical devices
come with electronic monitoring codes and anti-tampering codes
respectively, which can be used to track the products and prevent
counterfeit products from using the Company’s brand. Meanwhile, the
Group has always attached great importance to the maintenance and
protection of intellectual property rights. The Group has been registering
its trademarks and brands and actively declaring patent protection for
years. Generally, the Group applied for new patents every year and
possesses 48 registered trademarks and 17 validly granted patents
to date. In December 2015, the Group passed the assessment of the
Enterprise Intellectual Property Management Standard and obtained the
intellectual property management system certificate.
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The Group has post personnel for quality control from procurement,
acceptance, warehousing, storage to retrieval. Post personnel will
report any quality issues to quality management department. Quality
issues of sold products will be discovered through customer enquiries
and complaints. If it is determined to be a serious issue, downstream
customers will be asked to suspend sales and proceed to product recall.

The Group respects consumer privacy. It will answer their enquiries
truthfully and will not reveal their information such as contact numbers.

Anti-corruption

The Company has established rules that no bribes, commissions, rebates,
illegal political donations or other improper payments shall be provided
or given to any person. Business entertainment shall be legal, reasonable
and in compliance with the codes for customers and the relevant
departments. In order to avoid conflicts of interest, any financial activities
or other activities not conducted in the course of performing duties for
the Company must be legal and shall not conflict with the performance
of duties for the Company. None of the Company’s financial resources,
assets or influence shall be abused, and its good reputation shall not be
tarnished. The Company will promptly report any person suspected of a
crime to the relevant departments.

In addition to ensuring integrity and discipline in system development,
the Company has also established an internal control system to
strengthen internal monitoring, risk control and anti-corruption
management. An internal audit committee has been established under
the board of directors to be fully responsible for the internal audit and
monitoring and internal control system development of the Group. An
internal audit department has also been established to monitor the
financial income and expenses, financial budget, financial accounting,
asset quality, business performance and other economic activities of
the Company as well as the Company’s internal investments including
infrastructure projects and major technical upgrades so as to lower
operational risks. In addition, the Company has developed the Internal
Audit Guidelines ({/N 2 T £ 48§ FI)) to conduct the audit of the
Company for any defect in internal operation or any irregularities in
order to strictly prevent unlawful operations including bribery, fraud and
corruption and facilitate the operation of the Company in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations. During the reporting period, these
rules and systems played a positive role of control and prevention in
risk control and anti-corruption management of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and no major defects were identified.
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Social Welfare

The Company has been adhering to the business philosophy of people-
oriented, caring for staff and repaying the society. As part of the
sustainable development of the society, the Company also actively
contributes to the society while obtaining resources from it. To promote
social welfare is not just an obligation of the Company, but also
necessary for its growth and development. The Company has achieved a
high degree of integration of its operation with its social responsibilities,
and actively participates in promoting social welfare with the aim of
“taking responsibility.”

Since its inception, the Company has established funds under its name
and special scholarship funds, and has actively participated in “city
sunshine” ([ % B% 3 ) activities, which were utilised to help with the
learning, life and medical treatment of the children of migrant workers
each year. It vigorously participates in environment protection and
public welfare activities including environmental improvement, sewage
treatment, flood prevention, water drainage, water supply and water
saving. While repaying the society, the Company also actively guides its
employees to participate in various charity organisations and create a
spirit of taking pride in becoming volunteers.

On 12 August 2015, there was an explosion in the dangerous goods
warehouse located in the Binhai New Area of Tianjin. Numbers of fire-
fighters and surrounding masses were injured in the accident and
country-wide concern was raised. As one of the Chinese pharmaceutical
enterprises, we were deeply concerned about the explosion in Tainjin
Tanggu, and the Company immediately donated Comfy human-like
collagen dressings to the local Red Cross and hospitals.
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111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
BEE ¢ +852 2218 8288 EHTER1115E
55K : +852 2815 2239 kZ251

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 180, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing ("ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

(Refer to Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements and
the Group’s critical accounting estimates and judgements in relation to
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets set out in Note 5)

The Group had goodwill of US$6,824,000 and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives of US$21,044,000 as at 31 December 2016.
Management have performed an impairment review under International
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”. Recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units are determined based on value in use
calculations, which include significant assumptions and judgements
made by management concerning the estimated future cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and because this
area involves a significant degree of judgement and estimation made
by management, in particular the estimation of future cash flows and
discount rate.

See Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements where the
key assumptions used in the impairment model have been disclosed.

Our response:
Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives included:

—  Discussing cash flow projections with senior management;
— Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry and by considering the

historical accuracy of budgeting; and

—  Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of a
reasonably possible change in discount rate.
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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HEFEZRI : P05440
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number: P05440

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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HEZZT—"F+= A=+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

—E-AE —T-RF
2016 2015
M 5 FEx FEx
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
A Revenue 6 94,824 93,349
Fi=R=A DN Cost of sales (41,048) (45,386)
EF Gross profit 53,776 47,963
H A A Other income 6 2,120 5,265
HERDHEAX Selling and distribution expenses (29,279) (27,176)
THRAX Administrative expenses (17,432) (12,228)
RERR Profit from operations 9,185 13,824
KK 1R Loss from flood 19 — (4,272)
IRAEEMRMITEEI K Administrative penalty and other related
FEMBEE A ginkgo product expenses 9 (1,375) (3,953)
TESB T EMATFE Fair value gain on derivative financial
W & instruments 1,129 —
B 7 B AR Finance costs 8 (3,367) (3,430)
JEML B2 AR Z B Fi18  Share of post-tax profit of associates
pigl 1,454 2,162
BT EB AR R Profit before income tax 9 7,026 4,331
FrEHAx Income tax expense 1 (3,190) (2,260)
FEER Profit for the year 3,836 2,071
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HEZFT—R"F+=A=+—H L JZ For the year ended 31 December 2016

—E-XE —E—hF
2016 2015
M 5 FTEx FxT
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
Ho 2 UK & Other comprehensive income
HERGEEF DA ZE  Item that may be reclassified subsequently
Bz ZHH : to profit or loss:
HEGINERSE L 2B Exchange differences arising on translation
HER of foreign operations (9,550) (8,712)
FEHMEEKZE Other comprehensive income for the year,
(FN kR #]) net of tax (9,550) (8,712)
FEXHKZAHE Total comprehensive income for
the year (5,714) (6,641)
AATEEAEBR Profit attributable to owners of the
Company 3,836 2,071
KATEBAEN Total comprehensive income
2 TH I = A attributable to owners of the
Company (5,714) (6,641)
EIN 1
US cents US cents
BREFN —EAXKR#EE Earnings per share — basic and diluted 13 0.9 0.5
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R=F—XF+=H=+—H Asat 31 December 2016

—E-AE —T—0F
2016 2015
Bt 5 FErx FEx
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
RBEE Non-current assets
ME - WEREE Property, plant and equipment 14 30,907 33,606
TE L H HE & FRIE Prepaid land lease payment 15 1,963 2,158
EEEE Intangible assets 16 24,342 25,239
Bk Goodwill 17 6,824 6,824
MEeBITA Derivative financial instruments 33 2,280 —
A RAR/NC] B v ey Interests in associates 18 39,424 33,690
105,740 101,517
REBEE Current assets
Fa Inventories 19 14,576 17,462
B 5 K HAth & Y 5k 18 Trade and other receivables 20 65,197 56,220
A L H HE & FRIE Prepaid land lease payment 15 52 55
a] Uy [Bl F 18 Tax recoverable — 224
BEMIEITER Pledged bank deposits 21 27,095 23,832
RekBEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21 10,102 18,976
117,022 116,769
HEE Total assets 222,762 218,286
EaREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BEXR#E Capital and reserves
EAREEAEEESR Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
i A Share capital 22 4,150 4,150
P 10 4 (8 Share premium 23 18,945 24,302
AN FE {55 1 Foreign exchange reserve 23 (6,001) 3,549
VEE B Statutory reserve 23 8,927 8,344
R & A Retained profits 64,355 61,102
BRER Total equity 90,376 101,447
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M=ZZT—"F+=H=+—H Asat 31 December 2016

=F—RF e
2016 2015
M 5 FEx FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000

FREBEE Non-current liabilities
& Borrowings 24 — 1,090
ELEF BB ARG Deferred tax liabilities 25 1,876 1,548
1,876 2,638

REBEE Current liabilities

&K Borrowings 24 105,098 88,881
mEHRIBEEE Current tax liabilities 1,402 1,473
B 5 Kk H A ERFRIE Trade and other payables 26 22,784 22,677
Hith & BaE Other financial liabilities 27 1,226 1,170
130,510 114,201
wmesE Total liabilities 132,386 116,839
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 222,762 218,286
RE(AE) EEFE Net current (liabilities)/assets (13,488) 2,568
BEERADARG Total assets less current liabilities 92,252 104,085

FLIFIBOEMF EHRERER_Z—tF=H The financial statements on pages 89 to 180 were approved and
“tHEESSHERKETE - WAHMTA  authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2017 and are

TREEE: signed on its behalf by:
BE BE
Director Director
2EER &2
LIU Bang Min HOU Song
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZT—"F+= A=+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

BA R&HEE HSERE EEHE REEFA MR

Foreign
Share Share  exchange Statutory Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity

FET FET FET FET FET FET
Us$'000 us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 us$'000 us$'000
(Mg 3E22) (B 7E23) (P 7£23) (P 3£ 23)
(Note 22) (Note 23) (Note 23) (Note 23)

BE-Z2—AF Year ended 31 December 2015
+ZA=+—HILEE
RZZE—RF—A—HZ##% Balance at 1 January 2015 4,150 30,819 12,261 7,874 59,501 114,605
P& B (Ht 5E12) Dividends (Note 12) — (6,517) — — — (6,517)
HEBANETRS Transactions with owners — (6,517) — — — (6,517)
F 2 & F Profit for the year — — — — 2,071 2,071
E &2 &= Other comprehensive income for
the year
BREBIEBEEZ Exchange differences arising
ME 5 E 5 on translation of foreign
operations — — (8,712) — — (8,712)
FETHEWR R B Total comprehensive income for
the year — — (8,712) — 2,071 (6,641)
WEREETEHE Appropriations to statutory reserve — — — 470 (470) —

R-—ZT—AF+=-HA=+—H Balance at 31 December 2015

2 W 4,150 24,302 3,549 8,344 61,102 101,447
BE-_Z—XE Year ended 31 December 2016
+=A=+—-BLEE
RZZT—R"F—HA—BZ#% Balance at 1 January 2016 4,150 24,302 3,549 8,344 61,102 101,447
& B (Bt 5E12) Dividends (Note 12) — (5,357) — — — (5,357)
HEBANETRS Transactions with owners — (5,357) — — — (5,357)
FREE Profit for the year — — — - 3,836 3,836
FEAEMEPENRE Other comprehensive income for
the year
BMEBGINEBEEZ Exchange differences arising
ME 5 E 5 on translation of foreign
operations — — (9,550) — — (9,550)
FEXEWRR BT Total comprehensive income for
the year — — (9,550) — 3,836 (5,714)
WEREETERHE Appropriations to statutory reserve - — — 583 (583) —
WZZT—X"FE+=-A=+—H Balance at 31 December 2016
2w 4,150 18,945 (6,001) 8,927 64,355 90,376
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZFT—R"F+=A=+—H L JZ For the year ended 31 December 2016

—E-AE —T—RF
2016 2015
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
REREXBZRERE Cash flows from operating activities
B BT 15 7 A1 Profit before income tax 7,026 4,331
R Adjustments for:
B R %K A Finance costs recognised 3,367 3,430
B A Interest income (558) (1,157)
FEAL B & R R 2 BR B 3 Share of post-tax profit of associates (1,454) (2,162)
B 5 M WK IE R B B Provision for impairment of trade receivables 233 13
E b YR IB R B B Provision for impairment of other receivables 22 —
WE - BENEETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,862 2,771
MEeBRIENAFEKRZ Fair value gain on derivative financial
instruments (1,129) —
TE - b 1 & SR IE # 3E Amortisation of prepaid land lease payment 59 63
HEWBAREE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 10 —
HEWE BWERZHBE Losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 108 62
| B Write off of intangible assets 1,546 9
7 &8 M Write off of inventories — 458
BRIELEHE NRBAE Loss on deemed disposal of an associate 300 —
KK B 1B Loss from flood — 4,272
B AEEN Amortisation of intangible assets 582 620
BREFTERERE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 84 31
LEESEBYI 2 K& & Operating profit before working capital
changes 13,058 12,741
FERL,/ () Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 1,690 (6,380)
B REAMEUFIEGE M), (ncrease)/Decrease in trade and other
D receivables (14,165) 10,406
B 5 K Hoh fE Wy FRIE G 0 Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables
OBt 4) 1,579 (4,824)
MEEE S Cash generated from operations 2,162 11,943
B F A Interest paid (3,311) (3,376)
BB Income tax paid (2,552) (2,065)
AETE () EEZ Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
WL FRE activities (3,701) 6,502
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZT—"F+= A=+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

—E—-RF —T—1F
2016 2015
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
RERETBHZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
EEMEBITHERCEN) D (Increase)/Decrease in pledged bank deposits (4,992) 1,746
BEME WMEREZHE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,396) (3,685)
BEEREE Purchase of intangible assets (2,267) (3,501)
HEDE - MENMBREFTEFEIE Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment 1 25
Ug EY Bt N B B Dividend received from an associate 796 1,517
HENBARBUFRES R Net cash outflow from disposal of a subsidiary (285) —
g iR /NE] Acquisition of an associate (8,352) —
2R & Interest received 558 811
RETETHE 2 F5E Net cash used in investing activities (16,937) (3,087)
REMETHZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
ERFTSFRA Proceeds from borrowings 120,370 94,781
EEEE TJA’IE Repayment of borrowings (102,577) (87,734)
RS Dividends paid (5,357) (6,517)
FEZEESL R FHE Net cash generated from financing activities 12,436 530
HERIREEEW 2 FCRL), Net(decrease)/increase in cash and cash
0 equivalents (8,202) 3,945
FHNReMESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 18,976 15,819
EREE & Effects of exchange rate changes (672) (788)
ERBELRREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10,102 18,976
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HEZFT—R"F+=A=+—H L JZ For the year ended 31 December 2016

AERER
PAEBEEIERBRAATART DR
ZENFNRA+AEHRESESFEMAKL
REREERAR  HRHAZZE—F
FHALtAREEABRARIMBERA
AI([HEZZ FT)) R £ET7 © AR B H) 3 1
% = & /4 Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.
0. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the
Cayman Islands ° 7R &) #) = 22 & 5 40 B
URBBEHERISRETEHFRNE]
1£1203-4% -

ARBINEBREHEBDRREER - AR
AMEBAR CERART - SHIAEE])
MEIBXBEIRBRERESEER - K
SEX2EREARAMB(HE]DE
1T%%  FBEHEHNME30 - FR - AE

X A Al A& Cathay International Holdings
Limited ([CIHD BB AR - Z AR HERA
RETMKL ERNDERAEFRD
b EFRREETRAAMHELK
AR R D Bl A B 2w B R B AR A N EH
EFBR)BRAFRAH -

REVBRBRREHREERFERL
Z2RR
REMBRERDBREBESFTENEZER
2(BEREtENZBG)EANAE
EABRRS RS ER - BReFER
(TEIFR g e &R ) ka2 B AT s (B R
B s R ) REBCAB G D B
BRERE - I HRAMBHRERERE
BEARABMERIMERAAES LHHRR
(TETRAUMDRENERKE -

Corporate Information

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 10 September 2009 and its shares have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 7 May 2010. The Company’s registered
office is located at Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P. O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is located at Suites 1203—4, 12/F,, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with
the Company referred to as the “Group”) are manufacturing and
trading of pharmaceutical products. The principal activities of the
Group are carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and are set out in Note 30. There were no significant changes in
the Group's operations during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH"), a company incorporated in Bermuda and whose
shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The directors
consider the immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company to be Cathay International Pharma Manufacture and
Distribution (China) Limited and CIH respectively.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements and Going Concern Assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “IFRSs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).
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HEZZT—"F+= A=+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

REVBRBRREHREERFERL
ZRR(E)

HAEMBHRERRBELRAEERE
HEREREHRRAFEFENET S
MEBERTESRIARRI - FFEE
HHBERATEFABER - BEBAEH
S A BmARNET(ETHEIE
RIARRINMEER)2S  MAEERE
BRBEREOTA -

FA - REBE AR F 43,836,000% 7T
MRIERR ERHaBEBERERD
& 13,488,000 T - LA BRED
BEALEBENFELE TEHBEBERTD
EEESRNEB -ZT—AF+_-_AZ=
+—HRAERT—EANKLENRE!
% °

—IBRAE - AR ER 2B A B8 E AR
REEERTHRERIEBRITEE L
TR - R X5 E 2 B A AT ES A
BIRITHHLE - BERARKBEETH
BRrmEERSR RBEHR K
SEYEBERRTEEKRIHERIT
EEEYER -AKETESHBEE
MEREEEESFR AR NKE
AE o RITEEETERE R HEH
DEERRRAERD Bt AREA

T—UR_F-—R"EF+-_A=1+—HiE
AR+ _EAINHNMBEMLE  MAR
FAEEEMRREREEEREUGENM
BHRRTIBIRE -

—BEASERREEBFBREER K
SEERUBEEMBERRFELAE -

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements and Going Concern Assumption

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for certain financial liabilities and
derivative financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies set out below. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in United States
Dollars (“US$"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

During the year, the Group has a profit of US$3,836,000 and at the
end of reporting period, its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by US$13,488,000. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared based on the assumption that the Group can
be operated as a going concern and will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operation in the next twelve months from 31
December 2016.

As in the past, the Group will start negotiation with the relevant
banks on extension or renewal of the bank borrowings a few
months prior to their maturities and obtain the approvals from the
relevant banks before their respective maturities. Notwithstanding
the operating cash flow from certain of its subsidiaries, as at
the end of reporting period, the Group does not foresee that
the bank borrowings will not be renewed or extended before
maturity. The Group is also exploring options to secure long term
funding, including debt and/or equity, to re-finance part of the
bank borrowings and partial disposal of equity interest in an
associate. Accordingly, the Group should be able to meet in full its
financial obligations as and when they fall due for the next twelve
months from 31 December 2016 without significant curtailment of
operations and the directors of the Company are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements accordingly.
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BE_F—

NE+ = A=+ —B L& For the year ended 31 December 2016

3. BRI RNEBITERMBRSE

p;- 4= |

-+ A

3.1

3.2

RPF TR THABR T REE
Bl—E-f—-XF—A—HBEX
BB mEER —T——FZ

MR “E-NFES
MEE B
mauﬁw RERTE
FIROER

lzauEW%6f EREAEANTE
kBB ER REHETE
E38HMIBE]

ARMBREENE REER EREA
1058 EREIE®R  wBIME)
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g st B B 285
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R FETHAEE O REK
WEEBAFZE -
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0RRERETE HRERECE
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BRGBEEER HEPANMEEE
BISHREER] (BB BHREE
BIE155MEE)?
BRBEHREEL BEFALMSE

E155 Uy 252
BB mEER  HE
£165

BEEMBREREE HMEXIRBN
BeRBERR 2B

3. Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs

3.1

3.2

Adoption of new or revised IFRSs — effective 1
January 2016

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements 2012-2014

Cycle
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
IAS 1
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods

IAS 16 and IAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the
IFRS 10, Consolidation Exception
IFRS 12 and
IAS 28

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial
IAS 27 Statements

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact
on the Group's financial statements.

New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective

The following new or revised IFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses'

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements 2014—
2016 Cycle'?

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue From Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to

IFRS 15)?

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

IFRS 16 Leases?

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration?
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3. ERMHFTREEITERMBERSE 3.
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3.2 EEMEERERBHR RSB 3.2

Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not

B R B A R 5 22 B (4R
RSB EF-A-BRZGMKZ

yet effective (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

FEHB AR

2 RZE-NF-—A—Asiz&RABZ 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
FEHIR A

3 RZE-NF-A—-—Badz&MHBZ 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
FEHB AR

# ZEBIRER=ZE—X"F—A—H # The amendments were originally intended to be effective for

gz R MR AR - ERAHR
BWIEL Bk - REEAZZE
1 JE R BT ©

B BB 7 R CER FE9E - &
TA

B B B 75 s 22 A B95R 5| A B
EMEESBERFEMHRTE - R
BABSBEEAENKDMEHNReRE
EFEN (EBEXA)NERZ
BAEWAFTEI LA DGR EERIE
CREMABBEINHREELS
ENAe RN E(ENBReRER
SHRAF)MEBR TR —BIZEENX
REtE - WEBOEBEARES
BEREBMEHNRSREUNREES
BMEE  AINEANRSRERN
AEMEBTANEAFEFAR
HEERDZETE - BEAINYIFHE
RE AR R R IE A T EEA
Hin 2 EW S AT ENFFEER
M= T H - FTEEMERLER
TAAUEAFEEHIAER -

BB EHREERFSREREML
U A FEEHIARAETE
e REERIINIENARE
BREERER KR BER S £
FEIMMELEBEEN - LR g
—REFEIRTE  NEFEER
MHEBRREARRBRERREEE
) o

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments of the amendments continue to be permitted.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income if the objective of the entity’s
business model is both to hold and collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make
an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt and
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

IFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for
all financial assets not measured at fair value through profit
or loss replacing the incurred loss model in IAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in financial
statements.

BA A B8
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Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued)

IFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from 1AS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS
9 retains the requirements in IAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. IFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

IFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

IFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under IFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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3. HMFITREBITRRIHBHRSE 3. Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)
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3.2 EEMEERERBHR RSB

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
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yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to IFRS 15)

The amendments to IFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede IAS
17 Leases and related interpretations, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under IFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a
right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the
lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion
and presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the
right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured
on a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be
made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for leases
that are classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, IAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.
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Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new or revised IFRSs and the
directors are not yet in a position to quantity the effects on
the Group's financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment losses, if any.
The result of the subsidiary is accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the reporting
date. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit (“CGU") is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount
with its recoverable amount, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to
each asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to
below its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value
in use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described in policy for associate.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, interests in associates
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of associates
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associates (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associates.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes associates. On
acquisition of the interests in associates, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s interest in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 /Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had impairment loss been
recognised for the interests in associates in prior years.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be associates, or when the
investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains interests in the former associates and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a partial interests in the associates is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associates. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associates on
the same basis as would be required if that associates had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associates would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interests in associates
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associates that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other
than properties under construction) less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis. The useful lives of major categories of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Building and plant 20-50 years
Machineries 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Costs include professional fees, direct costs of construction and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net sales proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Prepaid land lease payment
Prepaid land lease payment represent up-front payments to acquire
long term interest in the usage of land. These payments are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on straight-line method over the lease
terms between 48 to 50 years.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are available
for use. The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in administrative expenses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent impairment accumulated losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs

An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on an
individual project is recognised provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

o demonstration of technical feasibility of completing the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

. sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs (Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Development expenditure which does not meet the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life are
amortised on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
when the products are available for use. The amortisation expense
is recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses. Capitalised development costs with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment annually.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that have a finite
useful life to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset (or
cash-generating unit), discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets or
cash-generating unit.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. If an asset’s carrying amount is decreased
as a result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised in
profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing
in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease
recognised in other comprehensive income reduces the amount
accumulated in the equity under the heading of revaluation
reserve.

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of any depreciation or amortisation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. All
reversals are recognised in the profit or loss immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
any reversal of impairment should be treated as a revaluation and
therefore credited to other comprehensive income. However, to
the extent that an impairment on the revalued asset was previously
recognised as an expense in the profit or loss, a reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised as income in the profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was acquired. The
Group's financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at
fair value, with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
directly recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 33.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These (including trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised
cost using effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

o a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group'’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of six months to one year, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified as either “financial liabilities at
amortised cost” or “financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss”.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other financial
assets (including borrowings, trade and other payables) and are
recognised when the Group becomes party to the contractual
obligations of the instrument. They are initially recorded at fair
value, net of issue costs. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using effective interest method.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss when the financial liability is either held for trading or
is designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i)
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii)
the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii)
the financial liability contains an embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated as at fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with IAS 18, Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
the future cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at costs, and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investment with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business and the use by others of the Group’s
assets yielding interest, net of discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be reliably measured, revenue is recognised
as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and the title
is passed to customer.

1 1 6 Annual Report 2016 F#f



TSR R M ET
Notes to the Financial Statements

HEZZT—"F+= A=+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2016

TESEHREBEE)

LON: A )
MBWARBEFASRFHELERE
BRAM R RET -

FrE®
FAMGHERERHEMRELENRIEA -

EMHERBAEXRGHAEES (B
AR T ERRAEHAIER
FHREE) RRBREMRERMIEE
LEBEMOBEE -

BEERBERBEMBERERAENEE
REEREERAERERAENERS
BNERZEER KBk TE¥Ee
AARERBTUENMEEREERAGIN
ERMEEREZERABEERBERAG -
BT IR E E XA I B B SR A
HHAHREREBEER - BEXHRA
HEAREREREEN G BFRERT
BENHARAERBEHRECBAREL
LEEGORETE -

PSRN BaNER  EEMSHIR
REMEEKSANERNEER B
MEBETREMEEBREAER  REHR
BUHIEREENERAERNIABR -
ERRBENTERNEZARER -

oh s
EEEBNAXRBEEMENTRLE
REEE(DREEEDUIINEEETT
MRS HETRXSHOERERAR -
SNEEREERABRIUBRESHRNE
AIERBE o LAMNESIE L 2 R FET
RHIFERRAREEAFERRER
EXFEHRE - WINEAEL KA E
MFERHEBBAEHNE -

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is accrued on time basis on the principal
outstanding at effective interest rate.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the assets or liabilities is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in which
they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. US$)
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at
the rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the term of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on straight-line method over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Retirement benefit costs
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (“MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum mandatory
contribution as required by the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. The
contributions recognised in respect to defined contribution benefit
plans are expenses as they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally
of a short term nature.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of assets are included in liabilities
as deferred government grants in the consolidated statement of
financial position and are recognised in profit or loss on straight-
line method over the expected lives of the related assets.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under
“Other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will result in
an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties
(@ A person or a close member to that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group or an entity related
to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segments
under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under IFRS, except that:

o share of results of associates accounted for using equity
method

° income tax
. finance costs

o corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not included in arriving at the operating results
of the operating segment.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on
assessment of the recoverability of receivables from debtors. The
identification of the impairment requires management judgements
and estimates where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of the receivables and impairment losses/reversal
of impairment losses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Management estimates the development costs, which
represented the intellectual property rights generated internally in
pharmaceutical industry and technical know-how with perpetual
royalty-free license with no termination, have indefinite useful lives
as they believe that there is no foreseeable limit on the period of
time over which these intangibles are expected to provide cash
flows and these intellectual property rights can be renewable in a
period of time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in
the market.

The estimated useful lives of the exclusive distribution rights
and technical know-how were made by the management
with reference to the legal limits on the use of the assets and
the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of intangible assets. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations, changed
customer behavior and competitor actions in response to industry
cycles.

Management will increase the amortisation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated useful lives, or will recognise
impairment loss when future cash flows are less than expectation
and fall below the carrying amount of the intangible assets.

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 2 3 )

-



SE

Notes to the Financial Statements
HEZFT—R"F+=A=+—H L JZ For the year ended 31 December 2016

E B gt b5 & M i (&)

BB RIELERIE
AEBEHGMTEMEHR - BETHER
HeBEMAEHENRER - BED
BERHAE - —REBFREZERXS L
EEENERMBLTEE - A&H
SERTHEREFIREATELBENLE
REFTHERIE - B S THNTEH
BERESYLENSETE - BB H
EEBTEETHENOMEHELER
TR -

EERAE
#iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁxﬁﬁﬁ Eﬁ%
WRESELSEMNTERER -FTELA
ﬁﬁﬁEKEIm%ﬁ%ﬁgﬁiﬁi
BUNAKBESRENEBBENITEEL
FFERE - ZERRKBSREENATE
B A BB ERREEE  -RNZF
—RNEFE+_A=+—"HB BHEER@EEA
6,824,000 7T - A E S REAEHFBR
M sF1738 8 -

BEREERE
EBREEMREBEIREEAEBDE
AIRESENHMBERER - AIkDEE A
ANEFERELKAREAEENRSE -
Eﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiaﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ#

c MAEEERERENREFTHBMENR
ax(@%iﬁfﬁi BRI P B B0 3T 3R F 5k
MA&?ETF“’EA%ﬁ@Wﬁ%
BEHEBRKEATE AmMgELi%

mm%#&&gaﬁﬁ cAZE—X
F+-A=+-—HB EWEEFEES
24,342,000 7T °

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Current income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxations.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2016,
the carrying amount of goodwill is US$6,824,000. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 17.

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment losses for intangible assets are recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use, are determined with reference
to the best information available at the end of the reporting date.
Changing the assumptions selected by the Group’s management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the operating
and growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group's financial position and results
of operations. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
intangible assets is US$24,342,000.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Fair value of contingent consideration

The Group determines the fair value of contingent consideration
of purchase of intangible assets based on the forecast of future
performance results of the related pharmaceutical product and
terms of acquisition agreement. The fair value of contingent
consideration will be revised upward or downward where future
performance results are different from previous forecast and as
a result, the change of fair value of contingent consideration will
affect the Group’s financial position and financial performance.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The Group determines the fair value of put option based on the
forecast of future performance results of acquired company and
terms of acquisition agreement. The fair value of put option will
be revised upward or downward where future performance results
are different from previous forecast and as a result, the change of
fair value of put option affect the Group’s financial position and
financial performance.

Revenue and Other Income
An analysis of the Group'’s revenue, and other income for the years
are as follows:

—E-XEF —E—AF

2016 2015

FEx FET

Us$'000 Us$'000

HEEMHBA Revenue from sales of goods 94,824 93,349
Hnk A Other income

RITH B U A Bank interest income 558 1,157

NEgeRiluk Government grants 1,061 1,770

REWA Transition income — 2,040

Hh Others 501 298

2,120 5,265

AREBEREM T BAREME S UEE
AAKENERREAESHRER - &
R 7 B & 1 P 75 4 ] fR 1 o

The Group received grants from the local government in the PRC as
recognition of the Group's performance and development of high-
technology pharmaceutical products. The grants received were not
subject to any conditions.
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Revenue and Other Income (Continued)

On 28 March 2014, the Group reached an agreement with
Novartis AG and Novartis Pharma AG (collectively known
as”Novartis”) to acquire the rights and know-how related to
pharmaceutical product. As the Group has not obtained the
required licences to manufacture or import the pharmaceutical
product in the PRC during the transition period, Novartis would
supply the transition services to the Group which include the
supply of the pharmaceutical product for sale carried out by
Novartis in the PRC. Transition income represented the transfer
of profit generated from the sales of pharmaceutical product by
Novartis. The Certificate of Pharmaceutical Product and Imported
Drug License were transferred to the Group in March 2015 and
November 2015 respectively. The transition period was ended as at
31 December 2015.

Segment Information

Information reported to the executive directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance based on the
types of goods delivered.

With the continuous growth and expansion of the medical
cosmetics products segment, the CODM considered the necessity
of separate reporting of this division, which was grouped
under “Specialty pharmaceuticals” in previous years. With the
changes of the information reported internally to the CODM for
the allocation of resources and performance of business, the
three existing reportable segments have been changed. The
Group has combined “Specialty pharmaceuticals” (excluding
medical cosmetics products) and “Other pharmaceuticals” into
“Pharmaceuticals” and has also renamed “Plant extract and
healthcare products” to “Healthcare products”.

With the changes in the structure and composition of the
reportable segments, certain comparative figures in the segment
information for the year ended 31 December 2015 has been
reclassified and revised to present segment profit on a consistent
basis.
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Segment Information (Continued)
The Group's reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8 are
as follows:

—  Pharmaceuticals: development, production and sale of

specialty pharmaceuticals mainly used in the field of
rheumatology and dermatology and other pharmaceuticals

— Medical cosmetics products: sale of medical cosmetics
products

—  Healthcare products: development, production and sale of
healthcare products

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from

DHRELCEMEENRAREE D continuing operations by reportable and operating segment.
e
BE-_Z—XF+-A=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE BRIZER BEER st
Medical
cosmetics Healthcare
Pharmaceuticals products products Total
FTER FER FTER FTER
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
ATEMDFBUWA Reportable segment revenue 64,460 18,049 12,315 94,824
ATE2HMHEHEF,  Reportable segment profit/
(E18) (loss) 20,312 5,236 (1,051) 24,497

BE-_Z—HF+-A=+—HLEE
(BEH)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (restated)

By BEEAEM fi R @Et
Medical
cosmetic Healthcare
Pharmaceuticals products products Total
FET FET FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
AT 23D EBUA Reportable segment revenue 59,195 8,625 25,529 93,349
BETE2HD HEF Reportable segment profit 18,414 533 3,880 22,827
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Segment Information (Continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the
financial statements as follows:

ZE-AHF —ET—-0F
2016 2015
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
BAREE Profit or loss
AT 2D 2B F Reportable segment profit 24,497 22,827
FEAG B 2 A BB BR B4 7 F) Share of post-tax profit of associates 1,454 2,162
KK B 18 Loss from flood — 4,272)
BAREERNITHRE R EM  Administrative penalty and other related
EEE A ginkgo product expenses (1,375) (3,953)
HAh ko e A Other income not allocated 2,120 3,225
AOBHAX Expenses not allocated (16,303) (12,228)
8 715 B AR Finance costs (3,367) (3,430)
Fx BT 15 #5 B & Profit before income tax 7,026 4,331

EXRERDBRAEKBINERTFH
BHOWA - REE RBEFE L E A
35 & o

RED OGS BRR RN F4RT AR E
VEHBE-—H - ATE2EHRD AN,
(BRESSINEN(EB) RRXE
WA GEAEA YA B HE R 2 8
DATBLEERRAERIEERDBEK
RAFEREWNTESE °

HE-_ZT—XRErX_ZF—FR+-A=1+—
BIEFE BMEE—IITFEFRAEER
FE0% T A EE UL A o

RZZE—AR+ZA=+—H  —f&—
SNER =P B BLE 5 I W R I #910% 3K BA
FRZZB-RAF+_A=+—HB:F)-

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the
current year and prior years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4.
Reportable segment profit/(loss) represents the gross profit/
(loss) and transition income (included in other income) less selling
and distribution expenses by each segment. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

There was no single external customer contributed 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

There was one individual external customer contributed 10% or
more of total trade receivables as at 31 December 2016 (As at 31
December 2015: Nil).
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Segment Information (Continued)
The Group's revenues are divided into the following geographical
areas:

=F-RF i

2016 2015

FEx FET

Us$'000 US$'000

L (F B The PRC (domicile) 88,317 83,352
PRl Overseas 6,507 9,997
94,824 93,349

EPMEUBEARHREXNEER
MUBEREE AR SRHASEHET
MW ZEZER AR MAKEEE
oI BATIRF - ARENEEZER
THEBBMRFPE - Bit - #ERER
B s 5 RSB 85 [ A& 7 #R | PTAR TE B9
BEME KR EAEENEHEER -

RAEEE AEEOFEERDEE
35 fir A h E -

MRYEERRNETEZLEBRRARED
MEEINDHEEEN  WALE2I A

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands where the Group does not have any activities,
the Group has the majority of its operations and workforce in the
PRC, and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group's country
of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as required by IFRS 8
“Operating Segments”.

Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were located in
the PRC in both years.

No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they are
not regularly provided to the CODM.

Bt #& B 2R Finance Costs
—E—-REF —E—RF
2016 2015
FER FE=
Us$'000 Us$'000
WITEER AR Interest on bank borrowings 3,311 3,376
P38 13 7 (Bt 5127) Unwinding of discount on provision
(Note 27) 56 54
3,367 3,430

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 29 )

-



SRR M 5
Notes to the Financial Statements
HEZFT—R"F+=A=+—H L JZ For the year ended 31 December 2016

9. BRETBBIANER 9. Profit before Income Tax
REBHBRITERANER &M%, (G The Group's profit before income tax has been arrived at after
A) T3 EIES T charging/(crediting):
—REF —ZT—hF
2016 2015
FER Fx=x
Us$’000 Us$'000
%A & Auditors’ remuneration
— ZE R — audit services 210 193
— BRI — non-audit services 48 34
ME BERZEINE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,862 2,771
PREFERMBERE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 84 31
B SR IB R EEE Provision for impairment of trade receivables 233 13
E i, i W KR R (E B Provision for impairment of other receivables 22 —
&R EE (W) 58 Net exchange loss/(gain) m (105)
BRAERAZHNFERAR Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 39,975 44,363
T RBEFHEEHERX Operating lease charges in respective of land
and building 552 498
T 25 B AR Research and development costs 681 431
HEME BERRENEBRE Losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 108 62
BAEERMITRIER L EMIEE Administrative penalty and other related
=] ginkgo product expenses 1,375 3,953
| A = Write off of intangible assets 1,546 9
& #ME Write off of inventories — 458
T+ 4 T & OB B Amortisation of prepaid land lease payment 59 63
EBRAEEHGIATBRX) Amortisation of intangible assets (included in
administrative expenses) 582 620
BIRABEESHH) Employee costs (including directors’
remuneration)
—IB8Rk#E® — Wages and salaries 12,120 10,934
— BB E — Defined contribution plan 2,401 2,401
14,521 13,335
RAE S B A R R 18 (Y 5%) Loss on deemed disposal of an associate
(Note) 300 —
B & Note:
RZZE-—REZANE - MWIAAZHERHER Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Starry”) successfully launched
ANEI(AIAS DRI E L BB AT SHBEEE AR an initial public offering on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 9 March 2016.
BEE - FAlt  NEEBBAZIAAYRAEZSH Accordingly, the equity interests held the Group in Starry was diluted from
21.5% B EE16.1%  BERALEHE QR E 21.5% to 16.1%, which constitutes a loss on deemed disposal of an associate.
B
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10. EENAEESH A T 1Y 10. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid

Individuals
EEHM Directors’ emoluments
ENEN AR EENTHHNERED The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to the
™ directors of the Company are as follows:
Hoth 5
Other emoluments
2 A= 4 BIRER
ok ENEA B R @it
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and benefits benefit plans
Fees in kind contributions Total
TER TER TER FE=x
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 USS$'000
HEZT-R"E+TZA=1T—HIFE Yearended 31 December 2016
BOESE: Executive directors:
2ER Liu Bang Min — 413 13 426
ERRZZE—R"E=A=1THEZE) Hou Song (appointed on 30 March 2016) - 181 2 183
FHiTES: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 — - 39
ZEE Lee Jin Yi - — - -
BERZT—tF=A=THET) Tang Jun (resigned on 30 March 2017) - — - -
AER(MNZT—A"E=A=1H Liu Xuezi (appointed on 30 March 2016)

BZE) — - — —
BEs(R=—Z2—~"E=ZA=+HEMT) TaoFang Fang (resigned on 30 March 2016) — — — —
EM®R(RZT—A"F=A=THBT) YipPuiling, Rebecca

(resigned on 30 March 2016) — — — —

BUEHTES: Independent non-executive directors:
BRRE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 — — 35
B Rg Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 35 — - 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 32 — - 32
141 594 15 750
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10. EENAEESH A T 1Y 10. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid

(48) Individuals (Continued)
EEH(E) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

HA 2
Other emoluments
E = RIREN
e EMER BELE @it

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  benefit plans
Fees inkind  contributions Total
TERL FEn TET TFTExn
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000  US$'000
BE_Z-RFTA=+T—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2015
BiTEE: Executive director:
AER Liu Bang Min — 298 6 304
FHITES: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 — — 39
T Lee Jin i — — — —
o Tang Jun — — — —
BEF(RZT—-R"$=A=1THEM) TaoFang Fang (resigned on 30 March 2016) — — — —
EMB(WZT—~"F=A=1+HEM) YipPuiling, Rebecca
(resigned on 30 March 2016) — — — —
BUFHITES: Independent non-executive directors:
MR IE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 — — 35
HEF Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 35 — — 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 32 — — 32
141 298 6 445
MEEENEIREHREBRE_Z—X There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
FR-IB-HFT_A=T—HILFEEMF agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31 December
o] B & 1O 22 BF © 2016 and 2015.
BHE-T-—RFRZE—AF+ZA=1 During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
—BLFEE XEEHRAEMNESLK emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any of the
FRARERSFATINEABME - 1 five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
RMARERIMARE B LR - joining the Group.
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10.

1.

EESNEEREHFALHNTH

(#)

EEBREHAL
IEERHFALTEREARAMEBES (=
T—AF —F) BEWEHFBRLEX
FImAMARE - 8 =& (ZF—hF:
ME)&mF ATHFBFBRT:

10.

Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid

Individuals (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals consisted of two (2015: one) directors
of the Company, details of whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. Details of emoluments of the remaining
three (2015: four) highest paid individuals were as follows:

=F—RF e

2016 2015

FEx FET

Us$'000 Us$'000

Fe  FUMNMEMEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 503 300
ERNEEEESRE Compensation for loss of office paid — 131
RORAE T 5 B4 5 Retirement benefit plans contributions 44 14
it Total 547 445

SNTFLEREFEZALOHHNF A
TEE

The emoluments paid to each of the above non-director individuals
were within the following band:

—B-AE —E-A%F
2016 2015
A N
No of individuals | No of individuals
£ %129,000%E 7T Nil — US$129,000 — 4
129,0013€ JT £193,5003€ 7T US$129,001 — US$193,500 3 —

FrEHEE X 11. Income Tax Expense
—E-NEF —E—hHEF
2016 2015
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000

EHRE —PBEMCEAMBSH  Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
(IEmERD (“EIT")

— FEHIA — tax for the year 2,834 1,950
— BT FEBREEE — over provision in respect of prior years (75) (315)
2,759 1,635
iR FE 75 18 (M9 31 25) Deferred tax (Note 25) 431 625
FrERiAX Income tax expense 3,190 2,260
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. TEHEX(E) 11. Income Tax Expense (Continued)
EHPEEENDERT AN RIBBERAE Tax on assessable profits arising in the PRC has been calculated at
EEERED B rERE N E AR EG the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the tax jurisdiction in which
Ho the Group operates.
RIBFPBECEMESTE(EMBRIE]D Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
REBHMAA  RERBATNHER and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
25% (ZZ—HF :25%) © PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2015: 25%).
AEEREMBEARCERZRTES Two subsidiaries of the Group have been certified as new high
R R F 4ﬁ_15%E!’M BEEMRS technology enterprises in the PRC and enjoyed a preferential EIT
B o rate of 15%.
FANMGHRAXEGEER REMEE The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
W 55 2% P R BR P15 T' e M E T RR A0 T before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

ZE-KF —ET—-I0F
2016 2015
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
Bx BT 15 5 B & A Profit before income tax 7,026 4,331
LEBANEBAEMEAET  Tax on profit at the rates applicable
MEFTERNIE to the jurisdictions concerned 1,550 771
T—HD MAZHN R E Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 1,727 2,51
i N R b A Tax effect of non-taxable income (24) (53)
JE A Bk & N B BR B A8 A R Y Tax effect of share of post-tax profit of
g2 associates (284) (357)
MTFERERE Over provision in respect of prior years (75) (315)
BTHEMBEAGMB M E % Tax exemption granted to PRC
subsidiaries — (131)
Hity Others 296 (166)
FRAG T X Income tax expense 3,190 2,260
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12.

13.

@<t 12. Dividends
—E—XE —ET—hF
2016 2015
FErx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
FARARAD KR E: Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
—E-XFHRHEKE —& 2016 interim dividend — HK4.02 cents
4.0278 L (5 Ix £90.522 1l1) per share (approximately US0.52 cents
per share) 2,150 —
“E-RAFEREKRE —8FMR/ 2015 final dividend — HK5.99 cents
5.99% 1l (T AR 490.773 1) per share (approximately US0.77 cents
per share) 3,207 —
“E-RFFHRKE —&FK 2015 interim dividend — HK3.44 cents
3.44%8 0 (TR #10.44311) per share (approximately US0.44 cents
per share) — 1,841
—E-MFERPKRE —FR/ 2014 final dividend — HK8.74 cents
8.747 ML (= JR 491132 1L) per share (approximately US1.13 cents
per share) — 4,676
5,357 6,517

RBEHRE  EFEZRNEE=Z
—RE+- A=+ —BIEEHRAK
BER3.66/1I(FMRA0.47F) » @5t
15,189,0005% 7T (471,959,000% 7T)(— &
—RE HE-_T—RE+-_A=+—8H
IEFERRIR E BERS.99E U (F
#0773 )) - WAFRERE @K E
AeHER  HAEE - EHAHIRE
RBEBHEAERABAE -

BRER
BREXRBIZARRAEBAEGRA
i M) }2415,000,000 R B2 TR D (ZEF —
T4+ 415,000,000 % P& 17) 5+ & o

AEBRFAR E-—FETRELESE

Bt e

13.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of HK3.66 cents per share (approximately US0.47 cents per
share), totally amounting to HK$15,189,000 (approximately
US$1,959,000) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: final dividend of HK5.99 cents per share (approximately
US0.77 cents per share) in respect of the year ended 31 December
2015) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. The
proposed final dividends have not been recognised as a liability at
the reporting date.

Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company and
415,000,000 shares in issue during the year (2015: 415,000,000
shares).

The Group had no potential dilutive shares during the year and
prior year.
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14. % -HBERRE 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
BFREE - £ nE KRARRE HEIR st
Furniture

Building Motor and  Construction
and plant Machineries  vehicles  equipment in progress Total
FTEx FTxr FE=x FTER FTER FTER
Us$'000 US$'000  US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000

R=—Z-8F—HF—A At 1 January 2015

BN Cost 27,996 12,509 1,121 2,739 191 44,556
2EME Accumulated depreciation (4,025) (3,862) (564) (1,286) — (9,737)
REHFE Net carrying amount 23,971 8,647 557 1,453 191 34,819

HEZT-RFT-A=T—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2015

FNREZE Opening net carrying amount 23,971 8,647 557 1,453 191 34,819
5 R Exchange adjustment (1,411) (521) (26) (77) (5) (2,040)
RE Additions 616 1,781 70 272 946 3,685
wE Depreciation (1,039) (1,208) (126) (398) — (2,771)
RE Disposals — (22) (48) (17) — (87)
frERISER Transfer from construction in

progress 1,132 — — — (1,132) —
FREMFE Closing net carrying amount 23,269 8,677 427 1,233 — 33,606
RZZ-AF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2015
A Cost 28,061 13,426 1,043 2,751 — 45,281
ZHME Accumulated depreciation 4,792) (4,749) (616) (1,518) — (11,675)
REFE Net carrying amount 23,269 8,677 427 1,233 — 33,606
HEZT - F+ZA=+t—HLEFE Yearended 31 December 2016
FNREFE Opening net carrying amount 23,269 8,677 427 1,233 — 33,606
ERE Exchange adjustment (1,465) (570) (20) (68) (1) (2,124)
RE Additions 454 1,639 — 289 14 2,396
nE Depreciation (998) (1,240) (103) (521) — (2,862)
BE Disposals - (38) (57) (14) — (109)
FREBFE Closing net carrying amount 21,260 8,468 247 919 13 30,907
RZF-R"F+=A=1+—-8 At 31 December 2016
A Cost 26,703 14,026 829 2,754 13 44,325
ZHME Accumulated depreciation (5.443) (5,558) (582) (1,835) — (13,418)
REFE Net carrying amount 21,260 8,468 247 919 13 30,907
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15.

FENLTHHERE 15. Prepaid Land Lease Payment
—E-XF —ZE—AHF
2016 2015
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
EFEABHEI BT ARAFA:  Outside Hong Kong, held on:
— R EIFE A — medium term lease 2,015 2,213
WP AREEERREED  Less: Current portion included in current
assets (52) (55)
FAFERBEENIETRB IS Non-current portion included in non-
current assets 1,963 2,158
FHREFEE Opening net carrying amount 2,213 2,413
FEHIE Amortisation for the year (59) (63)
bE H =& Exchange adjustment (139) (137)
FRE®EFE Closing net carrying amount 2,015 2,213
AREE &5 Gross carrying amount 2,549 2,723
RET# Accumulated amortisation (534) (510)
REFE Net carrying amount 2,015 2,213
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16. B EE 16. Intangible Assets
BEERER
F BBl
BROBE BWEXDR Sk 92N BEAR @st
Exclusive Indefinite-
distribution Technical ~ Development lived technical
rights know-how costs know-how Total
TEn T FTET T T
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
(Pft 3¥a) (Fff 5 b) (i 5Eo) (Fff 5 d)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d)
RZZ—HE—-HA—H At 1 January 2015
B AR Cost 490 7,520 8,474 9,078 25,562
Rt Accumulated amortisation 33) (2,099) (131) — (2,263)
SEFE Net carrying amount 457 5,421 8,343 9,078 23,299
HE-_T-RAFT-A=1T—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2015
FNREFE Opening net carrying amount 457 5,421 8,343 9,078 23,299
& 5% Exchange adjustment (25) (291) (616) — (932)
wNE Additions — — 3,501 — 3,501
4 Amortisation (32) (588) — — (620)
k| Write off — — 9) — 9)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 400 4,542 11,219 9,078 25,239
RZE—H1F+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2015
A Cost 462 7,086 11,342 9,078 27,968
ESig:3: Accumulated amortisation (62) (2,544) (123) — (2,729)
REFE Net carrying amount 400 4,542 11,219 9,078 25,239
HEZT-R"FTZA=1+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2016
FUREFE Opening net carrying amount 400 4,542 11,219 9,078 25,239
[ERZEE Exchange adjustment (18) (241) (777) — (1,036)
NE Additions - - 2,267 - 2,267
B Amortisation (30) (552) — — (582)
k| Write off (150) (653) (743) - (1,546)
FERERTE Closing net carrying amount 202 3,096 11,966 9,078 24,342
RZE-—R"E+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2016
A Cost 288 6,007 12,081 9,078 27,454
B EH Accumulated amortisation (86) (2,911) (115) - (3,112)
REFE Net carrying amount 202 3,096 11,966 9,078 24,342
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16.

B/ELEER)
BE-T—AE+-A=+—AILEE -

REBRERIEAETEEREBITOHEER
B EZ2HENREM SR ARTE R AT
By o 1B B 181,546,000 T (=T —F
19,000 ) EERBITHFAZ 55
GIAEZR) UBEFEENRE AN
MEATUR B &% o

AFEAFHERNEEEENTKE
BUTEABEFNEEETE - %t EEF
AERESEREMERRATHNITB
FEE R IR © R E T8 R A K18% /) #T IR &
ZE—RF 14%)c BAAFTHMNIES
MERAEREERO%ER » tHIERETIR
BRHETERERENME - £AEER
BEEANEMEFEBRESERRERAS
MEKHET BT EREREHERER
Ko HRAMFIHENZEMBAERIAMN
MERBEHMBERNTER - 12 EH
5 ERESEBREANEHENE RS
" CEYERTEBBE KB AR -

16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group decided to
terminate several research and development projects which were
under development, mainly due to the surging bulk pharmaceutical
costs. An impairment loss of US$1,546,000 (2015: US$9,000) was
recognised as part of administrative expenses included in profit or
loss to write down the carrying amount of the intangible assets to
its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives has been determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period,
and discount rate of 18% (2015: 14%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year period is 0%
which is based on pharmaceutical industry growth forecast.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s
past performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
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16.

mEEEE)

Bt

(@ BRDHE
RZZ—=F+f AEEE-ZHER
RINBR G UG BEAEFR LS
0FMDHE - WD HEGIZEGRERER
10FEFHEIE-E—NWFE—A—ARKBEN
DEEEHAR) B -

Notes:

(a)

BMEBEEANBTBRERREBEREES T
an 1T U2 BB A B i R BL T e

B-T——FtA—HEE BHOBRAERA
WRMEXRMNBREREER T —FFH
iy -

RZE—=F ARARAzZ2EMBARE
VEHACHOEEMBEARXEZEMRMBLEY
ITREMEERAR([BE]D T RIS
FEiE([HE]) - BEHE  FRIERE
IAE 4 R {82,279,000 % T (WARE(TAR
#1)14,800,0007T) M) B 16 U & K R A1 51 B2
FMZIEE - KRAYIEAZEEEREZAR
BE - MEEEM RIAI BT - AnakERE - BRI BT
AEMPBRERE TREELRE(CRRATIE
HEEED REBETZEEREMNKEAR
RV ENReINTFREE HE=ZZT—H
FH+ZA=+-"HLFE BERIEEXH
719,170 JT (49 A R #4,670,0007T) ° A =
T-RENA+=ZB BRIE{EARE
ATREAD) MBERLERFAD - RF
AP REAEBEAEEESERE
BEHFEEAKER MERBEBABID
T H) BB (A R4,670,0007T) ©

ABERATBENERMEFTANDELED
M ERE(MBERED -

EERRASAHRERABRERFY R
AERNBRENABERRHRTRHRS
MERMEY EATR RS o FNBERE
AR —REEARERASE  MERITA
MR -

A ERLTRE BERBEELA
MR MEERS - AEREBFHOAN
BERTEETHY YXRESEMRFE
FRETFERENA  MHETRBERA
SR FAF B MG E R TR R (E - H AR
T RE R -

16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Exclusive distribution rights

In December 2013, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement
with a supplier to secure the distribution rights of 10 years for one
pharmaceutical product in the PRC. This exclusive right will amortise on
a straight-line basis over 10 years, being the period of the distribution
rights, starting from 1 January 2014.

Technical know-how mainly represents techniques and formulae acquired
for the development and production of certain pharmaceutical products.

With effect from 1 July 2011, technical know-how in relation to the oral
disintegrating tablets had been amortised on a straight-line basis over 11
years.

In 2013, Ningbo Liwah, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a pharmaceutical technology transfer agreement (the
“Agreement”) with Tianjin Longbai Biological Engineering and
Technology Company Limited (“Longbai”), an indirect subsidiary of
CIH. Pursuant to the Agreement, Ningbo Liwah agreed to acquire from
Longbai the misoprostol development project for a cash consideration
of US$2,279,000 (approximately Renminbi (“RMB”) 14,800,000). The
misoprostol development project comprised the know-how and related
materials and technology, intellectual properties, patent, permit(s) and
license(s), and certain supporting equipment (“Misoprostol Development
project”). The consideration will be paid by Ningbo Liwah to Longbai in
cash in several milestone payments. Up to the year ended 31 December
2015, Ningbo Liwah had paid US$719,170 (approximately RMB4,670,000).
On 12 September 2016, Ningbo Liwah, as claimant (the “Claimant”),
has initiated legal proceedings against Longbai. In this litigation, the
Claimant alleged that Longbai was unable to guide Ningbo Liwah to
produce qualified samples according to the Agreement. The Claimant
is therefore seeking the return of the milestone payment that had paid
(RMB4,670,000).

Development costs mainly represent intellectual property rights (“IPRs")
generated internally for the pharmaceutical technology.

The directors consider these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as there
is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which the IPR in
pharmaceutical industry is expected to provide cash flows. These IPR can
be renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and the products are
continuing in the market.

If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the asset should be
written down or written off immediately to expense. IPR with indefinite
useful lives is not amortised and are tested for impairment annually at
each financial year end or more frequently if there are indications that
IPR with indefinite useful lives might be impaired.
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16.

17.

BREaE (&

GEIRCY

O ABBERFESRFTROBETER
I AALEHBHT -

RZZE—WF=ZA=Z+/N\R  ARAHNHEE
FEWBARIBAEEE(FB)ERAA(H
EEE])VEBETCEAEBE RS  Bit
FEREMPLEAEEERIREE(RIEA
BEEQMEBORIN - EERLE  BER
Z BEEEREEELR)  RFTMLFHFH
W UEBRLENBEEREEANANH
B (TRESE  BRMREE)) T - 81
% X {8 58,000,000E L& B3k MAE
= /1,500,000 7T ) %8 71 B 72 58 - 31 (82
BREEENESMHEEAH) -

ZEEERESRENEEENKRY - 2
U ERSHEEEAERELEEN K
AE - BRI E S E R
T B A M BT P B AR R

B
)

16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(d) Indefinite-lived technical know-how represents a perpetual royalty-free
licence with no termination.

On 28 March 2014, Lansen Medicine (Hong Kong) Limited (“LMHK"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into (i)
the asset purchase agreement with Novartis pursuant to which Novartis
agrees to transfer to LMHK the transferred assets (including know-how,
books and records, specified trademarks, commercial information and
medical information relating to the pharmaceutical product), and (ii) the
licence agreement to grant the licences, relating to the pharmaceutical
product in the territory (i.e. the PRC, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan) for a total cash consideration comprising an upfront payment of
US$8,000,000, plus additional milestone payments of a total maximum
US$1,500,000, linked to sales achieved by LMHK.

The pharmaceutical product contains specific active pharmaceutical
ingredients and it is marketed and sold as a cream under trademark
Sicorten Plus in the territory. It will primarily be used to treat certain
corticosteroid-responsive inflammatory skin diseases secondary infection.

17. Goodwill

—E—REF —E—RF

2016 2015

FEx FEx

Us$'000 Us$'000

REE Carrying amount 6,824 6,824

AEBWBERIERAEEZECRI)
BERAB(RINIBAED - ZEXH AW
BERIAARK -

AEEREBEPBRFEFRAEEELET
FERBENR  HMAETRBTREERE
B SEAETETRERM -

RAENATE - BEREBENERD
HERARSEE —ERSELEA
DEEEEHANERTESHERN
HEBAR  HEGAEEEESBOS
5]

The Group acquired Ningbo Liwah and Lansen Medicine
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”). These
transactions have been accounted for by the acquisition method of
accounting.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment at each financial
year end, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and development
costs related to specialty pharmaceuticals have been allocated
to one CGU, including subsidiaries with principal activities of
manufacturing and trading of specialty pharmaceuticals which is
including in the “Pharmaceuticals” under operating segment.
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17.

18.

& ()
TR ELEMARESEOELER
HEBAMERBRDT

ZREEEBEUNAI RO RAERE
BRELETE - At BEAERERESE
BEEHERRAFHOVBKEENRS
METARIARI8%R TR KR (ZF—R%F :
14%) - BERFHMNRSRERBER
RO%TER - LB RETIIRIBEEEITRIE
REAME - EREEFEENEME
EZRJOARRSRA S RESO
ETEREEHEREMNE - ARG
DENRZEUBERANUREEEHD
BERRNAS - EEEMRE EALE
BRAELENSEZHH TS EHE
BREE A E AT WO B -

HE-_T—AF+-A=t+—RHILFE"
AEEEEERE  EABEHELA
ERFHERNBIEENRSELSE
i 3 SR ME ©

17.

Goodwill (Continued)
The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGU and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 18% (2015: 14%,).
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the
five-year period is 0% which is based on pharmaceutical industry
growth forecast. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairments of any of its CGU
containing goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives.

RBEQNTIZ2ER 18. Interests in Associates
—E—REF —E—RF
2016 2015
FTEx FET
USs$'000 Us$'000
JE(R & EFE Share of net assets 23,046 15,753
EES Goodwill 16,378 17,937
39,424 33,690
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18.

REE QT 2R (&)

BEARERBERSAMIENEEA

AFEDT

Interests in Associates (Continued)
Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting date is
as follows:

AR IEHEE @ AERERBHEAEESER

=1 SR

Place of

RERBHLLH FREH

Proportion of ownership

incorporation and interest and voting power

Name operation held by the Group Principal activity
—E-RE | —T—EHF
2016 2015
I HE 16.1%* 21.5% EERFEMBEE
Starry The PRC Production of bulk

ERERAERAR(ER] 51 RBEXEHS

s RIERBR A

Natural Dailyhealth Holdings BVI
Limited (“Natural Dailyhealth”)
(Formerly known as Haotian
Holdings Limited)

pharmaceuticals and
intermediates

30.0%* — S EEVRDEREEZSR

Production of
plant extract
and healthcare
products

* BEARERBARLIEAEERDDR20%
ARBEERR  HRAAUNEFT—ZE
ERADANFERTES  BRSDHEEY
AARTEERNTE Bt - BRAKRL
S AR E AR R -

# FA - NEBEREEEI0%BE - #E—F5
BB MM 33 -

FitBt g RE TR AR AR R A M
HBRARK -

77§iE7§A T - RNFZANHEKRDE
EEFES x%ﬁﬁéﬁ/&ﬁﬁ%m RZE
—RNFF+_A=+—H ARINAF
B 49 /5133,612,0003 7T °

* Although the Group’s ownership interest in Starry is less than 20%, the
directors of the Company consider they still have the power to exercise
significant influence on Starry as one of the directors of Starry is the
non-executive directors of the Company, and therefore have treated the
interest in Starry as an associate.

# During the year, the Group acquired 30% equity interest in Natural
Dailyhealth, further details please refer to Note 33.

The above associates were accounted for using the equity method
in the consolidated financial statements.

Starry successfully launched an initial public offering on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 9 March 2016. The fair value of Starry
was approximately US$133,612,000 as at 31 December 2016.
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18. RBEE NTE 2 m (F)

R-_E—RF+_A=+—8 KA&HE
# B 1914,500,0000% &) K 32 & 0 B W
A - ETE D B A62,145,000% 7T &
37,978,000 T * A DRI BB AR EEK
30,417,000 TR TR & (B 5E24) R [F &
B &8~ 71 #914,415,000 3 7T 48 17 12 2% (Bt
H34) e RZIE-REFTA=+—8"
KNEE KR ZEHE QR 2 EITER
2 Bl %8,938,000% T }14,415,000% 7T
MERE(ED R

) AEESEHMEARNMEENE

18. Interests in Associates (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, 14,500,000 shares in Starry held by the
Group with market values of US$62,145,000 and US$37,978,000
have been pledged to banks to secure banking facilities of
the Group amounting to US$30,417,000 (Note 24) and bank
borrowing of a fellow subsidiary amounting to US$14,415,000
(Note 34) respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the associated
bank borrowings of the Group and of the fellow subsidiary with
the carrying amounts of US$8,938,000 and US$14,415,000 were
drawn down, respectively.

i) Summarised financial information of the Group’s material

LHIWT associate is set out below:
AL Starry
—E—REF —E—RF
2016 2015
FErx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
BR+=BA=+—8 As at 31 December
mENE E Current assets 101,415 86,892
ERHEE Non-current assets 171,323 148,965
nREBEE Current liabilities (93,504) (107,471)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (60,222) (57,902)
BZ+=-HA=+—HLEE Yearended 31 December
WA Revenue 101,181 111,482
FE Profit for the year 11,231 11,049
FEHEHMEEK = Other comprehensive income for the
year — —
FEZMKE=EERE Total comprehensive income for the
year 11,231 11,049
FEABE AT WEM LS  Dividends received from the associate
during the year 796 1,517
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18. Interests in Associates (Continued)
)] Summarised financial information of the Group’s material
associate is set out below: (Continued)

Starry (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in an associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

—E-XRE —E—hF
2016 2015
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
AIARMEEAEMLER Equity attributable to owners of Starry 116,569 67,841
REBRAAMEBEAEE  Proportion of the Group’s ownership
1 25 L A5 interest in Starry 16.1% 21.50%
18,768 14,586
EES Goodwill 12,168 17,937
P ER AP EFHENEE Effect of fair value adjustments at
acquisition 1,259 1,345
H b 8 2 Other adjustments (48) (178)
AEFERB AW Carrying amount of the Group's
GRS interest in Starry 32,147 33,690
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18. REEENT 2= (&) 18. Interests in Associates (Continued)
i)  FEEREBERFNMBERTES i) Summarised financial information of the immaterial associate
AN is set out below:
=g Natural Dailyhealth
—E-XREF
2016
FExR
Us$'000
R+=-—HA=+—H As at 31 December
BEMBmRERPHEDE Carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements 7,277
H-E-A"E=ZA=-+@TBE Period from 24 March 2016 to
—E-RE+tZA=+-—HHMH 31 December 2016
EEELRERSE Amount of the Group's share of Natural
Dailyhealth
— B B 1R — Share of loss for the period 192
— BREEEmE2El = — Share of other comprehensive income
for the period —
— BB m =B 5 — Share of total comprehensive income
for the period 192
19. &8 19. Inventories
ZE-AHF —E—I0F
2016 2015
FErx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
JR#4 % Raw materials 2,151 2,126
RS Work-in-progress 4,115 5,951
BB mn Finished goods 8,310 9,385
14,576 17,462
REZ-_ZE—R"F+_A=1+—HILHF During the year ended 31 December 2016, provisions of
EARA EREMEREKSOEREE US$328,000 (2015: US$264,000) against the carrying value of raw
H328,000% 7T (= T — H4F : 264,000 materials and finished goods were made.
TL) KB o
N_E—RENLA  AEENEBERE - In September 2015, there was a flooding at the Group's
4,272,000 T ASEFE & HIENIE warehouse, US$4,272,000 of the Group's inventories were
K ZEFECBEM - destroyed or damaged such inventories were fully written off.
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20 ESRHMEWRIE 20. Trade and Other Receivables
—~EF —T—hF
2016 2015
T FET
US$'000 Us$'000
g5 rNFIE Trade receivables 37,174 30,779
BB 5 W R IR R A B Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (439) (229)
36,735 30,550
FE U 2 1% Bills receivables 15,190 10,999
Z SR GRIA R EKREE Trade and bills receivables 51,925 41,549
TEAT FRIB & E A B 5k TE Prepayments and other receivables 13,272 14,671
65,197 56,220
EERE ’é’% H b E Ul B R EBR The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
=gzt A LI o other receivables approximate their fair values.
REBFEHNKEZAMERT PR M FEH0H The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period of 90
—E—RAF:90HENRH)WMEZEEH - days to its customers (2015: 90 to 120 days).
WBiERERH HERSBE I ~N&E Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade and bills
EnESEkZFBEBLERERZE (IR receivables (net of impairment losses) of the Group as of the end of
BEEE)ESRSTOT: the reporting date is as follows:
—A~EF —T—hF
2016 2015
T Fx
US$'000 Us$'000
90HZ AT 90 days or below 45,300 34,143
912180H 91-180 days 4,366 3,547
1812 365H 181-365 days 1,501 3,859
#3658 Over 365 days 758 —
51,925 41,549
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20. E5 K HE B UWRIE (&)

AEBEMNE S EWGRIE K B EE & 4%
¥ 42 BR M 186,625,000k L (2 —Hh
17,406,000 0) M EW R IE - ZEE
WHRERREAHEBHEREER KRR
BEREBTIRE® ZSHNIAEELENA
Y ERAEENBIRSER - RIE
BAER ARFEERE ARNEH
LBEVWESKES  BEHREAREA
2EWE - AmEBARZESESGRIELR
BEE AEEYERZSEHRTER
A Hm -

AEEDBBEY RBENESERK
HARE DT

20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Included in the Group's trade and bills receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amounts of US$6,625,000 (2015:
US$7,406,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. These
relate to a number of independent customers of whom there
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has

not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

The Group's ageing analysis of past due but not impaired trade

receivables is as follows:

ZE-AE —ET—I0F

2016 2015

FEx FEx

Us$'000 Us$'000

B HI1ZE90H Past due over 1-90 days 4,366 3,547
#1H191%:275H Past due over 91-275 days 1,501 3,859
i 2 B 1B 276 H Past due over 276 days 758 —
6,625 7,406

AEEZEFHRWRIBNBERZEZE SN
T

Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade

receivables is as follows:

ZE-KF —ET—-0F

2016 2015

FEx FET

Us$'000 Us$'000

R—HA—H At 1 January 229 233

PE 5 & Exchange adjustment (23) (14)
Z 5B IBE R ERE Provision for impairment of trade

receivables 233 13

RAE AT U Bl i i 55 1 £ B8 Amounts written off as uncollectible — (3)

®n+=—A=+—H” At 31 December 439 229
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20.

B 5 Kk HAtb fBE WK IR ()

b 5 R WK TR O R (B 1 s TS B 18 B
R Y E 5 WK IR T £ o (@ RIRE A
EUR AT ZEEMBRANTAER
TEEIER Ao WK IR TR B AT Y [E] - AR
SEYERZFERTATMNETR -

RZZE—RFE+-A=+—8 Ko
I B RBER B 5 B UK IR /330,110,000
E L (ZZT—HF :23,144,000% 7T) * #
%8 5 WA E R % 0 3 8RR
BOEFAR -

REBEE-E—RNEN_ZT—HF+_A=
+—HIEFEAR AEE S 5% E R
RHEEXR2BERENBDEREE - 1
ERBBERR  AEEEEFR S B
MR RIE - F BT FH S K
BUEN R T8 ;X T833% £3.4% (—Z T —
AF:33%)FE BEEEKREESNH
BHE - Al - AEBEEBABEEEEER
BENEEMNROER -

ARAEBRBUREREENBALD
EBe & e - AR R U FEREE
FHERE3RR I EREMEEMNRE
NZZE—ARF+-A=+—8 ERKRZE
9,370,000 7T (= Z — .4 : 4,235,000
TEBNREBENBRRERR BT
HEOAZEZETOREE - MIAXHH
FIiSsRBEERE EERAME (M 124)
FABER  EEEWEEREESA
EEENCREBENTTERE N-F
—RNE+ZA=+—H HBBEIRZEM
B EEEREEBEA9,370,000%K T
— T — R4 :4,235000%ETT) °

HRERRBEEAZEZTSRMEE
BAEEERETREZENRE -

RZE—R"F+A=+—8 KAE
/34,022,000% 75 (ZZF— R4 : 5,225,000
EL)METRERERE KBRS R
TEEME24) - HEAENEEER
6,000,000 JT (= Z — A 4 : 5,000,000
EJL)e

20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is made
for individually impaired trade receivables. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to customers that were in financial difficulties
and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of US$30,110,000
(2015: US$23,144,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These
related to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group
discounted part of its bills receivables with full recourse to financial
institutions. In the event of default by the bills receivables, the
Group was obliged to pay the financial institutions the amount in
default. Interest was charged at a range from 3.3% to 3.4% (2015:
3.3%) per annum on the proceeds received from the financial
instructions until the date the bills receivables pay. The Group was
therefore exposed to the risks of credit losses and late payment in
respect of the discounted bills.

The discounting transactions did not meet the requirements
in 1AS 39 for de-recognition of financial assets as the Group
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the discounted bills receivables. At 31 December 2016, bills
receivables of US$9,370,000 (2015: US$4,235,000) continued to
be recognised in the Group’s financial statements even though
they have been legally transferred to the financial institutions.
The proceeds of the discounting transactions were included in
borrowings as asset-backed financing (Note 24) until the bills
receivables were collected or the Group settles any losses suffered
by the financial institutions. At 31 December 2016, the asset-
backed financing liability related to discounted bills amounted to
US$9,370,000 (2015: US$4,235,000).

Because the bills receivables have been transferred to the financial
institutions legally, the Group did not have the authority to
determine the disposition of the bills receivables.

As at 31 December 2016, certain bills receivables with a carrying
amount of US$4,022,000 (2015: US$5,225,000) were pledged to
secure bank borrowings (Note 24). The carrying amount of the
associated liability was US$6,000,000 (2015: US$5,000,000).
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20. E5 K HE B UWRIE (&)

21.

R-E—XRFE+_A=+—"H B E
HETRPRBERBKGETZ 2 HK
B MERZERKFTBEREMER
RIE B B 22,000 T (ZE —FHE
1,000F ) - AEBW ERZ S EH 5
BEMEIFSR -

7N E5 [ ELh JE R TE B R B B R Eh an
T

20.

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
As at 31 December 2016, a provision for impairment of other
receivables of US$22,000 (2015: US$1,000) was recognised for
certain long outstanding receivables as these receivables are not
expected to be fully recovered. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of other

receivables is as follows:

=F—RF e

2016 2015

FEx FEx

Us$'000 Us$'000

R—H—H At 1 January 1 1

fE 5 58 % Exchange adjustment 1) —
ELh FE U 50T R (B B B Provision for impairment of

other receivables 22 —

Rn+=ZA=+—A~ At 31 December 22 1

BROBES R - L& E W KB R
B LAEHRARENSEEERTH
I # R SR A0 8% 1 WK IR B B -

BEARTER RERRESE
(£

21.

Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is either
past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances related to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.

Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

Equivalents

—E—-RE —E—hF

2016 2015

FEx FET

Us$'000 Us$'000

Re RRITHES Cash and bank balances 37,197 42,808
B ERAIRITER Less: pledged bank deposits (27,095) (23,832)
RekBFEY Cash and cash equivalents 10,102 18,976
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21.

22.

23.

EEFRTER

&4 (&)
RERBRTERBERTRFARSM
RREHAE=EARATHERRT
TR - RIOTRSREBEEBRITERME
EIBHEHE - EHTHFREAR
1730 42 35 F) B ERF 2. -

X RERREE

RoB—AER-E—RE+-A=+—
AMEERBTERIEAEEAREE

FIRTRE RARTT I & (O 55 24) TR 47
MRITIFH -

RZE—RE+-_A=+—H x&EE
/IR & & iR 17 45 74 B 1534,804,000% T
T — F4F :38,161,0005 7T) B IR 1T 45
ﬁ% CREBAARBITERTRFAED
BT  AREBUIESERIBNER -

21. Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

Equivalents (Continued)

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and in hand, and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are placed with
banks and earn interest at market interest rates.

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure certain banking facilities and bank borrowings
(Note 24) as of 31 December 2016 and 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, included in cash and bank balances of
the Group was US$34,804,000 (2015: US$38,161,000) of bank
balances denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC. RMB
is not a freely convertible currency.

g 25 22. Share Capital
gl 4= |
Number of
shares Amount
FEx
US$'000
VETE Authorised:
R—ZFE—R&—H—H- At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015
—E-RF+ZA=+T—HK and 31 December 2016
—E-RE+ZA=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
EETRER: Issued and fully paid:
R_E—RE—HA—H8" At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015
—hAF+—A=+—BK and 31 December 2016
—E-RE+ZA=+—H 415,000,000 4,150

it 8
7 4
B EE B AR B NEENZRE -

EERBREZBPEEEZEIRE K
o B B A 00 A 0 BE = AT 0 K R
Bk -

23. Reserves
Group
The share premium represents the excess over the nominal value
for shares allotted.

The statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the PRC
subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as required
by the relevant PRC statue.
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23. & (&) 23. Reserves (Continued)
AEE(E) Group (Continued)
HMEE 6 48 HE R E OB B B 8 B B 7 s The foreign exchange reserve represents exchange differences
B BE 5 ERE o arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries.
bIN/NE| Company
BR 19 %5 18 23 BB et
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
FEx FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
R-ZZE—RF—HA—H At 1 January 2015 30,819 (2,322) 28,497
P 2. (Bt 5E12) Dividends (Note 12) (6,517) — (6,517)
HEBANETRS Transactions with owners (6,517) — (6,517)
FEEB Loss for the year — (835) (835)
FEHEMEmMKE Other comprehensive income

for the year — — —

FETHEW=RE Total comprehensive income for

the year — (835) (835)
R-ZZF—-HFE+Z-HA=+—H At31December 2015 24,302 (3,157) 21,145
i B2 (M 3E12) Dividends (Note 12) (5,357) — (5,357)
EEBANETRS Transactions with owners (5,357) — (5,357)
FEEIE Loss for the year — (2,040) (2,040)
FEEMEAEKE Other comprehensive income

for the year — — —

FEZHMK=EERE Total comprehensive income for
the year — (2,040) (2,040)
R=ZF—A"F+=-HB=+—H At31December2016 18,945 (5,197) 13,748
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24. B 24. Borrowings
—B-AE —Z—hf#F
2016 2015
T FET
US$'000 Us$'000
EBIRITEE Fixed-rate bank borrowings 40,887 28,490
FERITEE Variable-rate bank borrowings 54,841 57,246
BEERBE Assets-backed financing 9,370 4,235
105,098 89,971
B HH Secured 71,853 58,981
154 Unsecured 33,245 30,990
105,098 89,971
=F-AF —ZT-I1%F
2016 2015
FEx FEx
UsS$'000 Us$'000
RITEE Bank borrowings 95,728 85,736
R—FREHAMEERLRBE  Assets-backed financing due within
one year 9,370 4,235
105,098 89,971
RIEfsk —F NEE On demand or repayable within one year 105,098 88,881
il —FENEME More than one year, but not exceeding
two years — 538
HBBMEESERSE More than two years, but not exceeding
five years — 552
105,098 89,971
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AEBTHEREELFENETER
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RITEENREENTIEEE:

24. Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, certain banking facilities are
subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to certain financial
position ratios of the Group, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group breaches the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on
demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants,
makes repayments in accordance with the repayment schedule of
the term loans. The Group does not consider it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to demand repayment for as
long as the Group continues to meet these requirements. As at
31 December 2016 and 2015, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

—RE —E—hF
2016 2015
FER FEx
US$'000 Us$'000
AT HIERR: Represented by:
ARBEE Borrowings in RMB 50,257 32,725
EnfEE Borrowings in US$ 53,310 55,650
BL(BTHEE Borrowings in Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$") 1,531 1,596
105,098 89,971
—RE —E—hEF
2016 2015
ERFENE Effective interest rate per annum:
RITEE Bank borrowings 3.56% 3.38%
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25.

A& B ¥ A B R 1717 527,095,000
E (= Z — A 4 :23,832,000% ) *
JE U 2= 454,022,000E T (ZF — R4 -
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ZE-RF )N EAME ETRGE
AAEERITHERBITEROER -

9 4R 172 3033,245,000F T (ZE —
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24,

Borrowings (Continued)

The Group had pledged bank deposits amounting to
US$27,095,000 (2015: US$23,832,000), bills receivables amounting
to US$4,022,000 (2015: US$5,225,000) and Starry’s listed equity
shares with market values of US$62,145,000 (2015: Nil) to secure the
banking facilities and bank borrowings of the Group.

The unsecured bank borrowings of US$33,245,000 (2015:
US$30,990,000) were guaranteed by the Company or subsidiaries
of the Group.

The asset-backed financing represented the amount of financing
obtained in factoring transactions which did not meet the de-
recognition requirements in IAS 39. The corresponding financial
assets were included in trade and other receivables (Note 20).
These borrowings matured within one year and were repayable in
RMB.

EEHEBAES 25. Deferred Tax Liabilities
ROKERH
TEENE EZEMBRAE Hity @t
PRC
withholding
taxon Deferred
undistributed development
earnings costs Others Total
TEx FET FEr TEx
us$'000 Us$'000 us$'000 Us$'000
R-Z—RAfE—H—A At 1 January 2015 181 774 38 993
[ 5 28 B Exchange adjustment — (70) — (70)
RiBz M (M EN) Charge to profit or loss (Note 11) — 644 (19) 625
R-ZF—HF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2015 181 1,348 19 1,548
RZZE—-—XRE—HA—H At 1 January 2016 181 1,348 19 1,548
BE 5 38 B Exchange adjustment - (103) - (103)
18 &= kR (R EE1) Charge to profit or loss (Note 11) — 429 2 431
RZZE-RE+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2016 181 1,674 21 1,876
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25.

26.

EEMIEBAE(E)
BEFHECERESRE BZTZNF
—A—Hi - P RKE R AT REUR T
MERMKEE BHEANTENR - KETHK
Rk A A AR BT B A A1AY 62,588,000
Et(—ZT— A% 59,964,000k t) 25t
St ) BT 7S A B BT B 22 RE R R S B T
B RRERAEBEIEHEREEZ8E0
BEORE AZSEREZEAUETER
CISERR <P S

BEZREMENRE

25. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to US$62,588,000 (2015: US$59,964,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

26. Trade and Other Payables

ZE-AF —ET—IF

2016 2015

FEx FEx

Us$'000 Us$'000

B 5 e IR Trade payables 3,267 7,250
EREE Bills payables 9,370 4,235
E BN FRIB R FE IR Other payables and accruals 10,147 11,192
22,784 22,677

REBZZAH HEREFAHL AE
B EZENREBERE DT

Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade payables of
the Group as at the end of the reporting date is as follows:

—E-XRF —ET—-0F

2016 2015

FEx FET

Us$'000 Us$'000

90H AT 90 days or below 1,922 4,680
91£180H 91-180 days 161 235
1812 365H 181-365 days 275 1,288
#B3@365H Over 365 days 909 1,047
3,267 7,250

E=AR ESRHMEMNFANKR
BEREAQAFERE -

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables approximate to their fair values.
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27. Hihrem & & 27. Other Financial Liabilities
—B-AE —E-A%F
2016 2015
FER FET
US$'000 Us$'000
R—HA—H At 1 January 1,170 1,116
FA 8 25 0 B &9 37 3R [3 B (Ff§ 78) Unwinding of discount on provision
charged to profit or loss (Note 8) 56 54
R+=—R=+—H At 31 December 1,226 1,170
28. HEFAT 28. Disposal of Subsidiaries
MRIEBE—RNF=A=Z+1H  XEETK On 29 March 2016, the Group completed the disposal of 100%
HEMERBATKRERRIEEESR interest in an indirectly-owned subsidiary, Natural Dailyhealth Tech
NFIHI100% HE 26 - HDAZEfE & 2RAG A b Limited, which holds 100% equity interest in Ningbo Dailyhealth
REROOFEES REEREYR Biotechnology Limited at RMB5 million (approximately to
AR ATI00%RIE - £ 5B A RS approximately US$771,000) in the form of consideration shares in

BBt (EZ R 47710002 1) - entire share capital of Natural Dailyhealth.
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28. HEF AT (&) 28. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)
LRGN EERLRBEDIT: Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:
FEx
Us$'000
RekBeFEY Cash and cash equivalents 285
A fE W SR IB Other receivables 499
H b JE S FRIR Other payables (3)
EREEEFE Net assets disposed of 781
LEMBARREIE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
RIE Consideration 771
BEHEEEFE Net assets disposed of (781)
(10)
AR Satisfied by:
BITRM Issuance of shares
HEEEMFRS ML : Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
ReRE Cash consideration —
BHERS MRITER Cash and bank balances disposed of (285) (285)
(285)
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29. ZERDTE B BMR &R

29. Company Level Statement of Financial Position

—E—-RE —E—hF
2016 2015
B 5T FEx FTE
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
S IEPNGIEEOE Interest in a subsidiary 25,020 25,020
REBEE Current assets
NI Q] Amount due from a subsidiary 52,192 20,196
ReRkReZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 685 279
52,877 20,475
HWEE Total assets 77,897 45,495
EERkAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EXRf#E Capital and reserves
KATBEEAEMLER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
LN Share capital 4,150 4,150
B0 % 8 Share premium 23 18,945 24,302
RETEE Accumulated losses 23 (5,197) (3,157)
B Total equity 17,898 25,295
REBAE Current liabilities
BE Borrowings 59,599 19,950
FE 5T EUR Accruals 400 250
wmes Total liabilities 59,999 20,200
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 77,897 45,495
FE(EE), EEEE Net current (liabilities)/assets (7,122) 275
HWEERARBAS Total assets less current
liabilities 17,898 25,295
RREES On behalf of the Directors
EZE EZE
Director Director
ZER A
LIU Bang Min HOU Song

BAA B AR )
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30.

RRTFMBEARFR

MELARAN-—REHR

AABIHERARRHBEMROFEOT

30. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
General information of the subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are set out follows.

HEMAYL R TE g/ FEERRERREESR
8 BR/ % EE 32 BITRARE REREH LB TEXK
Country/Place of  Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group Principal activities
—E-AE | —T-h#
2016 2015
BEEBHER
Interests held directly
PEBEIZRARAR RERLES B 29,491,360/ & f& & 100% 100% REEK
(314 IETHEBR
#ED
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited  The British Virgin Hong Kong 29,491,360 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
Islands (the “BVI") shares of US$1 each
MEsEES
Interests held indirectly
Brilliant Manufacture Limited EBELES S IBREEIETHERR 100% 100% BEZBK
Brilliant Manufacture Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Flash Universal Limited RBERES B 1R EE 15 T A E i R 100% 100% REHEK
Flash Universal Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Horizon Network Limited EBEXEE Eit IBREEIXRTHEBR 100% 100% ®EZEK
Horizon Network Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Magnificent Worldwide Limited REREZES BE 1R E A 13 T R E i Ak 100% 100% & EFR
Magnificent Worldwide Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Beauty Sparkle Holdings Limited REERES i 1R EE 13 TR iR AR 100% — REER
Beauty Sparkle Holdings Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% — Investment holding
SHERDA b S IREEVE T E B 100% 100% ®EZBK
Full Keen Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
HERE(FEB)AERAA it £ 100 R E B 1007 7 &) 100% 100% ®EZEK
Lansen Investments (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding
HK$100
AEBRZ (BB ARAR 2B S IREEETHEBK 100% 100% HEZER
Lansen Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
VEENRER(ER)ARAA it 0 IREEETHERRK 100% 100% ®EZEK
Liwah Plant Extract (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
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30.

RRATFHELRFEE)

MELARAN—RER ()

30. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)

HEMR LK Ex:3 g/ rREFMGHEERESER
£Z% Bx/h% B BITRAFE REEOLH TEEB
Country/Place of  Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group Principal activities
ZB-RF | ZT-0F
2016 2015
BESAES
Interests held indirectly
REEBRBRDF BE B TREEIRETHEBK 100% 100% REEK
Point Kin International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
REBE(FB)AERAA aE EE IREEIRETHEER 100% 100% BEEXET
Lansen Medicine (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
business
REBMEFRAF B BE IREEVETH L @K 100% 100% & EFR
Perfection Link Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
EBE(RINERDR B (i a) Gl A R #29,498,0007T 100% 100% EHEEK
Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen) Company The PRC (Note a) The PRC RMB29,498,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
Limited business
ERVEREFRAA F 8 (B it b) Bl A R #236,000,0007T 100% 100% BEEEET
Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company  The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB236,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
Limited business
ERVEBMRBRMERRAF F 8 (B iEb) Bl A R #28,000,0007T 100% 100% EEXH
Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction Technology The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB28,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
Limited business
ERPEREERAA B (P i) B A R #35,000,0007T 100% 100% EEXH
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company  The PRC (Note ¢) The PRC RMB35,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
Limited business
EMNPEEMEEBFRAA B (Fff 2t a) Bl AR ¥3,500,0007T 100% 100% BEEEER
Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry Limited The PRC (Note a) The PRC RMB3,500,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
business
ERPERENRBERADA F B (M & b) F A K ¥1,000,0007T 100% 100% EHE
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
Technology Company Limited business
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RATFHELRFEE)

30. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
V) _\ al A B % i = - - - - - -
M DR — R E R () General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
HEMR LK FE g/ rREFMGHEERESER
g Bx/% EE$ BITRAFE REREML B FTEEHK
Country/Place of  Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group Principal activities
—E-XRE | ZT—8F
2016 2015
FRINREFEEMBEBRAF (B it a) FE A R #500,0007C 100% — BEXHK
Shenzhen Donggi Technology The PRC (Note a) The PRC RMB500,000 100% — Pharmaceutical
Information Co. Ltd. business
WERBRES (LB BERRA B (B 3Eb) FE A K #10,000,0007T 100% — BEXH
Lansen (Shanghai) International Trading ~ The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% — Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. business
WEERES (LR BRDE e (B 3t a) i A R #2,000,0007C 100% — BEXH
Lansen (Beijing) International Trading The PRC (Note a) The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% — Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. business
FEEEREERRF RBRLES B IREEIZTHEBK 100% — REBEEK
Allied Choice International Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% — Investment holding
LEREME(BER)BRAR B BE 1R EE 1A TR E iR R 100% — BREER
Letai Health Technology (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% — Investment holding
Limited
PEBEXARK(ER)BERRA BE B 1R EE 1A T R iR AR 100% — REEK
Lansen Medibeauty Tech (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% — Investment holding
Limited
ERPAERBEXANRERAA F 8 (B Eb) F A E#1,000,0007C 100% — BEXK
Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty Tech Limited ~ The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% — Pharmaceutical
business

@ RPBRRI/ERATF

(b)) RPBRRIFIIEBEERE

@ RPBERIBPIIEERE

Notes:

(a) Established as a limited liability company in the PRC

(b) Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC

(o) Established as a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC
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31.

30. AT HE AR FE (&) 30. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
WEARIW—RER (&) General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
FREIEMMB AR RITEREESE None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
5 o of the year.
AEEMNERK Composition of the Group
FEXEHR SE AL, PRSI it B TEWEARHE
Place of incorporation/ Number of wholly-owned
Principal activities establishment subsidiaries
—E-RF —E—hF
2016 2015
BEXK aa 10 7
Pharmaceutical business The PRC
BEXY 5B 1 1
Pharmaceutical business Hong Kong
KAEER BB 8 7
Investment holding Hong Kong
REERK RBREAES 7 5
Investment holding The BVI
26 20
B R AR 4B 31. Financial Commitments
REHENEE Operating lease commitment
—E-RF —E—hF
2016 2015
FER FET
US$'000 UsS$'000
BAE Al B AL T 48R Future minimum rental payable under
SEEFHESHT: non-cancellable operating lease are as
follows:
1F R Within one year 349 13
F2E5F In the second to fifth year 262 181
611 294
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31.

32.

B %% A& 48 ()
1 R ()

AEENKEHOBERETYE - HO
FHENF—E=F  AAREMAEHRA
SENEREXIE T HTNENEEE
BEY - 2FHOBTEREMKAA

31. Financial Commitments (Continued)
Operating lease commitment (Continued)
The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The
leases terms are between one and three years, with options to
renew the lease terms at the expiry dates or at days as mutually
agreed between the Group and the respective landlords. None of

& o these leases includes any contingent rentals.
EAREE Capital commitment
—E-XRF —E—H0F
2016 2015
FErx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
BB E R ET AR B AR R IE Capital commitments authorised and
contracted for:
mIPEE Intangible assets 447 4,562
BERRE Construction and equipment 217 7,359
664 11,921
BEFXS 32. Related Party Transactions

FA AKREEBEESTLNIRS:

with related parties:

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions

—E—-XF —E—hF
2016 2015
FEn FxT
US$'000 Us$'000
EEXS: Trading transactions:
ENRAMMBARIMIZEMS Processing fee expenses paid to a
fellow subsidiary 143 1,316
ENBEATINIERY Processing fee expenses paid to an
(Kt 3Ea) associate (Note a) 1,173 —
mE R B AR EE S m Purchase of goods from a fellow
subsidiary 2,432 378
mEEARBEEM(WEa)  Purchase of goods from an associate
(Note a) 215 235
MEE ARIEEE m Sales of goods to an associate 1,989 —
BEMx5: Other transactions:
ENRRMBARMESHX Rental expenses paid to a fellow
subsidiary 46 46
FEURR XM B AR MMEIEIR  Cross guarantee commission income
A ONUIETd) receivable from a fellow subsidiary
(Note ¢) 25 —
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32. BERXRZ (&)
THEHRNREHRERBE

32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)
The following balances were outstanding at the end of the
reporting period:

—E-RF —E—HF
2016 2015
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
B & A Al R R (M ta k& b) Amounts owed by an associate

(Notes a and b) 1,941 —

BEKBATXZ (M sEakb)  Amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries
(Notes a and b) 4,143 6,565

GEE

R-ZTE—ANF=ZA-+MA  PAEBEER
BRAR(BAEBV)  AARIZENMEB A
A W B A 230.0% 80 k4 (M1 5E33) - B% A
B HEERBADNBNBE QR o FEMNZ
BRI AARRMRRWE AR °

BENRERRANBARNRRERHHEES
MBI TR M T HEFNBK
RABMERRAHEERMEENE SR
R RBEFBRASEEMN RERAR
EREERE -BE_ZE-ARFR-_Z—AF+
“AZtT—BLEFERN  AEEY BB E
RAERAREMBATNRRORERELEM
B NERBEESZZRERALESEM
AR o

RZE—RFENAZHMNA BRIE - F
WEEEMIRRMERAR ((HHWEE])
AARE R B AR MBAEBV)FI L HEE
R Bt R-T—A"FLtA—RHE=
T-NERNAZTERBESHINRITER
REERKBEEMBEARIREER - A
SERABRS T ERNERASHK
B RZT—RE+ZA=+—8 HHE
& Fr R B BR T {8 /214,415,000 7T (A R #
100,000,00070) WIRITIEE HEAKEE K
F H) BT 455,500,000 % &) K 37 A% ) #E 4R - E
& %&37,978,000% 7T (Mf 5%18) °

ARRAEFRR UNLBEFTRHIR
EREERRE-RATEBRET -

TEEE AN B H BN 1057 I B Y

FTARFREENEHE -

Notes:

On 24 March 2016, Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“Lansen
(BVDH"),
equity interest in Natural Dailyhealth (Note 33). Since that date, Natural
Dailyhealth becomes an associate of the Company. Natural Dailyhealth
was a fellow subsidiary of the Company before that date.

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 30.0%

The amounts owed by an associate and fellow subsidiaries represented
the advances to suppliers on the goods to be purchased or processing
services to be provided and the trade receivables arisen from the sales of
goods to an associate. The amounts outstanding are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The Group has not made any allowance
for bad or doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by an associate
and fellow subsidiaries nor has any guarantee been given or received
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 regarding related
party transactions.

On 24 June 2016, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology
Company Limited (“Jilin Haizi"), a fellow subsidiary of the Company and
Lansen (BVI) entered into a cross guarantee agreement, pursuant to which
the parties may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide certain
guarantees to banks in relation to the banking facilities of each other
from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019. Commission fee will be charged to
a party in respect of a loan which is guaranteed by another party. As
at 31 December 2016, the bank borrowings with carrying amount of
US$14,415,000 (RMB100,000,000) drawn by Jilin Haizi was guaranteed
by the Group with 5,500,000 shares in Starry held by the Group with
market values of US$37,978,000 (Note 18) was pledged.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
related party transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business.

Remuneration for key management personnel represents amounts
paid to the Company'’s directors as disclosed in Note 10.
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33. EREE

AEEHHREEELERRETINS
HMER ARENREREENEAR
MR LTHRBFRZZAE BHREF
BRASENEHETHASRE -

FERR
AEENEERRIERAESEEX
H e FAMBHRRAREZINSESHK
R RREE LR AEEEEER
ERELREHEMKERENTGE
& oo

SREEERR AKEEEECDRY
EERR HREFEEEEEERE

FEEMHNEMERBRE  URERRKR
RAETHROBHABEIE -

Ro®—xET-A=t—A - —EEA
B H SRR A 10% 5K £ (1
—T-RFt-A=t-B:3)-

nBEEERBRER &
FBZIRTT ©

A& F7=

AEBBBREFEUR—BEETEE
R URR/ZEEERRBEREAEE
MEERBEHRAERE -

REBESRE
AAFEFCRVEENRDE AR
ERERNERAEENE - KH
Ee R RBESERT Ko

AEBBBEFTRERE  RITRAM

REEERE HEZERARERR
miﬂMﬁ%ﬂQF&ﬁﬁmﬂ%F

/RLAEEE//\LEQiH

AEBEBTIFEUNR—BEBTRHE
THER URBZERDESCHERELE
ERBERER A —EBX -

33.

Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively securing the
Group's short to medium term cash flows.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,
estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience
and their assessment of the current economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

There was one individual customer contributed 10% or more
of total trade receivables as at 31 December 2016 (As at 31
December 2015: Nil).

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group's exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk
The directors of the Company have built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in managing
liquidity risk.
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33. EREEE)

RBE SRR ()

M 2R E R -E—RF+_A
=t—HB AKENRPAEABHBEER
&) & E13,488,000E 7T c NEE &R F
B R EEZRORREBG N R E 1Y
BN o E— T HBENWE2 - ARAE
FOENASREEREARMERK T =
BAMBESRERR - RIFZER - &
ZeEARDESR T AENEZE
B hAKERZHENRELS - &
ERB BeRERAMEBSNREE
BAE -

TRAMAEEFTESHABOHRT
BHHMFL  TRIOBREAKEAIH
EREFRZPEAHNERABRAAR
TRERHE -AEMS THIETES
AIRE R BITEARN - M B IREBREEK
RHBTEEDFARETREBE - B
WIETESRBENZBMASTIRE W
EERAMEE -

TREEMNERASHERE - B£FNE
MR ZBNRAENERT - KRR
TRERNMERHROFEGFE -

33. Risk Management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As disclosed in Note 2, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by US$13,488,000 as at 31 December 2016.
The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
obtain external financing. Further details are set out in Note 2. The
directors of the Company have carried out a review of the cash
flow projection of the Group for the next twelve months from
the reporting date. Based on such projection, the directors have
determined that adequate liquidity exists to finance its working
capital and financing activities of the Group for that period.
The directors are of the opinion that the assumptions which are
included in the cash flow projections are reasonable.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

—E-x%E
2016
1FRE BHRITHR
BER 122F 2E5F  S5FELULE REREME
Within Total
one year Between Between contractual
oron oneand twoand Overfive undiscounted
demand two years five years years cash flows
FEn FER FER FER FTER
US$’000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000 US$'000
B8 Borrowings 107,062 — — — 107,062
EZRENREREMNZEIE Trade and bills payables 12,637 — — — 12,637
HttEAFREBEREFTKE  Other payables and
accruals 8,729 — — — 8,729
HitemAaE Other financial liabilities — — 500 1,000 1,500
128,428 — 500 1,000 129,928
ERITHBER Financial guarantee
issued
BERERE Maximum amount
guaranteed 14,415 — — — 14,415
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33. EREE(E) 33. Risk Management (Continued)
RBESEMRE(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
—T—TfF
2015
TR BHIRITE
REX 1226 285 SEPE BERE AR
Within Total
one year Between Between contractual
oron one and two and Over five  undiscounted
demand  twoyears  five years years cash flows
FETT FET FET FETT FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
BE Borrowings 90,727 569 581 — 91,877
BORMNFKIBREMNEIRE  Trade and bills payables 11,485 — — — 11,485
E M FERTFRIE R FEETFANIE Other payables and accruals 10,074 — — — 10,074
HmerAaE Other financial liabilities — — 500 1,000 1,500
112,286 569 1,081 1,000 114,936
MEREREERTORITEESTAL Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
MBI B DT —ERNRIZEK EREE in the “within one year” time band in the above maturity analysis.
o
2B EHARNREHRTE TR The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
EfEF B EXBENTEERABBEER for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes
TEHFRBENRIBELIEEE - in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates

determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fh = B Foreign currency risk

REBRGEBAASZHINERBREH - The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to foreign
RETRAEBRWB AR BN RIS currency risk as most of the financial assets and liabilities held
PREERABHUZEMNBERRNSE by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in the respective
BIae E A - functional currency of such subsidiaries.

NEE B AT M AONE EORER o A The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
EEEBERIIERR  UHERERER policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
EREHPEBRINERR - exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arises.

F 2= = b Interest rate risk

AEBEHENMSNEXEHRAKETEHR The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
LUZ BRI R EMAEBEEREER - rates relates primarily to the Group's debt obligations with floating
REE R IRTTEE R EMEFRRE R interest rates. The interest rate and terms of repayment of bank
M 5E24%5 B8 o AN & B B A I 8 A o] B & borrowings of the Group are disclosed in Note 24. The Group
HORER o currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
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33. EREEE)

M RE kg ()
THBREITIREBERSEHRIEITE
IEE’J%'JYJ—L RETE - BLEBAEXRAE
BB BRERBE PR EKR
%“iﬁﬁfzéﬁ\%ﬁ EEFEHREEN R
HoERETEEEABRNIREMNEME
B B (£ FISOME E B E A s TRR IR - Uit
MRER BN RS sE# B HT G -

i 1 =~ B/ £ FS0ME E B - P A B

MR ERETE  KEE:
. $E.ﬁi:;—/—\¢+_ﬂi+
—BUHFEOHARR-E—AF

TZA=ZT—HNRBEFED R
#0358 272,000 T (ZF — 35
38R 4286,000% TT)
BI%EEEA$%I/;JEHFEE
R =R TS &

e AREBER-ZT—XEF+-_A=+-—
Elémfas“ W2 35 4°272,000E 7T
— R F R 286,000

%fc)v

33.

Risk Management (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the end
of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower/higher and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's:

o Profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and retained
profits as at 31 December 2016 would increase/decrease by
US$272,000 (2015: increase/decrease by US$286,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate bank borrowings; and

o The Group’s equity as at 31 December 2016 would increase/
decrease by US$272,000 (2015: increase/decrease by
US$286,000).
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33. Rl EE (&) 33. Risk Management (Continued)
RENEBEINERMEEREEHE Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
W RARMEINAREESRET 2/ The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial
EERERABENAGHA - position relate to the following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities.
—E-XRF —T—RF
2016 2015
FER FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
cREE Financial assets
B R E W GRE - Loans and receivables:
B 5 & E A W GRIA Trade and other receivables 58,598 47,245
EEMRITER Pledged bank deposits 27,095 23,832
ReRkREEED Cash and cash equivalents 10,102 18,976
95,795 90,053
BAFEFAEBZNSEEE  Finandal assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
TESMIA Derivative financial instruments 2,280 —
98,075 90,053
cRBE Financial liabilities
LEHEAK A ENER A& Finandal liabilities at amortised cost:
BE Borrowings 105,098 89,971
5Kk EAM N FIB Trade and other payables 21,367 21,559
126,465 111,530
EAFEFABZNSBARE  Finandal liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:
EmemaE Other financial liabilities 1,226 1,170
127,691 112,700
BT B ER Financial guarantee issued 14,415 —
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33. ERERE(E) 33. Risk Management (Continued)
() EFRAFEFENEHMIA (@) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
WIEAFEFENCHRTABE Financial instruments not measured at fair value include trade
B R EMEWHKIE - B HIFRT and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
R ReRB2EEY - B equivalents, borrowings and trade and other payables.

N85 N B A FRR -

EREFHREMNEE  HEER Due to their short term nature, their carrying values
BEAFEAES - approximate their fair values.

(b) BAFEIFENEMIA (b) Financial instruments measured at fair value
REAnEFENERIABEEM Financial instruments measured at fair value include other
CREEMMTESRIE - ARE financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments.
[ERE) DT © Analysis on fair value hierarchy is presented as follows.

HitemBEN A TETE Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities

HANBT EE16(d) Pt - KT —F= A As discussed in Note 16(d), the Group reached an agreement

ZHN B AEEHEFBEEKBE A with Novartis to acquire a pharmaceutical product on 28 March

WHBHEER ZXINBHaNRER 2014. The total cash consideration of the transaction comprised

58,000,000 E T H MR - Zi&E an upfront payment of US$8,000,000, plus additional milestone

4858 51,500,000 TRy BRRIE R (FZ X payments of a total maximum amount of US$1,500,000, which

ERERNEEREZINGHHEREN) - would be linked to the sales amount achieved by the Group

subsequently.

REBERBILSIARELTHAILEXN The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that

BWEERRAROBERUBESENT the Group could be required to make under this contingent

03 7T £1,500,0003E Tt ° consideration arrangement is between US$0 and US$1,500,000.
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33. EREEE)
Ht & @S &N 2 FETEGE

TREVWR-_ZE—XRE+-_A=+—H
MERAHMEMRRERAN  BEAFEER
RIEBEEEEEUATETENSR
BE ANFEEHBUTHG:

33. Risk Management (Continued)
Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities

(Continued)

The following tables present financial liabilities included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016 measured at fair value on a recurring basis according to the
fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy has the following

levels:
ESFE HBREERERMISH Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
WECRERHE) identical assets;
FE24 ZEERBIRAEEH® Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
BN B & (AL B %) Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either
s fEE (Bl E B85 H) & directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
R AEE & prices); and
B3 ZEEVIIERATERT Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
SEE R A SR (T 8 observable market data (unobservable inputs).
g A BUE) o
F1R FE2R F3K et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FEx FEx FEx FEx
—E—RF+=ZA=+—8 31 December 2016 US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
=K Liabilities

BAVFEFABSOE R

Financial liabilities at fair value

=R through profit or loss
—HihemalE — Other financial liabilities — — 1,226 1,226
— — 1,226 1,226
F1R B2 E3 wEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

“EFE—RAF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

TET TET TET TET
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$000

BE Liabilities
BAFEFAEZHELE  Finandal liabilities at fair value
af& through profit or loss
—HthemadE — Other financial liabilities — — 1,170 1,170
— — 1,170 1,170
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33. EREEE)

Ht & @S &N 2 FETEGE

AT @3 AR ERIB SRR
e 3% o A5 4R -

SARENRFEDERERRR R
B RFEDERETTABRENZ2H
(BRMAE  HERESAMERHEE
HESNBMERE - ZFEATATEER
BWABBEMZTZHABBAIRKER

FEMBERETRDOT
EAFTTEHE TABERA
WAEE HEEATE
H B8 &
4.7% ) BEIR K AR EEE
B A FEMIEK -
HEEEED SHERIEZEHHE
BE= > B1100% e BRFE
Mmoo
IHEEEENER - HEEEEHEM
T -_TFK BE - BIRFE
—E-=F M e
BRIR R INM% B EMmEMmaEn R

& e 4 #951,0003€ 7T 0 i BE IR R F
1% B EMmemadEmaFEEmD
54,0003 7T °

FRAMNBERMLEZE -

33.

Risk Management (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

No gain or loss relating to this contingent consideration has been
recognised in profit or loss for the current year.

The fair value of the contingent consideration was estimated
by applying the discounted cash flow. The determination of
fair value is based on certain parameters including the discount
rate, the probability of sales achievement and the period of
sales achievement, which are unobservable. The significant
unobservable inputs and relationship of these inputs to fair value
contingent consideration are shown as below:

Significant unobservable
input(s)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

Discount rate of 4.7% The higher the discount rate, the

lower the fair value.

Probability of sales
achievement, which is
100%

The higher the probability of sales
achievement, the higher the
fair value.

Period of sales achievement,
which are year 2020 and
year 2023

The earlier the period of sales
achievement, the higher the
fair value.

Increased discount rate by 1% would decrease the fair value
on other financial liabilities by approximately US$51,000 whilst
decreased discount rate by 1% would increase the fair value on
other financial liabilities by approximately US$54,000.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.
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33. EREEE)

Ht & @S &N 2 FETEGE
FAZFRZEL EEHE -
DERERMERMABMERNMGE

BT REBEFENABEEMSHENE
REAE - AN SR T AH )4 #hE

33. Risk Management (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities
(Continued)
There were no transfers between levels during the year.

The financial liabilities classified in level 3 use valuation techniques
based on significant inputs that are not based on observable
market data. The financial instruments within this level are

HIRAE RV EIRR AT - reconciled from opening to closing balances as follows:
—E-XRF —E—RF
2016 2015
FExn FET
US$'000 Us$'000
BE Liabilities
BAFEFABZNEBAERE  Finandal liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:
R—HA—H At 1 January 1,170 1,116
FA 18 25 $0 Bk &9 37 3R (2 B (Bf§ 7£8)  Unwinding of discount on provision
charged to profit or loss (Note 8) 56 54
1,226 1,170

fTE€@MITE
RZE—XRNF=ZA=-+WEHE - BAEBV)
BE—HEHEEHa 0 WEFE0191%
BRE REAARE3BEETHAE
5,085,000 70)  HFARK2808E T
BEe ARESHEEARERNERS
RARIEEEBEITRA -

BEREWRE B -ZT—"F=ZA=-+
N BRISEARERER - BAEEBVA 2
ERWEARATE(MEEERS) EITE IR
DRE  MERBEEBBIRERE -
HRERG  MER-_ZT—XRF=ZA=
TIOEMDREI0I%KE  AEEET
FRIB A (R30% & N BEEITIRA - B
REHE R-_T—XENA=+=H"
REBHRENT ERAEEHERE
EAVE FRAZHEKALAEED

TY R

Derivative Financial Instruments

On 24 March 2016, Lansen (BVI) signed a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire approximately 19.1% equity interest
in Natural Dailyhealth, at a consideration of RMB33.0 million
(approximately US$5,085,000) of which RMB28.0 million is in cash
and RMB5 million by way of consideration shares in entire issued
share capital of Natural Dailyhealth Tech Limited.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, and at any time within
15 months from 29 March 2016, Lansen (BVI) shall have the sole
discretion but not the obligation to subscribe for, and Natural
Dailyhealth shall have the obligation to issue and allot, the second
tranche subscription shares, in aggregate with the acquired equity
interest of 19.1% on 24 March 2016, own up to 30% of the
enlarged issued share capital of Natural Dailyhealth, which is the
call option. On 22 August 2016, the call option was executed.
Accordingly, the Group holds 30% equity interest in Natural
Dailyhealth. Having significant influence over Natural Dailyhealth,
Natural Dailyhealth becomes an associate of the Group since that
date.
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33. EREEE)

TEESm I A(H)

S—H G B-E-ARFZA-THAR
F_EBFARGN =@EARRETITH#
Hl]) FREETHRAEHENOEN - B
RERABEREEEEZBEALEBY)
FENZARBERO (TR THE) -
HEREETEZBEENNEAAR - AR
EHAAAAEENRERZE - AL
BV)EFTTE R PENEAE B -
IAEBAEBVIMERETRE - BES
] A 17 4 B 2 A (T fa) B FE] SR AT 17 (2 3804
HitE -

PTESRTANDFERA-_BEAURFET
B TREIRZZE—RF+ZA=1+—
HRGAMBRAER  RIEQAFERE
SRR EEEEAANTFETENITE
EMTE - R FEEBEREULATRA:

ER: HREERERT SN RE
(REEAE)

F2f . HZBEERFIRAEESHRE
IASNE] B % (AR B 1%) S
EAEERGH EENS
ANEIE R

FE3:  REEAFERABEMS
FENBABE (T BREER

33. Risk Management (Continued)

Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

On the other hand, at any time during the period of three months
commencing immediately after the second anniversary of 24
March 2016 (the “Put Option Period”), Natural Dailyhealth is
entitled to exercise the put option to require Natural Dailyhealth
to purchase all (but not part) of the subscription shares then held
by Lansen (BVI) at the put option strike price. Natural Dailyhealth
shall pay the put option strike price in cash to the Group within
six months from the date of the exercise of the put option. The
exercise of the put option is at the absolute discretion of Lansen
(BVI). The put option can be exercised at any time prior to the
commencement of the Put Option Period if mutually agreed by
Lansen (BVI) and Natural Dailyhealth.

The derivative financial instruments are stated at fair values by
using the binomial model, the following table presents derivative
financial instruments included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016 measuring at fair value
on a recurring basis according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

ANEE) -
F18H H2AR #34 et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FEx FEx FEx FEx
ZEZ—RFTZH=+—H8 31 December 2016 US$'000  US$'000  USS$'000  US$'000
BE: Assets:
RAFEFAEBRMSE  Financial assets at fair value
BE through profit or loss
—PTEemIT A — derivatives financial
instruments — — 2,280 2,280
— — 2,280 2,280
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33. EREEE)

fTESm T AE)
RZE—RAF+_A=1+—HuEZF
PTESMIE -

RFEDERETIAER2B(BRE
HEAR D BAE  FORB B Y as X MAAR
B BERKE)ETE - AFEATAEE
WABURBETROT

EXTUBEERAHE

Bon

1R 1) B8 A R¥63,883,2257T
Foik B E E0%

HEBE AR 17 8 R 18 52.341%

mﬁaﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁm% CBISTAE SR T A
NFEEWR 2R 4167,000%E 7T © M

R DB T %5% @ BIsTASR T AR

FEUR 5 & 1 I149176,0003 7T °

TEHRRIE EF15% © BISTHE €M T ARAF
BU & IN49211,0003 7T » 78 8 %
& T #5% @ BIfTE M T AR FEWZ
& 8 2 49213,0003 7T ©

EM& BIWFHER FF5% @ BIST4 S/ T
N B W 2 2 10 49250,0003 7T ©

33. Risk Management (Continued)

Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)
There were no such derivative financial instruments as at 31
December 2015.

The determination of fair value is based on certain parameters
including underlying share price, annualised dividend yield and
expected volatility, which are unobservable. The significant
unobservable inputs are shown as below:

Significant unobservable input(s)

Put option
Underlying share price of RMB63,883,225
Annualised dividend yield of 0%

Expected volatility of underlying share of 52.341%

Increased underlying share price by 5% would decrease the fair
value gain on derivative financial instruments by approximately
US$167,000 whilst decreased underlying share price by 5% would
increase in fair value gain on derivative financial instruments by
approximately US$176,000.

Increased expected volatility by 5% would increase the fair
value gain on derivative financial instruments by approximately
US$211,000 whilst decreased expected volatility by 5% would
decrease in fair value gain on derivative financial instruments by
approximately US$213,000.

Increased annualised dividend yield by 5% would increase the fair
value gain on derivative financial instruments by approximately
US$250,000.
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33. EREEE)
TEESm I A(H)
FAZRZEL EEH -

DEREIRMNEREEMERNGE
B REFERABEMSEENE
REAE - AN R TRV & E

33.

Risk Management (Continued)
Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)
There were no transfers between levels during the year.

The financial assets classified in level 3 use valuation techniques
based on significant inputs that are not based on observable
market data. The financial instruments within this level are

HIRAE SRV EIBR AT - reconciled from opening to closing balances as follows:
—E-RF —T-RF
2016 2015
FER FEx
US$’000 Us$'000
BE Assets
BAFEHABZRNESREE Finandal assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
m—A—H At 1 January — —
NE Addition 3,488 —
IR Derecognise (2,174) —
MTEeRIANAFERZ Fair value gain on derivative financial
instruments 1,129 —
E W EE Exchange loss (163) —
2,280 —

PTEem T AERAFEWE1,129,000%F T

ERFRBREHHER -

has been recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments of US$1,129,000
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33. EREEE)

BEXER

AEBEREELN URRAKENE
BAFELE RANEZEE(CEKEE
B FERARREREAL R - NEBEH

BRAMEEFESRRTE o

AEENEARERRER (BHE24
RENEER) BeMRITEHREARF
BREANEBLHER(BECBTELN  #H
KRB HI)

AEBZAEERERBETEADHE -
AEBEREHE NN E B R EEEENE
LR BEEEARBAYFHRAE -/
MRFAABEARE  AEREATRERAE
N TFERREROBREEHE REEARTR
R BOFBRNDIEEEENRE

MN-B—-RE+-A=+—08 K&£EHN
mE)BEFE A13,488,000E€ T - B
BECENRUEED K 2P HE -
AR EECHASEARSHBERR
R+—EAMBEEREBAEITER -
EEERTAEREETHORHE S
DEMZHBENEEES RASEENR
EEH -

33. Risk Management (Continued)

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in Note 24, cash and bank balances and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall
financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group had net current liabilities of US$13,488,000 as at 31
December 2016. Basis of preparation in respect of going concern
has been disclosed in Note 2. The directors of the Company have
carried out a review of the cash flow projection of the Group for
the next twelve months from the reporting date. The directors
have determined that adequate liquidity exists to finance its
working capital and financing activities of the Group for that
period.
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33.

34,

B B B TR (1) 33. Risk Management (Continued)
EAXREE(H) Capital management (Continued)
HERSAHILNFEERBELENT The net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting date was as follows:
ZE-AEF —ET—IF
2016 2015
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
& 5k (P 51 24) Borrowings (Note 24) 105,098 89,971
BoRe MBS EY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)

(Bt 5£21) (10,102) (18,976)
o D IRIR 1T E K (BT RE21)  Less: Pledged bank deposits (Note 21) (27,095) (23,832)
(EE 5 Net debt 67,901 47,163
FE 2 Equity 90,376 101,447
FREERLE Net debt to equity ratio 75.1% 46.5%
RAREREB 34. Contingent Liabilities
BN Litigation

R-_T—AFLANE  ARAIEM -
RERNELTEXBRARNIZERAF
(READMANEZRE  REAUER
RE)AARRBNF RAERIER DR
RFBDTHFRD -R_ZT-—RHFENA -+
ME EBRTERDNEREFRNESR -
R_E-—RFTATRARAERIENRE
AN RBTEE - RIFarF - REA
ERAaENVERNEMERRAE
REMMBRERE —FERENEL
AR 7EENBEEOARET0R
BETRZZF-R"E+-A=T—"HBHOS
101BBXT)REREZEER - A% H
ERFARETFBEEZZERSRONLE
R ERBEGAMBERRAMNEASR
Bl ERB/BREANETNEHEBAF
@M A ARAKEREER] AT
HEBEE R AKE YL E %
ER A E - ARBRREEREE
ENHERFIRERRZ M BHRE
FEBR T - ARFIRBYEEZF
HRBERE MATFAERERE  BEE&

FRARTHERE -

On 6 July 2015, the Company announced that according to an
announcement published by the holding company of Shenzhen
Neptunus Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Claimant”),
the Claimant, as the Plaintiff, has initiated legal proceedings (the
“Litigation”) against Ningbo Liwah, the Company’s subsidiary. On
24 August 2015, Ningbo Liwah received the writ in relation to the
Litigation. On 15 October 2015, Ningbo Liwah and the Claimant
exchanged evidences in the preliminary stage. In the Litigation, the
Claimant alleged that it had suffered certain losses due to the use
of ginkgo extract supplied by Ningbo Liwah in Claimant’s products.
The Claimant is therefore seeking damages of approximately RMB70
million (@pproximately US$10.1 million as at 31 December 2016) from
Ningbo Liwah, as well as relevant legal fees. The Group has sought
preliminary opinion on the Litigation from its legal counsel in the
PRC, who, based on the information available as of the date of the
consolidated financial statements, is of the opinion that the amount
claimed by the Claimant is highly disputable. However, as the Group
is not able to reliably assess the amount of provision, the Group has
not made any provision against this Litigation. The Company will, in
accordance with the applicable laws, make every effort to protect its
interests and its shareholders’ interests, actively respond to the case
and defend its position vigorously. The Company will closely monitor
the development of this matter and make further announcements if
and when there are any significant developments in relation to it.
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34,

35.

HARBE(E)

ERITHKER

AN FERQ P c AEB D B AL
BEWBRRHNGEEHNE KRR
FTEATIER - RZERT  AEBEAEK
ERZEMEBEERTREINRZAR
#130,000,0007T (A% 7218,740,0003€ 7T)
MER - RZE—XF+=_A=+—8"
EERAAEEREMERMEIELR
ERReER HTMEEELEEHE
SREVATRE MBI - BBV IRITRAE AR -
MaELREMELORKEENER - R
TE-RE+ZA=+—HB X£ER
BRITERNEBE LR AT MEEAIR
A4 7 A R #100,000,0007T (6 % 5%
14,415,000 L )(Z & —RHF : T) -

WREHBREN

RZZE—+tF=A+HB AEEFEB
LTHBHFRGIMBARARTRSEEE
& A K 324,175,0000% & 1D - BAE M HE
BREF2604EEBFT - AEEENT
EWREFEFA O A19.085EET °
AEB KBRS AR EE S H16.1% 3%
LERE% - BER-_ZE—+F=ANH
ERHRORIFANS B2 —EF=
A+HEB#EANEAN - BALATAEIR A K
UMARRGEE-—FHEARLKRHD
Z #98.05% -+ A0 j5 A H 5 7] K 3L H AR A
—4%E8.05% °

34. Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

35.

Financial guarantee issued

As mentioned in Note 32(c), the Group has issued the guarantee
to a bank in respect of borrowings made by Jilin Haizi, a fellow
subsidiary of the Group. Under the guarantee, the Group
is liable for a maximum of RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to
US$18,740,000) borrowings of drawn by Jilin Haizi from the
bank. As at 31 December 2016, the directors do not consider it
is probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
any of the guarantees, the likelihood of Jilin Haizi defaulting on
repayments of its borrowing is remote. There has been no default
or non-repayment since the utilisation of the banking facilities. The
maximum liability of the Group at 31 December 2016 under the
guarantee issued represents the amount drawn down by Jilin Haizi
of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to US$14,415,000) (2015: Nil).

Event After the Reporting Date

On 15 March 2017, the Group has disposed of a total of 4,175,000
shares in Starry via on-market block trade sales on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. The total consideration for the disposal to Lansen
was US$26.04 million. The net gain (pre-tax) on the disposal
attributable to the Group is approximately US$19.08 million.
As a result of the disposal, the Group’s holding in Starry has
reduced from 16.1% to 12.6%. According to a share reduction
plan announced on 9 March 2017, Lansen may, subject to the on-
market block trading price of Starry, dispose of further shares in
Starry up to approximately 8.05% in Starry and reduce its holding
in Starry by half to 8.05% within six months from 15 March 2017.
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